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Company Profile
RENAE

NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as NVC Lighting
Holding Limited) (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is a well-known lighting product supplier in the industry, mainly
engaged in the design, development, production, promotion and sales of
various lighting products. After the completion of the disposal of majority
equity of lighting business of NVC in the PRC in late 2019, the Group,
in addition to its international lighting business, formally started a new
chapter for strategic adjustment and business transformation, focused
on creating environmental, safe and healthy smart home and commercial
office environment and promoted the Group to grow to be a global brand
service provider for industrialised, chain-based and one-stop solutions.
The Group has production plants in Zhejiang, Shanghai, Zhuhai in China
and Vietnam, etc. It also has overseas product development centers that
meet European standards. We have set up operation agencies in more
than 40 countries and regions around the world.

Since the establishment in 1998, we always insist on independent
innovation in product research and development, and are committed
to providing efficient, energy-saving, healthy and comfortable lighting
solutions for the fields of construction, transportation, urban lighting,
supermarket, hotel, office, housing, school and industry. On 20 May
2010, the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02222). On 12 December 2019, the
Group officially completed the disposal of the majority equity of lighting
business of NVC in the PRC. Since then, the Group has shifted the focus
of traditional lighting business from the PRC professional lighting to
international professional lighting. Meanwhile, we have shifted the focus
on promoting non-lighting products for quality smart life solutions.

Our products and application solutions are selected and used by a
number of famous projects and brands, the Group was the lighting and
service cooperative partner of the Olympic Council of Asia in 2011 and
provided lighting products and solutions for famous projects including
Rio Olympic Games, G20 Hangzhou Summit, Milan Expo, Guangzhou
Asian Games, Shanghai World Expo, Beijing Olympic Games, Royal
Wharf in London, Birmingham Airport in the UK, Villas of Saudi Arabia
Sabic Group, and Qatar Beverly Hills. The Group has been committed
to beautifying the commercial and living space with artificial lighting and
protecting the ecological environment with environmental-friendly and
energy-saving lighting. The Group started to launch a new brand strategy
in 2020. The new brand mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape * ;B4
JEANRFREE” was put forward to connect the corporate vision and brand
mission with the construction of human daily life and conduct business
operation from a perspective with more humanistic value, so as to
promote the transformation of the Group to a global-focused provider of
Indoor Air Quality products.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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For the Years Ended 31 December

Continuing Operations

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross profit margin (Note 1)

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Profit/(Loss) margin before
income tax (Note 1)

Profit/(Loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Net profit/(loss) margin from
continuing operations
(Note 1)

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(Loss) for the year from

continuing and discontinued

operations (Note 2)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue;

EFFAE S

ON

E7)

EFE (Wat1)

FigIRAIRE,/ (518)

FiSMAIRE,/
(B548) X (Wat1)

BELEER Y
KEFE/ (B8

pELBERY
BRE/ (BB X
(1)

FREgEEEY
AEFE
FREREER
KEFE,/ (B8
(Hiz2)

MTEAES:
AAREEA
FEEEI R

2021
20215
RMB’000

FARH

2,374,947
662,432
27.9%
62,990
2.7%

33,466

1.4%

33,466

5,814
27,652

Financial Highlights
M

BHE12B31HLEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017
2020% 20195 20184 2017%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TARE FTARE FTAR®
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(R E5)) (R E7)
2,349,573 2,222,610 1,684,699 1,519,350
672,518 533,361 331,960 248,758
28.6% 24.0% 19.7% 16.4%
(12,455) (5,469) (471,731) (65,487)
(0.5%) (0.3%) (28.0%) (3.7%)
(20,002 (87,263) (703,330) (74,137)
(0.9%) (3.9%) (41.7%) (4.9%)
- 3,790,435 400,994 405,737
(20,002 3,703,172 (302,336) 331,600
(51,748) 3,674,982 (327,592) 314,268
31,746 28,190 25,256 17,332

profit/(loss) margin before income tax equals to profit/(loss) before
income tax divided by revenue; net profit/(loss) margin equals to

profit/(loss) for the year divided by revenue.

Note 2: Profit/(Loss) for the year represents profit/(loss) before netting off

profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests.
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Financial Highlights
MR

As at 31 December ’12H31H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20215 20206 20198 20185 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE TARE TARE FTARE FTARE

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,022,371 2,028,276 2,288,452 3,371,817 1,836,115

Current assets REEE 2,324,041 2,345,760 3,145,807 4,229,285 3,637,201

Current liabilities rEaE 970,197 955,098 1,925,244 3,974,163 2,043,767

Net current assets FREEE 1,353,844 1,390,662 1,220,563 255,122 1,593,434

Total assets less current liabilities ABERREEE 3,376,215 3,418,938 3,509,015 3,626,939 3,429,549

Non-current liabilities Enaas 91,713 104,033 114,914 231,423 99,320

Total equity R 3,284,502 3,314,905 3,394,101 3,395,516 3,330,229

Including: Hep:

Equity attributable to owners AREHEEBAN

of the Company FE(L R 3,195,184 3,224,627 3,319,729 3,286,696 3,242,052

Non-controlling interests FEHI R 89,318 90,278 74,372 108,820 88,177

Current ratio (Note 1) TEILEE (Hat1) 2.40 2.46 1.63 1.06 1.78

Note 1: Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current liabilities. HiaE1  RELEEER B ERLRTa G-

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to you the 2021 annual report of
the Group.

Review in 2021:

Following the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the global
economy began to recover in 2021. With the massive easing of
monetary policy and effective anti-epidemic policies in major countries,
their economies resumed to pre-epidemic levels. The global economy
is expected to soar by 4.4% in 2022 according to the latest World
Economic Outlook published by the International Monetary Fund.

Despite the global economy continues to recover and international market
demand is gradually improving, the supply of raw materials in various
countries becomes tight due to the epidemic, resulting in a rapid increase
in the prices of some commodities. In addition to the shortage of shipping
in post-epidemic era, the freight rate had risen sharply. This results to
significant operational challenges faced by the Group in 2021.

Capitalizing on the global economic recovery, the Group has successfully
recorded stable sales growth in the international lighting business with
its good brand reputation and strong sales channels. The Group paid
attention to the market trend, launched a series of new lighting products
to meet the needs of customers, and strengthened the Group’s sales
foundation. In addition to the international lighting business, the Group
had been preparing for the expansion of its non-lighting business in the
global market in 2021. With the brand mission of “Empowering Your
LifeScape * ;24 EWRFTEE" and by focusing on our customers and
their environment, we have been actively expanding products in the two
elements of “air” and “water” and related fields to improve the life quality
of consumers, to realize the vision of sustainable development and to
build a smarter, more environmentally friendly and more technological
living space. In the face of skyrocketing raw material prices, the
management team conducted a comprehensive analysis and judgment
on material price trends, locked prices at critical times and reduced
the impact of raw materials on production costs, which enabled the
Group to achieve stable growth in overall sales revenue and gross profit
during the Reporting Period. The Group achieved sales revenue of
RMB2,374,947,000 during the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of 1.1% as compared with the Corresponding Period; and gross profit of
RMB662,432,000, representing a slightly decrease of 1.5% as compared
with the Corresponding Period.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Outlook for 2022:

The Group will continue to monitor the development trend of the
pandemic around the world, the economic recovery of countries where its
major customers are located and rising production costs. In the coming
year, while ensuring the sales of the lighting business, it will vigorously
promote the development of the non-lighting business. Through the
efforts of the Group’s R&D team, Indoor Air Quality (“lAQ”) products,
mainly “CleanAire ¢ Z27%" and “AquaSolvo e 7K;%”, have been successfully
proposed. The Group will capitalize on the brand reputation of DERNIER
& HAMLYN (“D&H”), a century-old high luxury lighting manufacturer in
the UK, to launch IAQ products in overseas markets. The strong sales
channels of the Group, together with the promotion of new products, will
help to further improve the Group’s sales performance in the coming year.
The Group will also put more effort on sales cost control where a number
of measures will be taken actively to reduce the impact caused by the
rise in raw material prices and freight charges. The Group will proactively
improve its brand image to enhance its brand awareness in international
markets and promote its mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape o 24

JEINIRPRFR”.
North American and Japanese Markets

The Group continues to face challenges from increases in raw material
prices and shipping logistic fees in 2022, which will affect the gross
profit performance of the North American business. With the completion
of the second phase of the factory in Vietnam, the Group plans to
transfer its production lines from Zhuhai to Vietnam so as to mitigate the
impact of the increasing cost of goods sold. At the same time, “Made in
Vietnam” will help reduce the influence of U.S. import tariffs and enhance
the Group’s cost advantage, thus strengthening the profitability of the
Group. The Group also plans to transfer some production lines to the
Americas to further reduce shipping costs and bring profit growth in the
future. The North American team continues to deepen existing product
lines and optimize product upgrades and iterations. For commercial
basic lamps, the Group is committed to reducing production costs and
introducing innovative functions to expand market share in North America
and increase gross profit. At the same time, the Group will strengthen
and integrate the sales team in the United States and provide scenario
development and design services for different commercial environments
so as to comprehensively increase sales. The Group will promote new
horticulture light products and conduct promotions on demonstration
projects to increase the sales of horticulture lights in the United States
and Canada. After the product research and development effort made
in 2021, the Group will focus on launching IAQ products under the
brands of “CleanAire e Z2;%” and “AquaSolvo e 7K7F” in the North
American market in 2022. The Group will enter certain market segments
by developing different sales channels. The Group will also carry out
promotional activities in different demonstration stores to prepare for non-
lighting business sales in the second half of 2022.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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For the Japanese market, the Group will launch IAQ products to expand
sales channels in mega stores and increase sales in the Japanese
market. Meanwhile, in the lighting business, the Group will propose a
number of new products under the Toshiba brand to maintain sales
to existing customers. The Group also plans to introduce new brand
products in different retail stores to attract more diverse customers. The
Group will continue to increase the sales of lighting products on the
Amazon platform to improve the Group’s sales performance.

UK and Nordic Markets

The Group will continue to improve lighting business in the UK and Nordic
region by development of brand image and centralising management.
We will focus on the project products at the high-end residential market,
which offers high value-added products and improve the profit margin
of the Group. Also, the Group will put more resources into developing
standardized range of decorative products in D&H. The Group believes
that the success of D&H will strengthen the NVC brand and improve the
brand reputation in the overseas market. The Group will increase the sale
and marketing event of IAQ products and horticulture lights in the UK ad
Nordic regions. The UK management team anticipates it will be a strong
drive of sale performance in second half of 2022.

Greater China

Through four major segments, namely promotion activities, terminal
activities, online and offline marketing and channel construction, in
2022, the Group will enhance its brand awareness, and promote our
brand promotion and sales platform in Greater China, so as to expand
our business. With a continuous focus on consumer needs in the post-
pandemic period, the Group takes safety, comfort and health as the three
major directions of AloT products. The Group will continue to improve the
quality of the products and solutions projects. Meantime, the Group will
speed up the launch of new products to enhance product experiences for
retail customers. By integrating Al and 5G into its products, the Group will
provide customers with smarter, more friendly, higher quality and more
comfortable household smart products.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Other Overseas Markets

The Group will continue to maintain long-term Southeast Asia regional
partners to exclusively promote lighting products and ensure our brand
presence in the marketplace. The Group will actively work towards
introducing our major product lines and create strong demand for lighting
and non-lighting products, so as to capture the dynamics of the market
to be better prepared for our sales in the future.

The Group is also actively developing channels in the distribution
markets of non-lighting products in the Middle East and North Africa.
In the countries where the Group has footprinted, it will keep tapping
into the depth of channels, enhance the coverage and influence of its
products and brands, and continuously optimise its product portfolio
to meet market needs, so as to increase its business momentum in
multiple dimensions. In 2022, the Group plans to continue developing the
business in North Africa and combine online and offline brand promotion
activities to develop its distributor network and core customer base.
The Group will develop different types of customers and promote the
construction of distribution networks in a diversified manner. Through
the operation of large-scale regional benchmark projects, the Group will
enhance its brand’s professional image and regional influence.

Brand Building, Product Development and Internal
Management

The Group successfully gained widespread recognition through various
brand promotion campaigns in the first half of 2021. In the coming year,
the Group will make use of the D&H’s century-old British brand history
and its IAQ products to launch the D&H Lifelabs brand which focus on
the field of “environment, life and health”. It will lay a solid foundation for
meeting the surge in market demand for IAQ products during the post-
epidemic period and quickly occupying market share. We will also make
use of our excellent product design capability and our ability to build
intelligent product ecosystems to precisely meet consumers’ needs and
improve customer experience.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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In 2022, The Group will focus on promoting the application of IAQ
products in the market. The “CleanAire ® Z8/3” product has the unique
core technology of ultraviolet disinfection and sterilization in the industry.
It is a multi-technology synthetic product which meets the diverse
needs of customer groups, aiming to cater to different consumer
groups and provide customers with a comfortable and safe life and
living environment. “AquaSolvo e 7K;%” products apply high-efficiency
cold evaporation technology to volatilize hypochlorous acid into the
air, which can actively disinfect indoor air. Those technologies, as core
competitiveness in the brand, aim at the mid-to-high-end market,
providing customers with advanced, harmless and efficient hypochlorous
acid disinfection technology and solutions, and providing customers
with a safe life and living environment. The Group aims to continuously
bring customers an ideal lifestyle while providing high-quality services to
customers, thereby fulfilling our mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape e

BETEURPRFR".

In respect of the raw material supply, raw material price control remains
a key concern for the Group. With the uncertain international situation,
the tightening of monetary policies in various countries and the tight
energy supply, the Group expects the prices of raw materials will remain
fluctuate. The Group’s management team will further optimise its
procurement strategy, follow macro policies and control costs by locking
up materials at low prices, delaying price increases and centralising
procurement. We will also establish strategic partnership with core
suppliers to build a mutually beneficial cooperation model in the long
term. In respect of internal management, the Group will continue to
promote the optimisation of the decentralised approval process to
enhance management effectiveness comprehensively. In addition, the
Group will continue to promote the construction of digital and real-
time platform throughout the Group. In 2022, the Group will be devoted
to promoting the ERP system transformation in other subsidiaries and
preparing for resource sharing, so as to realise globally cross-regional
cooperation among main businesses, thereby improving the overall
operating efficiency of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will improve
its ERP function with different new functions so as to further enhance
governance effectiveness.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Acknowledgement g

Our stable development for over 20 years depends on the wholehearted K-+ iENEST XE B AEEED
contributions and persistent support from the Board and all staff 4" ERE2EEINELE2EREIFREN
members. | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the long-term BE - AR AHIZIKRE - ZTE - HEG KLKH
support of all shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors. In the T EEBIIF EREH KK > RFBEE
future, we will strive forward steadily as in the past with full responsibility FEHRKEHWEZBPE - ZEE - HEEELHEFE
to all shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors, with an aim to SBMNEE ' BREKZEMEHE—F  BAE
make the Group's brand “NVC International” a world-wide respected NELTEHERBBITEMET AZEHHN R
brand and secure satisfactory results to repay the support from various f& > U4 A mENEELELS AN LT

sectors.

WANG Donglei ELE
Chairman EEHR

Hong Kong =48

8 April 2022 2022F4H8H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market and Performance Review

Following the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the global
economy began to recover in 2021. With the massive easing of
monetary policy and effective anti-epidemic policies in major countries,
their economies resumed to pre-epidemic levels. The global economy
is expected to soar by 4.4% in 2022 according to the latest World
Economic Outlook published by the International Monetary Fund.

Despite the global economy continues to recover and international market
demand is gradually improving, the supply of raw materials in various
countries becomes tight due to the epidemic, resulting in a rapid increase
in the prices of some commodities. In addition to the shortage of shipping
in post-epidemic era, the freight rate had risen sharply. This results to
significant operational challenges faced by the Group in 2021.

Capitalizing on the global economic recovery, the Group has successfully
recorded stable sales growth in the international lighting business with
its good brand reputation and strong sales channels. The Group paid
attention to the market trend, launched a series of new lighting products
to meet the needs of customers, and strengthened the Group’s sales
foundation. In addition to the international lighting business, the Group
had been preparing for the expansion of its non-lighting business in the
global market in 2021. With the brand mission of “Empowering Your
LifeScape * ;24 EWRFTEE” and by focusing on our customers and
their environment, we have been actively expanding products in the two
elements of “air” and “water” and related fields to improve the life quality
of consumers, to realize the vision of sustainable development and to
build a smarter, more environmentally friendly and more technological
living space. In the face of skyrocketing raw material prices, the
management team conducted a comprehensive analysis and judgment
on material price trends, locked prices at critical times and reduced
the impact of raw materials on production costs, which enabled the
Group to achieve stable growth in overall sales revenue and gross profit
during the Reporting Period. The Group achieved sales revenue of
RMB2,374,947,000 during the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of 1.1% as compared with the Corresponding Period; and gross profit of
RMB662,432,000, representing a slightly decrease of 1.5% as compared
with the Corresponding Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEDH

Selling and Distribution

The Group has established and improved the sales networks and
channels for lighting products in major countries and regions including the
PRC, North America, Europe, Australia, East Asia, the Middle East and
Southeast Asia with experienced global marketing and operation team.

North American and Japanese Markets

The North American market remained the Group’s core area for
development. The Group refined its operation by differentiating retail
and commercial channels. In 2021, the Group faced such issues as
tight supply chains, skyrocketing sea freight rates and shortage of
container supply in the North American market, which made the operating
environment more severe. However, by virtue of the long-term and stable
strategic partnership with major customers and the advantages of the
Group in term of product brand, the Group has ensured a slow and
steady growth in the North American market in various sales channels.

In the retail end market, both online and offline sales channels recorded
slowing growth, coupled with tight product supply, resulting in a slight
decline in retail sales. The sales in commercial channels began to
recover, and the demand for small and medium-sized lighting projects
was active. The Group successfully secured a number of chain store
renovation projects, which ensured sales growth in the North American
market. The Group started to invest more resources in epidemic-related
and horticulture light products last year, creating several new brands and
establishing its product lines. The Group offers products that combine
UVC sterilisation and lighting functions, effectively solving the problem
of human-machine co-existence during sterilisation work. Due to the
shortage of product supply and cargo ships, there were certain level of
shortages for hot-selling products. The Group took measures such as air
transportation and domestic automobile intermodal transportation in the
United States to secure supply and ensure product sales. The Group’s
new product development was not affected by the pandemic, with over
20 new products launched in 2021. In the fourth quarter of 2021, the
Group launched the SlientAire brand of UV germicidal lamps in the North
American market. In line with the innovative technology of products and
the rising market demand for CleanAire and AquaSolvo, the Group is
paving the way for sales growth in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2021, Japan continued to suffer from the COVID-19 pandemic and
some areas came into a state of emergency. Some stores in the affected
areas have shortened their opening hours or even closed down, which
limited the economic activities of consumers. The Group’s Japanese
team was committed to developing new sales channels despite these
negative factors and successfully made the ceiling lights marketed in the
local home furnishing shops. In addition, sales performance was boosted
by new products, namely the two-colour bluetooth ceiling lights and the
new generation of ceiling lights, launched in the first half of the year. In
the second half of 2021, with the peak season of sales in the Japanese
market, the Group intensified its promotional activities and increased
the market shares of sales of high value-added products. In view of the
changes in offline consumption habits of Japanese citizens, the Group
began to promote e-commerce channels in Japan and some lighting
products were sold on Amazon Japan, which is expected to bring in
considerable sales to the Group. Moreover, the Group set up a factory
in Shizuoka Prefecture, Japan to assemble finished products, which is
expected to improve the inventory management efficiency and gross
profit of the Japanese business.

UK and Nordic Markets

After the lockdown in the UK in 2020, its economic activities start to
resume in 2021. The Group focuses on demand creation, product mix,
and optimized pricing structures in UK wholesale channel. With the
strengthening of the UK management team, the Group has recorded a
decent improvement in the sales performance in 2021. The Group also
focused on major construction projects in the UK, which deliver high-end
products. With the protracted discussion, the Group has received orders
from Nine Elms and the second phase of Bluewater shopping centre
which enhanced the sale performance in 2021. The Group acquired
Sweden and Finland distributors in 2020. Also, the Group has completed
the acquisition of a Demark distributor in 2021. This created a synergy
effect by sharing sale and marketing resources with the UK management
team, which established a strong sales channel in the Nordic region,
and enhanced overall operational performance. This synergy boosted
the sales performance and gross profit in the overseas market in 2021.
Despite there was an increase in raw material, inbound shipping and local
wage level, the UK management team took proactive measures such as
price adjustment and improved cost structure. In addition, the Group has
terminated the OEM sale channel in March 2021 with poor performance
in profitability. As such, the Group put more emphasis on the UK and
Nordic business, which will further enhance the sale and operational
performance.
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BEEEmEDH

Greater China

The year of 2021 was a critical developing stage for the Greater China
business when the Group completed the formulation of strategic
planning, deployment of marketing network and establishment of the
management team. The Group is committed to creating professional
technology balconies, bathrooms and whole-house wireless smart
products, with safety, comfort and health as the general direction, to
provide customers with a smarter, more friendly and higher-quality
experience. The Group held product launch conferences this year, and
successfully established sales channels in many provinces across the
PRC. The Group is ready for the performance sprint for the coming year.

Other Overseas Markets

The recent waves of pandemic have forced the Southeast Asia
governments to implement repeated restrictions and lockdowns which
led to the delay of arrivals and deliveries of goods in these countries. This
causes disruptions to our distribution therein, project delays and even
complete shut-down in some construction sites. Apart from maintaining
existing customer base, the Group’s management team in Southeast Asia
established new distribution channels in several Southeast Asia countries.
The Group focused on the promotion of a variety of product portfolios to
our customers through online social media and online training seminars.
The sale performance of the Southeast Asia region only recorded a slight
decline in 2021.

In the Middle East and North Africa markets, the Group mainly focused
on the marketing activities and key projects, and actively cooperated
with large construction enterprises. In 2021, the Group won the bids for
the New Cairo CBD Lighting Project in Egypt and the Oilfield Lighting
Project in Irag, and completed the lighting project for the main stadium
and surrounding facilities of the Qatar World Cup. The Group made use
of its existing customer channels to actively promote new products and
enhance the competitiveness of its products and gross profit margin.
At the same time, we developed more new customers through a
combination of online and offline methods. The Group’s operations in the
Middle East and North Africa regions recorded growth compared to the
same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Brand Image Building and New Product Research and
Development

With “Empowering Your LifeScape e ;B4 EUN{RFTEE" as the core idea
of brand, the Group emphasizes a customer-centric brand strategy
to bring customer safe, healthy and environmentally friendly products
and solutions. The Group is committed to establishing brand value
recognition, providing products and services that meet the needs of
consumers from their perspective, so that customers can recognize
the core values of our brands while enhancing sense of belonging. The
Group has also strengthened communication with consumers and used
different media to promote its brand and enhance its brand image. At
the same time, through participation in the Asian top brand awards
and international design awards, the Group increased its exposure and
enabled more consumers to get to know its brand and products, so as to
enhance its brand reputation. In 2021, the Group won various prominent
international awards, namely the “China’s Top Brand 2021 (20214
2B 5%EE) " award, the German Red Dot Award: Product Design
2021 and the German iF Industrie Forum Design, which demonstrated
the excellence of product design as well as research and development
capability of the Group. This further enhanced the brand awareness and
expanded the brand influence.

The Group’s management has put forward the core development
strategy of “Technology-driven and User First” to promote the research
and development of lighting and non-lighting products. The Group
attaches great importance to the research and development of innovative
technologies. In 2021, the Group successfully developed a number of
non-lighting technologies, including air disinfectors, water-air disinfection
technologies and commercial fresh air disinfectors. The Group’s design
department focuses on market trends and understanding consumers’
needs. They carry out product research and development with the
professional spirit of “ingenuity and innovation”. The new products are
designed to enhance the user experience by placing emphasis on the
changes in the user environment and identifying the actual and potential
needs of users. The Group has successfully launched a number of new
products by utilizing relevant technology and product design.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEDH

The Group’s Main New Products

The Group focuses on developing creative research and development
capability and providing customers with professional and optimised
lighting and non-lighting solutions. It aims to promote the global energy-
saving and emission-reduction and enhance green lighting industry
forward to more sustainable, healthy and well-regulated growth. The
Group has now established sales networks in major countries and regions
such as North America, Europe, Australia, East Asia, the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. The Group develops and promotes products according
to regional characteristics and customer needs, providing distributors,
project customers and consumers with customised and differentiated
products and services. The following shows the main new products
developed and successfully marketed by the Group during the period
under review.
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BEEERED

TR

SilentAire 12in Plasma Universal SilentAire 24in Air Sterilizer Plasma SilentAire Plasma Flat Panel
Ceiling Mount EHETREE LR THRIEREE
ErE TR EEAR

ﬁ

Table grow ligh LED Panel Ceiling Light LED Donut Pendant Light
SHEEYE LED B X R R IEE LEDEH E B % &

LED Donut Ceiling Light Commercial Eco Air Sterilizer Commercial Eco Disinfectant Generator
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BEEEmEDH

Eco Air Sterilizer with Humidifier Eco Ambient Air Sterilizer Eco Disinfectant Generator
FMERNRRERHEE BRENZTHFH BIRHEHKERE

LED Greenhouse Grow light LED Grow Light Bar Set LED Round High Bay
EMERE EYERBEA EEAYC

Plasma Pendant light LED Wall Pack Beam Adjust High Bay
EHTEME B)5 AIREAESME
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BEEERED

6in Color Preference Downlight 2x4 Plasma Panel
with Night light x4 E BT R E mARIE

6 H/NR B BB

Financial Review
Sales Revenue

Sales revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting Period,
the sales revenue of the Group amounted to RMB2,374,947,000,
representing an increase of 1.1% as compared with the sales revenue in
the Corresponding Period.

For business management need and the nature of business units based
on the products and market, the Group classified the reportable operating
segments as follows:

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and non-NVC
brand sales

The table below sets forth the sales revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the growth rate
of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily consist of ODM
products.
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BEEEmEDH

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE
2021 2020 Growth rate
20214 20204 EBRE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 (%)
FARE® FARE (%)

Sales revenue from the PRC REFENHEERA

market
Non-NVC brands JEE T MM 251,503 238,784 5.3%
Subtotal IEF 251,503 238,784 5.3%
Sales revenue from KEEENHE KA

international markets
NVC brands BT mhE 312,728 258,702 20.9%
Non-NVC brands EEL R 1,810,716 1,852,087 (2.2%)
Subtotal iY-ia 2,123,444 2,110,789 0.6%
Total =E1 2,374,947 2,349,573 1.1%

The Group continues to focus on the lighting products in overseas
market. During the Reporting Period, sales revenue from the PRC
increased by 5.3%, due to the increase in the demand in the traditional
lamp product market in PRC market. Meanwhile, international sales
increased by 0.6%, mainly because of the strong demand of NVC
lighting products in the UK market and the expansion of the NVC lighting
products in Nordic market. It is offset by weak performance in overseas
markets resulting from shortage of product supply and cargo ships which
leads to decrease in the sale for non-NVC products by 2.2% comparing
with Corresponding Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials, outsourced
manufacturing costs, labor costs and indirect costs. Major raw materials
of the Group include iron, aluminum and alloys, fluorescent powder, glass
tubes, electronics components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced
manufacturing costs primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished
products used in the production of our products and finished products
produced by other manufacturers. Indirect costs primarily include water,
electricity, depreciation and amortisation and others. The table below sets
forth the composition of our cost of sales:
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Year ended 31 December

H#Z12831ALLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’ 000

FARHE

Raw materials (including outsourced R#1# (59N 4 E AL )

Percentage in Percentage in
revenue (%) RMB’ 000 revenue (%)
(1 O] G WA LA
(%) FAR® (%)

manufacturing costs) 1,459,481 61.5% 1,464,557 62.3%
Labor costs =N %N 165,567 7.0% 141,631 6.0%
Indirect costs Bl E M 87,467 3.6% 70,867 3.0%
Total =1 1,712,515 72.1% 1,677,055 71.4%

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage in revenue
increased from 71.4% to 72.1%, while the gross profit margin slightly
decreased from 28.6% to 27.9%. Despite the fact that the Group has
transferred its production line to Vietnam to mitigate the impact of U.S.
import tariffs, rapid increase in the prices of some commodities and
labour cost lead to the increase in the production cost of the Group
which offset some production cost savings. This resulted to a slightly
decrease in the overall gross profit margin.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

EFMREF R

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less cost of FEF|ISUR A EIHER B EEE o

sales.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit was RMB662,432,000, RIEFEFEN > BIREF A ARKBE2,432
representing a slightly decrease of 1.5% as compared with the gross F i >  WEHNIFELSSXBENIHE EF
profit of sales from the continuing operations of the Corresponding BRI .5% 0 S5 E EF BW28.6%[EE
Period, and gross profit margin of sales decreased from 28.6% to 27.9%. 27.9% 2 DM EF KR EFKF|RUTF :
The gross profit and gross profit margin by segments are shown as

follows:

The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit margin by FRF|RFATABNIZMMIEBMNELRE T H
geographical locations and NVC brand products and non-NVC brand (ERNMIEFETREERNEFNREFXK

products for the periods indicated:

Gross profit from PRC sales:
Non-NVC brands

Subtotal

Gross profit from international
sales:

NVC brands

Non-NVC brands

Subtotal

Total

PEFHEEENER

FELEE

et

ERHEEENER

BT mhE
SFEL MR

st
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Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2020
20204

RMB’ 000 (%)

FAR® (%)

42,710 17.0% 53,398 22.4%
42,710 17.0% 53,398 22.4%
105,804 33.8% 73,271 28.3%
513,918 28.4% 545,849 29.5%
619,722 29.2% 619,120 29.3%
662,432 27.9% 672,518 28.6%




Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to complex global economic and social environment, the overall
gross profit margin of the Group slightly decreased as compared with
the Corresponding Period. It was mainly due to increased raw material
prices and labour cost in 2021. However, the Group has implemented
the following measures to mitigate the impact. Firstly, the Group gradually
transferred the best-selling product lines to Vietnam factories where more
preferential trade policies are provided, and strengthened procurement
and technology to reduce costs, which mitigated the impact of high
commodities price; secondly, the Group expanded its exposure in Nordic
market, where it generated more gross profit to the Group; and lastly,
it accelerated the development and promotion of new products, and
provided customisation products and services to increase the added
value and gross profit margin of new products, which contributed to the
gradual increase in the proportion of new products with high gross profit
margin, leading to an effective increase in the overall gross profit margin.

Other Income

Our other income mainly consists of waiver of special dividend from
an associate, government grants and other subsidies, bank and other
interest income, surcharges from suppliers, rental income, consultancy
service income, trademark licensing fee, samples recharged to customers
and others. We received various types of government grants in the form
of tax subsidies, incentives for research and development activities,
expansion of production capacity of energy-saving lamp and the support
of the payroll of the Group’s employees resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic. During the Reporting Period, other income of the Group
decreased significantly to RMB46,524,000 as compared with the other
income from the Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to the
waiver of special dividend from an associate during the Corresponding
Period and the decrease of government grants recognised.

More details about the other income are provided in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 262 to 263 of this annual
report.
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SHEREEEMN MR LR 058 KE K
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MEE, B 2EEBRAEILERHSEHE
BoRAEETREZEN; k&RE MR
O on B 3 R R R M E B E E M AR
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MR RGBSR EMHEBHEEE
ENROBRIR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEDH

Other Gains and Losses

This item represents the Group’s net foreign exchange (losses) gains,
gain (loss) from fair value changes of held-for-trade investments,
and property, plant and equipment, fair value change of contingent
consideration receivables, gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and others during the Reporting Period.

More details about the other gains and losses are provided in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 263 of this annual report.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and other costs including
office expenses, customs clearance expenses, travelling expenses,
depreciation and amortisation, insurance fees and other miscellaneous
costs.

During the Reporting Period, the selling and distribution costs were
RMB272,684,000, representing an increase of 21.9% as compared with
the selling and distribution costs from the Corresponding Period. The
selling and distribution costs as a percentage in revenue increased from
9.5% to 11.5% as well mainly due to significant increase in freight rate
which leads to higher transportation costs on selling in overseas market.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs, amortisation
and depreciation, research and development expenses, office expenses
and other expenses including tax expenses, audit fees, other professional
fees, impairment of trade and other receivables and other miscellaneous
expenses. These taxes mainly include land use tax and stamp duty in
connection with our administrative functions.

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses were
RMB256,222,000, representing a decrease of 6.5% as compared
with the administrative expenses from continuing operations of the
Corresponding Period, our administrative expenses as a percentage in
revenue decreased from 11.7% to 10.8%, which was mainly due to the
fact that the Group strengthened internal operation management and
tightened expenses to cut down our expenditures during pandemic in the
Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent the expenses of interest on bank loans, interest
on lease liabilities and interest on vendor financing.

Share of Results of Associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net losses in the
associates during the Reporting Period.

Income Tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax increased
significantly to RMB29,524,000 as compared with the income tax from
the Corresponding Period. It is mainly due to overprovision of prior year

tax expenses was recorded in the Corresponding Period.

Profit for the Year (including Profit Attributable to Non-
controlling Interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our profit for the year (including
profit attributable to non-controlling interests) was RMB33,466,000 during
the Reporting Period.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company for the Year

Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB5,814,000 during the Reporting Period.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling Interests

During the Reporting Period, profit for the year attributable to non-
controlling interests was RMB27,652,000.

BEEERED

MBER

MHEERBBTERME -BHEERGENE
REEEHENEXH-

FEALGEE AR EE

FAERBRBREFEANLSEREHRERQT
FEAFMN BN AERFEERMNEE

Frig#i

RREFER AEBMESREBEZF
BRABEMNMEARK20,524F x> £ &
EHR E—SFERERINBIEEENRE
HAABR o

AEFHE (BIFIEEHI MR ELERGD)
HR EMRAR RESEEN HANEAE
A (BIEIEZESI MRS ELI0) BAR
33,466 7T ©

EATEE AELHEEFHE

MR ERER REESFER ZATHEE
ANEENEFEFNESARES814F o

FEHEHI M RS RIS 7R

RIEFEERN JEERIMERELNAE
AEAANRM27,652F 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmED

Cash Flow and Liquidity RERskiEak
Cash flow RE&ER=E

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our consolidated TXREFINXEFAMNGESEESRE R EHIE
statement of cash flows. WIS REHIE-

31 December

12A31H

2021 2020

2021% 20204

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FAER®E FARE

Net cash flows used in operating activities RS E AR S 2 %58 (122,657) (187,999)

Net cash flows used in investing activities ETEFBERESE e FEE (70,382) (34,892)

Net cash flows used in financing activities B EEFTRERS NE R (49,123) (29,502)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY R/ FEE (242,162) (252,393)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#]IRE€ KBS ZEY) 1,226,773 1,551,520

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERSH R 2558 (36,343) (72,354)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ME SRS RERTDETD

consolidated statement of cash flows MBS RIESZ%EY 948,268 1,226,773

At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances of the WAKZEFEE R AEBNR S RIETE
Group were mainly denominated in US$, RMB, HK$, GBP, JPY, SGD and BRFEMNZET - AR ETT EFE-B T
VND. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, ¥ L HEESE ARBATT B HEH
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and A H M E & o AT > R 35 F0 F R #h B9 (4 B
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EBIEEH ) R(GEE -EELNESIER
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other E>> NREBEEBAEISHEETIEEZT
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange MIR{TIFARBRIRABHMEE

business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERED

Liquidity mEn Y
Sufficiency of net current assets and working capital BREEERSEETHTEM

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and net TFTHRFHIINBEEERBMNBEE N H
current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period. BEERERBEE-

Year ended 31 December

HE12831HLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTARYE FAR
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =78 624,038 421,673
Trade and bills receivables B RZHEERER 500,403 498,777
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HhEWERE I RES R TBA™R 113,581 95,957
Tax recoverable FE(TFTEIR 13,879 1,658
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABENEREE
profit or loss 40,600 25,251
Pledged bank deposits EIFNIRITER 83,272 75,671
Bank balances and cash IRITERRIRE 948,268 1,226,773
Subtotal current assets wRENEE /N 2,324,041 2,345,760
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaE
Trade payables BRI 609,820 561,320
Other payables and accruals HthEARRTERRE A 254,301 252,551
Contract liabilities aRAaE 34,205 47,028
Borrowings EEN 40,035 30,043
Deferred income IEEW 1,009 1,009
Lease liabilities HEAE 14,890 17,628
Tax liabilities mHEamE 15,937 45,519
Subtotal current liabilities mENEEINET 970,197 955,098
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 1,353,844 1,390,662

ETERZERERAT 202145k 29



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEDH

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the total net 2021 12H31HM2020F12831H >
current assets of the Group amounted to RMB1,353,844,000 and KXEBWN I REBELEND B AR
RMB1,390,662,000, respectively, and the current ratio was 2.40 and  1,353,844F 7t AR #1,390,662F 7T 7t
2.46, respectively. In light of our current liquidity position and our EhEEE DB A2.40F12.46 - EEFX I B BIAY
projected cash inflows generated from operations, the Directors believe HREIMEMR N ETBHAEAKCEMELENIIRES R
that the Group has sufficient working capital for our present requirements A B SR AAEBEAE R ENZEELE S

and for the next 12 months. UENBRIEERKRI2ZEANESEK-
Capital Management BAREE

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the Reporting TREHINREFEFERNELAEBLE=Ro

Period.
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HALLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TFARY TAR®
Borrowings (RN 40,035 33,659
Total debt EEast 40,035 33,659
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERIREEEY (948,268) (1,226,773)
Net debt FER N/A N/A
Ri#EH ~ERA

Total equity attributable to owners of KABHERE NELEELR
the Company 3,195,184 3,224,627
Gearing ratio BEASMELEE N/A N/A
B A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the stability
and growth of our financial position. We regularly review and manage
our capital structure and make corresponding adjustments, after taking
into consideration changes in economic conditions, our future capital
requirements, prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. We manage our capital by monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity attributable
to owners of the Company). Net debt is the balance of interest-bearing
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and short-term
deposits.

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the end of the
Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a regular basis.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 297 of this annual report.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group mainly represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit periods generally range from 30 to 180
days for major customers. Each major customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivables balance.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 292 to 295 of this
annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEDH

Trade and bills payables

More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 299 to 301 of this annual
report.

Borrowings

More details about the borrowings are provided in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 305 to 306 of this annual
report.

Capital Expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from operations
and bank loans. Our capital expenditure is primarily related to expenditure
on property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
RMB113,771,000, mainly attributable to the increase in cost of leasehold
improvements, machinery equipment, furniture and fixtures, computer
equipment and customer relationships.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

We did not have any outstanding derivative financial instruments and off-
balance sheet guarantees for outstanding loans. We did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the capital commitments in respect of
purchase of property, plant and equipment, acquisition of interest in
investments, acquisition of interests in associates and acquisition of
interests in a subsidiary were RMB42,327,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB29,336,000).

Mergers, Acquisitions, Investments And Disposals

In January 2021, UK NVC acquired 20% equity of Elekzon Pty Limited,
a distributor in Australia, at a consideration of USD350,000, to enhance
control over distribution channels in Australia.

During the Reporting Period, UK NVC acquired a 100% equity interest
in NVC DK A/S. NVC DK A/S is principally engaged in the sales and
distribution of lighting products and was acquired with the objective of
expanding the Group’s customer base in Denmark.

Save as disclosed in the above, the Group made no material acquisition,

merger or sale of subsidiaries and associates during the Reporting
Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Significant Investment and Performance

Except for the information disclosed in other parts of this annual report,
during the Reporting Period, the Company had no major investments.

Pledge of Assets

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the Group’s
assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets are as follows:

BEEERED

HEXIRERRR

BRAFHRAMBOANSAREEN IR
BEFER AREIREEARE

BREE

AEBHNERUASEBNE EFIRF - H
WMEENREEDT :

Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERKZE
Trade receivables B 5 RN
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRIRITER

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets related to leasehold land
with aggregate carrying amounts of RMB17,408,000 were pledged for an
associate’s bank loan facilities.

Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course of
business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the adverse
effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises from sales
or procurement by an operating unit in currencies other than its functional
currency. As a result, we are exposed to fluctuations in the exchange
rate between the functional currencies and foreign currencies. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had entered into several forward exchange
contracts in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our operations
or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials which are
influenced by global changes as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect our financial performance. We did not enter into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity price changes.

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FARK FAR®
= 41,840

163,300 29,458
83,272 75,671
246,572 146,969
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o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmED

Liquidity Risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by managing the
maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and liabilities and
projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is to maintain a balance
between continuity and flexibility of funding through the use of bank
loans and other interest-bearing loans. Our Directors have reviewed our
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and determined that
we have no significant liquidity risk.

Credit Risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial number
of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables from
debtors. We have policies in place to ensure that the sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and we have
strict control over credit limits of trade receivables. Our cash and short-
term deposits are mainly deposited with registered banks in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Singapore. We also have policies that limit our
credit risk exposure to any financial institutions. The carrying amounts
of trade and bills receivables, deposit-pledges and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent our maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no
other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk. In
2021, we entered into a number of one-year insurance contracts with
China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation, which covered 70% or 90%
uncollectible receivables from international sales during the period from 1
July 2020 to 31 December 2022 with a maximum compensation amount
of US$31,280,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB201,675,000). We
purchased such insurance in order to minimise our exposure to credit risk
as we expand our business. We plan to renew such insurance contracts
when they become due.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 3,165 employees
in total (31 December 2020: 3,331). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFhERELRE

Exg_cgjgive Directors
HITES

Mr. WANG Donglei (E£ ), aged 58, is an executive Director, chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company. He
is also the former chief executive officer of the Company (Mr. Wang has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company
on 22 February 2019, has been re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020 and
has been re-designated again from a non-executive Director of the Company to an executive Director on 17 July 2020). Mr.
Wang has been appointed as the chief technology officer of the Company with effect from 19 July 2021. He is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. In addition, Mr. Wang has been appointed as a director of Brilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013. He has many years of experience in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management. In 1996, Mr. Wang participated in the founding of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance
Co., Ltd.* (BB B E 2B EA ) (which was subsequently renamed as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z == EEER
&2 BBR/AE)) (“ETIC"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and the shares of which were listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in China in 2004) and served as the chairman and the general manager. He has been serving as a director and the
chairman of ETIC from 2001 and has resigned as the chairman of ETIC on 8 October 2018; and resigned as director of ETIC
on 11 May 2021. Mr. Wang graduated from China Dalian Institute of Technology (subsequently renamed as Dalian University of
Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He is the father of Mr. WANG Keven Dun. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is a non-
executive Director of the Company.
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Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (BR#¥5), aged 54, is an executive Director, the vice chairman, chief executive officer and vice
president of mature channels for overseas sales of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group in November 2018 and has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 22 February 2019. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. In addition, Ms. Chan has been appointed as a director of Birilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

From 1998 to 2004, Ms. Chan served as the general manager and vice president of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance Co.,
Ltd.* GkEEHEELS AR AT (how known as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#ESHEERRMHERAT) (‘ETICY), a
substantial shareholder of the Company), where she was in charge of the sales and marketing of global business; from 2004 to
2012, she served as the senior vice president of ETIC where she was in charge of the company’s global business strategy and
risk management; from 2012 to 2018, she served as the chief executive officer of Elec-Tech Solid State Lighting (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company mainly engaged in international LED lighting business. Ms. Chan graduated from University of
Saskatchewan where she obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1991, a Master’s degree in Engineering in 1993 and
an MBA degree in 1995.

FRaIEZt BE45 BRARBRMTESZ RIEER - BEENTERSIIHERNAEERNEH B LR
2018 F 11 AMAKREE N R2019F2B22HEEZEA AR EFHNTE - MWEAKABEABETHBABE
Eolbsh BRLZ T BE2019F 12812 B BT A A T K= A BBrilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd.KBrilliant Lights
International Holding Pte. Ltd.E 55 o
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Mr. XIAO Yu (B =), aged 62, is an executive Director of the Company and vice president of manufacturing of the Company.
Mr. Xiao joined the Group in May 2014 as a non-executive Director and re-designated as an executive Director in August 2014.
He is also a director/chairman of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xiao has extensive experience in enterprise production management. He once served as a senior officer in companies listed
in Mainland China for several years and therefore has in-depth knowledge and understanding on corporate governance and
enterprise management. From July 1986 to June 1996, Mr. Xiao worked in Beijing Beinei Group* (1t i IE W& E) as the deputy
chief coordinator and the party secretary of the Communist Party of China of the Central Coordination Office, during which
he was awarded the titles of Beijing Model Worker and Beijing Excellent Young Intellectual. He was the chairman and general
manager of Westar (Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (Ei#r3EZ&E 23 (P L) HiEHBRAF), a subsidiary
of ETIC Group from July 1996 to August 2004, was the deputy general manager of the ETIC Group and the chairman of Westar
(Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (Ei#rZ E 25 () &iEHBRA ) from September 2004 to February
2008, and was senior vice president of ETIC from March 2012 to December 2014. From May 2008 to December 2019, he
had successively served as the consultant to the president of ETIC Group, the chairman and general manager of Elec-Tech
Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEE SR ER L HRAF) and the general manager of Elec-Tech Photoelectric
Technology (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* EEHERBEABERILARAE). Mr. Xiao previously worked in different subsidiaries of ETIC
Group as: a director of Appliance of America (Zhuhai) Limited* (363823 (%8) BFR/AF)), an executive director of Elec-
Tech Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEEZHER LB R /A B and an executive director of Huizhou Thorled-
opto Co., Ltd.* (BINFBEAESFHARAT). M. Xiao graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology (later renamed as
Dalian University of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in 1985 and also graduated with an EMBA’s degree from School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University in 2008. He holds the engineer’s qualification certificate.
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Ms. CAO Qin (%), aged 38, is an executive Director of the Company. Ms. Cao joined the Group in July 2021. From June
2006 to March 2009, she served as the director of the foreign trading department of Wenzhou Feihong Packing Company
Limited* CRNRAT B EEHF R AE]); from April 2009 to August 2014, Ms. Cao served as the assistant to the general manager
of Manulife-Sinochem Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* (7= AZRBEABR/AE); and since March 2016, Ms. Cao has been serving
as the human resources director and the secretary to the chairman of Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Company Limited* (8
INE T HEREEERAE), formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 30% equity interest of which is indirectly
owned by the Company as of the date of this annual report. Ms. Cao also held directorships in certain subsidiaries of Brilliant
Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. As at the date of this annual report, the Company holds 30% equity interest in Brilliant
Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. On 10 August 2019, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to dispose of
a majority interest in the then China business of the Company to Brilliant Lights Investment Pte. Ltd., which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. Ms. Cao graduated from the Foreign Language School of Zhejiang
University i’ T A2) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in English.

EEL+38m BRARATMNATEST - BLXTHN2021FE7AMARAT c B20065E68 E2009FE38 » YA
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Non-executive Directors

FRITES

Mr. WANG Keven Dun (E£18), aged 29, is a non-executive Director of the Company (Mr. Wang has been re-designated from
an executive Director to a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020). Mr. Wang joined the Group in December 2016. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang has been the analyst in Compass Lexecon LLC. from August 2014
to December 2016. Mr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Molecular and Cell Biology from University of
California, Berkeley in 2014. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is the son of Mr. WANG Donglei. Mr. WANG Donglei is an executive Director
and the chairman of the Company.
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Mr. YE Yong (H5), aged 54, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ye joined the Company in November 2018.
He is a general manager of a subsidiary of the Company. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Ye served as the department manager of
Chongging Qinwang Company Limited* (EEZ B R/AF)), where he was involved in the foreign trade and management
matters; in 1994, he founded and had served as the chairman and general manager of Xiehe Lighting Company Limited* (%40
FRBAA FRA B till 1999. He founded Sichuan NVC Lighting Equipment Operations Co., Ltd.* (F9)1|5E ;- B BEEs M EZ B R A F)
(“Sichuan NVC”) in 1999 and has served as the chairman since then, in charge of sales and management of the Company's
business in Sichuan Province. Mr. Ye graduated from economical management department of Southwest University in 1991 with
a college diploma.

Mr. Ye and his spouse hold an aggregate of 281,472,000 shares of the Company, representing 6.66% of the issued shares of
the Company as of 31 December 2021.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (ZF#f§), aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lee joined
the Company in November 2012. He received a bachelor of arts degree from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in business from Curtin University of Technology in
Australia. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for over 29 years, until 2009, during which he held key leadership
positions in the development of EY in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Australia and New Zealand, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies: Chaowei Power Holdings Limited,
West China Cement Limited, China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GOME Retail Holdings Limited, Yashili International Holdings
Ltd., GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, WH Group Limited (the shares of all these companies are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange) and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He previously acted as an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
from November 2011 to May 2016, Tibet Water Resources Ltd (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) from March 2011 to February 2020 and China Rundong Auto Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on main
board of the Stock Exchange) from July 2014 to December 2020, respectively. Mr. Lee was a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province (R El#1m & B 1% Z &) in China from 2008 to 2017.
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Mr. WANG Xuexian (F2%c), aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin University of China with a Master’s degree in Civil Laws in January
1990. He is a lawyer in China, and his qualification for serving as an independent director has been approved by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. From January 1990 to the present, he has worked as an assistant professor and lecturer in Dalian University
of Technology. He currently serves as a deputy professor of Dalian University of Technology, a lawyer of Heng Xin Law Office*
(E=IB(EEMEFFN) in Liaoning. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in law studies, teaching and the work of lawyers, once
served as an independent director of several listed or unlisted companies in the Mainland China, and has in-depth knowledge
and understanding on domestic and overseas laws, corporate management and corporate governance. Mr. Wang acted as an
independent director of ETIC from April 2014 to October 2018.
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Mr. CHEN Hong (F&354), aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Company in
December 2021. He served as an engineer of Guangzhou Wenchong Shipyard Co., Ltd. * (BN SZH A IR S E A B) from
September 1986 to January 1991. From July 2002 to July 2020, Mr. Chen served as a lawyer of Guangdong Yinghui Law Firm*
(EERBEREMEFFN . Since August 2020, he has been serving as a lawyer of Guangdong Jiegao Law Firm* (EBERiES
7REIEFEFT) . Mr. Chen graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology* (K3 T 2 5%) (currently known as Dalian University of
Technology* (K32 T K2)) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in ship engineering in July 1986. He also obtained the legal
professional qualification certificate from the Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China in September 2002.

[REAEE > 568 BN AT EIUIERITEE - 2021 F12BMAKRAT c B1986F98 E1991F 18 KT E
NSRRI B RSEATEE LR ML L B2002F 78 E2020F7H ' B R R IB R M B F5FriEE 26
H2020FE8R i EERESRMEEMETEM o RAENICETBEENAET SR (RB | KEET K
B) ISR IREXE LB HIN2002FE08 EmE AR ANBE T Z S E T ERBEERK-

BLERERARAE 202155

43



Directors and Senior Management

EFENEREEE

Senior Management
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Mr. WANG Donglei (££ %), aged 58, is an executive Director, the chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company.
His biographical details are set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

FLERE HESR BEAARNTES EERAEFERME - MMWEABSNEELXTHITES —KT
LA o

Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (Ff#l33), aged 54, is the chief executive officer, vice chairman and the vice-president in charge
of the mature channel of the overseas sales of the Company. Her biographical details are set out above under the paragraph
headed “Executive Directors”.

BREIBUL LT BWER BREAARANEFEATE BESEREEEIINHEMARENR B - MHEAE T
BELEXATEST —RTHMA-

Mr. XIAO Yu (H ), aged 62, is the vice-president in charge of the manufacturing of the Company. His biographical details are
set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.
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Ms. CAO Qin (%), aged 38, is the in charge of human resources of the Company. Her biographical details are set out above
under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

BEEL Tt REssm B2EA AFRE-NEABNEELXRTESI —RPMA-

Mr. NG Hon Lun ({RF£Ef&), aged 41, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2020 as chief
financial advisor of the Company and was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company with effect from 5 January
2021. Mr. Ng has more than 19 years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng processed
professional accounting and auditing experience with RSM Hong Kong as deputy audit manager. After that, he acted as
financial controller in TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a company which shares were previously listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and were delisted in the year 2016 (stock code: 2618), vice president and chief financial
officer in Unisplendour Technology (Holdings) Limited (now known as Sino ICT Holdings Limited), a company which shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 365); and deputy general manager and financial controller in Shenzhen
Infinova Limited, a company which shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 2528), respectively. Mr. Ng
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accounting obtained in 2002.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Ms. XIE Dongmei (#§%18), Aged 48, is the general manager of Elec-Tech (Solid State Lighting (HK) Ltd. (‘HKSSL”), a
subsidiary of the Company, mainly in charge of the overall operation of all HKSSL business units and the manufacturing center
of Group. Ms. Xie joined the Group in November of 2018. She has many years of experience in oversea market development,
international business negotiation and operations management. She severed Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#E=HE
ZBRIRMHERAT) (‘ETIC"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, as sales manager and sales director etc. between
2003 and 2011. From 2012 to 2018, she served HKSSL as assistant general manager and executive deputy general manager.
In addition, Ms. Xie has been appointed as a director of NVC Lighting Japan K.K., a subsidiary of the Company effective from
December 2019. Ms. Xie graduated from Economics Department of Sun Yat-Sen University where she obtained Bachelor’'s
degree in Economics in 1995. She is also a certified Intermediate Economist and International Business Engineer.

HEBEZ LT BF48H BEA LB 2B ABIGRE (B8 AERTARAR (HRIRE)) RESEI ALK
FTEEEREEEH AR ERNEP LN EEEEEE L TR2018F11AMNMALXER - MMABFSEFEET
BETESITEERE BREEXARCEBEETELR N 2003EE201 1 EXATHESTHESERRS
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Ms. FAN Qianwen GEf§%), aged 48, is the sales vice deputy general manager of Elec-Tech (Solid State
Lighting (HK) Ltd. (“HKSSL”), a subsidiary of the Company, in charge of sales management and business
development. Ms. Fan joined the Group in July, 2012, has years of experience in oversea market
development and new business management. She served ETIC, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
as sales manager and sales vice-director etc. between 1998 and 2012. Ms. Fan graduated from Master’s
degree in International Marketing of Macquarie University in 2014.
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FREERPE (RRFAZEIERR) EEHECHE  HEARESHB BXLN2014FEXNEZR LS
ESBEMmGEHELIR-

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Directors and Senior Management

EFhERELRE

Mr. Gary Van WINKLE, aged 64, is the sales vice-president of ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc., a subsidiary of
the Company, in charge of sales management and business development. Mr. Winkle jointed the Group in
June 2011, has years of experience in oversea market development and new business management. He
joined Hunter Fan Company from 1986 to 2000 as salesperson and manufacturer representative. He joined
Carlon from 2000 to 2011 as National Sale Manager. He graduated from Bachelor of Economic of St. Cloud
State University.
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19868 20005 1 AHunter Fan Company’ #EE & 8 K 8IS {5 o I 122000F £2011F 1 ACarlon » #
FEEEHERE FEENEREEINLAS  ESRESRS2 T84

Mr. Akira MORITSUNE (7512%), aged 60, is the Executive Director of NVC Lighting Japan Co., Ltd. (“NVCJP”),
in charge of the overall operation of all NVCJP business unit since his appointment by the Group on 5 July
2021. After Mr. Moritsune graduated from Yokohama National University with a degree in economics, he
joined for Toshiba group company which is one of Japan’s leading international companies. He has led the
group for many years as head of sales for the lighting businesses which include housing, public facilities
building, lamps and equipment at Toshiba Lighting & Technology Corporation.
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Mr. LI Jin, aged 54, is the Senior Vice President of the Company, joined the Group in 2021. Mr. Li has rich experience in
the integration of R&D, production and marketing. From 1998 to 2019, Mr. Li served as Engineer, Director of Air-conditioning
Research Institute, General Manager of Air-conditioning Company of Sichuan Changhong Electric Co. Ltd., Vice General
Manager of Sichuan Changhong Electric Co. Ltd., General Manager of Sichuan Changhong Electronics Holding and Vice
Chairman of Sichuan Changhong Electric Co., Ltd. Mr. Li founded Shenzhen Ai-box Educational Technology Co. Ltd. in 2019,
and served as the chairman until 2021. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University with a doctor’s degree in engineering in 1998.
He is also a certified Senior Engineer, and granted a Special Allowance from the State Council.
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Mr. ZHANG Li, aged 52, is the General Manager of Environment Science R&D Center and the General Manager of IAQ Business
(Zhuhai) of the Company, joined the group in 2020. Mr. Zhang has rich experience in R&D. From 1992 to 2013, Mr. Zhang
served as the Senior Designer and R&D manager of the Zhuhai Gree Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.; from 2013 to 2016, he
worked at Midea Group Co., Ltd., where he was the Distinguished Expert and Innovation R&D Director of the Central Research
Institute; from 2016 to 2018, he worked at Shenzhen KONKA Smart Co., Ltd., where he served as Assistant President and
General Manager of R&D and Design; from 2018 to 2019, he served as chief technology officer and Vice President of Zhejiang
SAKACO Electric Appliance Co., Ltd; from 2019 to 2020, he served as Deputy General Manager of Kitchen Electricity BU and
Group Technical Director of Guangdong Vanward New Electric Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1992, and an EMBA from IPAG Business School in 2020. He is also a
certified Senior Engineer.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFhERELRE

Company Secretary
ARWE

Ms. TEH Lai Ching (B8R &), aged 50, is the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Teh is a director of KCAT Company
Secretarial Limited (TCSP Licence No.: TC006895), a professional service provider specializing in company secretarial
services. She has over 20 years of experience in company secretarial practice with main board listed companies and an
international professional law firm. Ms. Teh gained extensive knowledge and experience in corporate governance and regulatory
compliances. Other than the Company, Ms. Teh is currently also a named company secretary to another listed company of
which the shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Teh is a Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional. She is an Associate of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance
Institute of the UK & Ireland. Ms. Teh holds a MBA degree from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, Scotland and a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London, United Kingdom.
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The Board presents this report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Financial
Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to the
Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Group’s operations are conducted
mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group is principally engaged in the design, development, production,
marketing and sale of a variety of lighting products, and gradually extend
to non-lighting business areas. During the Reporting Period, there is
no significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The financial
performance of the principal activities of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the
consolidated financial statements on pages 169 to 170.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group’s interests in associates are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends
The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial

statements on pages 171 to 352 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) of the Company
is scheduled to be held on 17 June 2022. A notice convening the Annual

General Meeting will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in
due course.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
14 June 2022 to Friday, 17 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company‘s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 13 June 2022.

Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period of the
Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors facing the Group
are set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 13
to 34 of this annual report. The future business development of the Group
is set forth in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 12 of this annual
report. The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 13 to 34
of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations affecting the
operation of the Group significantly.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group acknowledges that our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development. The
Group is committed to the establishment of close relationship with our
employees and the provision of industrialised, chain-based and one-stop
solutions to our clients, and continues to strengthen the cooperation with
our business cooperative partners so as to attain the win-win outcome for
various parties and push ahead with the healthy and rapid development
of the lighting industry.
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Environmental Protection and Social
Responsibility

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable environmental
protection. As the well-known supplier for lighting products in the
industry, the Group shall comply with various environmental protection
laws and regulations formulated by the relevant international and local
government departments. The Group is the advocate pioneer for green
lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting Environment”: to
beautify the commercial and living space with artificial lighting, protect
the healthy living environment for mankind with energy-saving lighting for
environmental protection, and support the energy-saving environmental
protection business for the whole world with action taken. The Group will
go further to continue to carry out the enterprise social responsibilities as
a means of feedback to our society.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, the Group neither entered into nor had any equity-linked
agreement during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director
is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and profits of the
Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages, expenses or
liabilities incurred due to the execution of his/her duties or taken place
related to such execution. The Company has taken out the appropriate
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy for the Directors and
officers of the Group as a means of security.
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Financial Highlights

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five reporting periods is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this
annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 305 to 306 of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not grant any loans
to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to its associates or
make any guarantee for the facilities granted to its associates.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for the
Reporting Period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 275 to 276 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting Period are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on page 309 of
this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for
the Reporting Period are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 351 to 352 and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 173 to 174 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB2,545,732,000.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules for the Reporting Period and at any time prior to the date of this
annual report.
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Important Events after the Reporting Period

In January 2022, the Group paid RMB210,000,000 for subscription of
additional shares issued by BLIHP in order to maintain its 30% equity
interest in BLIHP.

In January 2022, the Group drew down a bank borrowing amounting to
RMB240,000,000 which is secured, interest bearing at 3.6% per annum
and repayable in year 2023.

Save as disclosed above, no other important events affecting the
Company occurred since 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company was incorporated.

Tax Allowances

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances granted to the
Company’s Shareholders due to their interests in its securities.

Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:
Executive Directors
WANG Donglei appointed as a non-executive Director on
11 January 2013, re-designated as an
executive Director on 2 February 2015,
resigned as the chief executive officer
on 22 February 2019, re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated again as an executive Director
on 17 July 2020 and appointed as the chief
technology officer on 19 July 2021
appointed as an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Company on
25 November 2018 and appointed as the
chief executive officer on 22 February 2019

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva

XIAO Yu appointed as a non-executive Director on
29 May 2014 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 8 August 2014
CAO Qin appointed on 19 July 2021

WANG Dongming appointed as an executive Director on
21 June 2013, re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated as executive Director on
1 May 2021 and retired at the Company’s

annual general meeting on 11 June 2021
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Non-executive Directors

WANG Keven Dun appointed as an executive Director on
12 December 2016 and re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020
YE Yong appointed as a non-executive Director
on 25 November 2018

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Kong Wai, Conway appointed on 28 November 2012

WANG Xuexian appointed on 29 May 2014
CHEN Hong appointed on 1 December 2021
JIA Hongbo appointed on 17 July 2020 and

resigned on 17 September 2021
Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 35 to 49 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with us that is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out in
the section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 75 to 97 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Save for certain continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, no
Director nor an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any
time during the Reporting Period.

Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG
Xuexian and Mr. CHEN Hong, the annual confirmation letter of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that the independent non-executive Directors were
independent from their respective date of appointment to 31 December
2021 and remain independent as of the date of this annual report.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period or at the end of the
Reporting Period was the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company
or the subsidiaries of its holding company, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the Model Code were as follows:
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(isE1)
YE Yong Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 274,039,000 (L) 6.48%
L] BEmEBA Rl
Spouse’s interest Ordinary Shares 7,433,000 (L) 0.18%
B Rl (Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
Notes: ik
1. The approximate percentage of the total issued Shares is 1. HEETRMDEHENBAOT DL 2BA

calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021, i.e. 4,227,280,649 Shares.

2. As these Shares are held by Ms. GAO Xia, the spouse of Mr. YE
Yong, Mr. YE Yong is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

3. (L) represents long position.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the provisions of the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had 5% or more interests
or short positions in the issued Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of Shares or of the total
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests Class of Shares underlying Shares issued Shares
(Note 1)
HERTRIM A
RREE EaE LeabE Rl R BRI R & B BT L
(Hrzt1)
Elec-Tech International (H.K.)  Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 740,346,000 (L) 17.51%
Company Limited EREAA EEVEL
ERHEER (B8 ERAH
ETIC Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 740,346,000 (L) 17.51%
EREE the substantial shareholder EER (Note 2)
EREMEGINEENER (Hrztz)
SU Lixin Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 649,350,649 (L) 15.36%
BRILH BaEBA EEk
Rising Wealth Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 638,400,000 (L) 156.10%
MAEBRRE BRBEEA EEk (Note 3)
(H13£3)
ZHAO Yu Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 638,400,000 (L) 15.10%
g the substantial Shareholder EER (Note 4)
TEREERNZENE DR (Hizt4)
Harbour Faith Enterprises Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 341,071,000 (L) 8.07%
Limited EaEEA EER
CHAN Sin Wa Carrie Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 341,071,000 (L) 8.07%
A E= the substantial Shareholder EER (Note &)
EREMEGINEENER (Hyzts)
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Notes:

6.

The approximate percentage of the total issued Shares is
calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021, i.e. 4,227,280,649 Shares.

These Shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to be interested
in all these Shares.

On 8 July 2021, Rising Wealth Limited reported its holding of
638,400,000 Shares since 3 August 2018 (the date of relevant
event).

On 2 August 2021, Ms. ZHAO Yu reported her holding of
638,400,000 Shares since 3 August 2018 (the date of relevant
event). These Shares were held by Rising Wealth Limited. As Rising
Wealth Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. ZHAO Yu, Ms. ZHAO Yu is
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

These Shares were held by Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited. As
Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. CHAN
Sin Wa Carrie, Ms. CHAN Sin Wa Carrie is deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

(L) represents long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and chief
executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which were recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

6.
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Restricted Share Unit Scheme

On 20 December 2018, the Board has approved the adoption of a
restricted share unit scheme. Pursuant to the restricted share unit
scheme, the Company may direct and procure the trustee to purchase
Shares (either on-market or off-market) to satisfy the restricted share
units upon vesting and to hold the purchased Shares on trust for the
relevant participants until such restricted share units are vested with the
relevant participants in accordance with the restricted share units scheme
rules. Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 20 December 2018. The restricted share units scheme has been
approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25 January 2019.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.

Interests of Directors in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors were aware, none of
the Directors nor their respective close associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any direct or indirect interests in any businesses that
constitutes or may constitute a competing business of the Company.

Save for those disclosed below by the Company, during the Reporting
Period, none of the Directors or their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company was interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of
the Group.
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Mr. WANG Donglei, an executive Director, the chairman and the chief
technology officer of the Company, holds 90% equity interest in Wuhu
Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (EHEREEFRAT). Wuhu Elec-
Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* FEMERKEFRAQE) previously held
16.02% of the shares of ETIC until it ceased to have any interest in ETIC
in August 2021. ETIC holds 17.51% of the shares capital of the Company
(i.e. 870,346,000 Shares) as at 31 December 2021. Mr. WANG Donglei
was previously a director of ETIC (resigned on 11 May 2021).

The principal business of ETIC is production and sale of small household
appliances and LED products, while the Group’s subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the production and sale of lighting products,
including a variety of LED lighting products. As a result, during the
beginning of the Reporting Period until (i) Mr. WANG Donglei resigned as
a director of ETIC on 11 May 2021; and (ii) Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment
Co., Ltd.* (EHNE=HEBFIRAE))ceased to have any interests in
ETIC in August 2021, whichever period is later, Mr. WANG Donglei
was deemed to be interested, directly or indirectly, in the business
that competed or might compete with that of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries.

Based on the Group’s internal governance and proper decision-
making mechanism, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms length from the competing business.

Controlling Shareholders and Their Pledge of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any controlling
shareholders.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Finished Products and Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement

The Company entered into a framework finished products and raw
materials purchase agreement on 10 December 2018 with ETIC (the
“ETIC Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed
to purchase finished products and raw materials including but not limited
to LED chips, LED power sources and LED lamp products from ETIC
and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between ETIC and its subsidiaries and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
The quality, quantity and technical standards of the products delivered by
ETIC and its subsidiaries must meet the Company’s standards as set out
in the sub-contract for each purchase order. The prices charged by ETIC
and its subsidiaries will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the parties with reference to the prevailing market price. The
term of the framework agreement is three years commencing on 1
January 2019. The Company entered into such purchase agreement
given the Group has a continuous demand for the relevant finished
products and raw materials in the next three years and the fees
charged by ETIC and its subsidiaries are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details). In view
of the better-than-expected demand for ETIC’s products, the Company
expected that the original annual cap for the transactions under the ETIC
Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 will not be
sufficient to meet the Company’s requirements. Accordingly, the Board
approved to revise upward the annual cap for the transactions under the
ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21 August 2019 for details).
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The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the years ending 31 December 2020 and 2021 are
RMB180,000,000, RMB98,000,000 and RMB98,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the ETIC Purchase Agreement was RMB75,815,000
which did not exceed the annual cap.

As the ETIC Purchase Agreement entered between the Company and
ETIC expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to
continue carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and
usual course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework finished products and raw materials purchase agreement with
ETIC (the“New ETIC Purchase Agreement”) on 26 November 2021, which
the Company agreed to purchase finished products and raw materials
including but not limited to LED chips, LED power sources and LED lamp
products from ETIC and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. The
New ETIC Purchase Agreement has a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Purchase Agreement for the years
ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 will be RMB129,000,000,
RMB129,000,000 and RMB129,000,000, respectively.
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ETIC Sales Agreement

The Company entered into a framework sales agreement (the “ETIC Sales
Agreement”) on 10 December 2018 with ETIC, pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to sell finished products and raw materials including
but not limited to LED luminaire products to ETIC and its associates
on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, ETIC and its associates are connected persons of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions
between ETIC and its associates and the Company constitute connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. The quality, quantity
and technical standards of the products delivered by the Group must
meet ETIC and its associates’ standards as set out in the sub-contract
for each sales order. The prices charged by the Group will be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market price. The term of the framework agreement is three
years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into such
sales agreement given the continued demand for such finished products
and raw materials by ETIC and its associates in the next three years and
the fees paid/payable by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for
details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us from ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the ETIC Sales Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the years ending 31 December 2020 and 2021 are
RMB98,000,000, RMB98,000,000 and RMB98,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by us from ETIC
and its subsidiaries under the ETIC Sales Agreement was RMB4,907,000
which did not exceed the annual cap.

As the ETIC Sale Agreement entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework sales agreement (the “New ETIC Sales Agreement”) with
ETIC on 26 November 2021, which the Company agreed to sell finished
products and raw materials including but not limited to LED luminaire
products to ETIC and its associates on a non-exclusive basis. The New
ETIC Sale Agreement has a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26
November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us from ETIC
and its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales Agreement for the years
ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 will be RMB28,000,000,
RMB28,000,000 and RMB28,000,000, respectively.
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The Lease Agreement |

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
from ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement I”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by ETIC and its associates will be
agreed following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with
reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement
| is three years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company decided
to enter into the Lease Agreement | given the Group has a continuous
demand for the relevant properties in the next three years and the rent
charged by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts paid by us to ETIC and
its associates under the Lease Agreement | for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the years ending 31 December 2020 and 2021 are
RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the Former Lease Agreement | was RMB541,000
which did not exceed the annual cap.

As the Lease Agreement | entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed lease
agreement ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain
properties from ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease Agreement I”).
The New Lease Agreement | has a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26
November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement | for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 will be RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000
and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

Report of Directors

EFGRS

HE R

2018&125105 KRB HBESEERTIL

T—HhHERE BLAEEREEES
TﬁL&HHﬁ‘?ﬁA%ﬁ‘I“?%%(F%ﬁ 5%
—1) HREBEEEEALLADTERE B
SEENREBEBEALAARTBEAL (T
EZR(LMHEL)) MEFEHEREBREA
HEARANT ZENZZBEMR EHTREFE14A
EETHEBXZ B FHENSE
MENABBHENZIEBERENEEBSR -
EEEEREBEAFRMBEBMNBESE B
BRESEBAATER2BEHSRTWERE
HEET ZHEEWHZE—B2019F181HIE
AP ZF - BERAEBN KL =ZFHER
MENFEER BESHERAEBEA
TS EERF I MALRBARE
D]’i%ﬁ Tgfjwﬁa (Di'ﬁu)ﬁ%%zk/\__”aﬁﬂ;%
2018128 10HMIAE) ©

B E20194F ~ 2020F K& 2021F12H31H 1
FE - EMEERE MENSAESHE
EREBMBANRSEEHZESNAAR
M5EEE\AEM5E%E$D)\E¢§5E%

JT ©

RREFERN  HMAMREERZ —ME
HTHEERERENBATINERERA
ARESMNT T REBBRBFE LR

AR A NS EGEsEHET UNEERE—
BER2021F12831H Em > M4~ A =) % 4
BR—REOREXEREPEESHEE
TETR %’lltt K@jﬁj\fu%/FﬁLuTi
TEHREEYZ BILAEEREEES
HEREBRBRAEEETYE ((FHEES
Hm—) oM EHE— Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ,gzozziﬂﬂ
1HE=F GEEBL2EA AT HEA2021
F11H26HMAE) ©

B E20224F ~ 2023F /& 2024F12H31H 1t
FE CHMMmEERE —MENESE
EZERENBRAENERSFEHLEINAA
EsEET )\Ei%é'ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ/\w&%é’
Bite

BLERERARAE 202155

65



66

Report of Directors

EXTHRS

The Lease Agreement Il

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
to ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement II”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by the Group will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to the
prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement Il is three years
commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into the Lease
Agreement |l given ETIC and its associates have a continuous demand
for such properties in the next three years and the rent paid/payable by
ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts received by us from ETIC and
its associates under the Lease Agreement Il for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 and the year ending 31 December 2021 are
RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by us from
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the Former Lease Agreement Il was
RMB1,228,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.

As the Lease Agreement Il entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
lease agreement with ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease
certain properties to ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease Agreement
I1”). The New Lease Agreement Il has a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement Il for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 will be RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000
and RMB5,000,000, respectively.
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Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a transportation and warehousing services
framework agreement (the “ETIC Transportation and Warehousing
Services Framework Agreement”) on 22 December 2017 with ETIC,
pursuant to which the Group agrees to provide transportation and
warehousing services to ETIC and its associates. As ETIC is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are connected
persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under the Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules. Individual agreements will be entered into between the parties
with respect to the specific services pursuant to the terms of the ETIC
Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework Agreement. Such
individual agreements will be entered in the ordinary and usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms. The payment arrangement
should be provided in the individual agreements. The prices charged
by the Group will be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between
the parties with reference to the prevailing market price. The term of
the ETIC Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework is three
years commencing from 1 January 2018. The entering of the ETIC
Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework Agreement will
enable the Company to (i) enhance the customer base in the field of
transportation and warehousing services; and (i) expand sources of
income by providing transportation and warehousing services (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2017 for
details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us from ETIC
and its associates under the ETIC Transportation and Warehousing
Services Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2018,
and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020 are RMB60,000,000,
RMB80,000,000 and RMB100,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction with ETIC
under the ETIC Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement.
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Sales Framework Agreement with Sichuan NVC

The Company entered into a sales framework agreement (the “Sales
Framework Agreement with Sichuan NVC”) on 20 December 2018
with Sichuan NVC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to sell finished
products and raw materials including but not limited to LED luminaire
products to Sichuan NVC and its associates on a non-exclusive basis.
Sichuan NVC is an associate of Mr. YE Yong, a non-executive Director
of the Company, as the spouse of Mr. YE Yong is interested in over 30%
equity interests of Sichuan NVC. Therefore, Sichuan NVC is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and
accordingly, the proposed transactions under the Sales Framework
Agreement with Sichuan NVC constitute connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Individual agreements will be entered
into between the parties with respect to the specific finished products
and raw materials pursuant to the terms of the Sales Framework
Agreement with Sichuan NVC. Such individual agreements will be entered
in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The payment arrangement should be provided in the individual
agreements. The prices charged by the Group for the finished products
and raw materials will be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between
the parties with reference to the prevailing market prices. The term
of the Sales Framework Agreement with Sichuan NVC is three years
commencing from 1 January 2019. The Company entered into such sales
framework agreement given the continued demand for such finished
products and raw materials by Sichuan NVC and its associates in the
next three years and the fees paid/payable by Sichuan NVC and its
associates are competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 20 December 2018 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us under the
Sales Framework Agreement with Sichuan NVC for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the years ending 31 December 2020 and 2021 are
RMB38,000,000, RMB39,000,000 and RMB38,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction with
Sichuan NVC under the Sales Framework Agreement.
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Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement with Sichuan NVC

The Company entered into a transportation and warehousing
services framework agreement (the “Sichuan NVC Transportation and
Warehousing Services Framework”) on 20 December 2018 with Sichuan
NVC, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide transportation
and warehousing services to Sichuan NVC and its associates on a non-
exclusive basis. Sichuan NVC is an associate of Mr. YE Yong, a non-
executive Director of the Company, as the spouse of Mr. YE Yong is
interested in over 30% equity interests of Sichuan NVC. Therefore,
Sichuan NVC is a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and accordingly, the proposed transactions
under the Sichuan NVC Transportation and Warehousing Services
Framework constitute connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The quality, quantity and technical standards of
the services delivered by the Group must meet Sichuan NVC and its
associates’ standards as set out in the sub-contract for each service
order. The prices charged by the Group will be agreed upon arm’s length
negotiations between the parties with reference to the prevailing market
price. The term of the Sichuan NVC Transportation and Warehousing
Services Framework is three years commencing from 1 January 2019.
The Company entered into such Sichuan NVC Transportation and
Warehousing Services Framework Agreement given the continued
demand for such services by Sichuan NVC and its associates in the next
three years and the fees paid/payable by Sichuan NVC and its associates
are competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20
December 2018 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us under the
Sichuan NVC Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the years ending
31 December 2020 and 2021 are RMB1,900,000, RMB2,000,000 and
RMB2,100,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction with
Sichuan NVC arising from the Sichuan NVC Transportation and
Warehousing Services Framework Agreement.
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Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors, who confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(if) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iif) according to relevant agreements governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s the
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued a
letter containing a conclusion that the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group above have no non-compliance with Rule 14A.56
of Listing Rule. The auditor’s letter has confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group as stated in this annual report;

(iif) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the continuing connected
transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded their respective annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 set out in the previous announcements
of the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
certain transactions with “related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards, which include transactions that constitute
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with. Details
of the material related party transactions are disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Disclosures Pursuant to Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 3,165 employees
in total (31 December 2020: 3,331). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.

Employee Training

The Group regards training management as a part of its daily operations,
and continuously improves its internal staff training system to better
help staff to improve their professional skills. According to the work
and training needs of each department, we formulate scientific and
reasonable employee training and development plans. In terms of training
forms, we combine classroom lectures with practical operations to
encourage employees to apply what they have learned. After the training,
the Group also conducts an effectiveness assessment to understand
the learning outcomes of employees. If the assessment result is not
satisfactory, we will improve the training method or reorganize the training
according to the situation.

Remuneration Policy

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our employees based
on their performance, qualifications and our results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are determined
by our Remuneration Committee with reference to our results of
operations, their individual performance and the comparable market
statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which a
Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five highest-paid
individuals are set out in note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 269 to 273 of this annual report,
respectively.
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Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in the
housing fund and the contribution pension scheme operated by local
governments. Under these schemes, the Group is required to pay to
the contribution pension scheme based on a certain percentage of the
remuneration of its employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the housing fund and pension scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions made under the housing
fund and pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the Scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the relevant local government authorities in the United
States, Japan and Vietnam etc.. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to retirement
benefits from the scheme. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement scheme up to the time of the retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resign before retirement, at a
percentage that is specified by the local government authorities.

The Company may not utilise any forfeited contributions in order to make
fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme from continuing operations were
RMB26,500,000. Details of the Group’s contributions to the housing
fund and pension scheme are set out in note 13 on page 268 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Charitable Contributions

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of approximately
RMB89,000 from the continuing operations.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales of goods or
rendering of services to our largest customer and top five customers
accounted for 30% and 71% of the Group’s total revenue respectively;
and the purchases of goods and services from our largest suppliers
and top five suppliers accounted for 17% and 43% of the Group’s total
purchase respectively.

During the Reporting Period, one of our top 5 suppliers is controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the Company, from which the Group purchased
finished products and raw materials. Please refer to certain continuing
connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report for details. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had, at any time during the Reporting Period, a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance

The requirements under the New CG Code which came into effect on
1 January 2022 shall apply to the Company’s corporate governance
report for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2022. During the
Reporting Period, the Directors are of the opinion that the Company had
complied with the principles and codes provisions set out in the Previous
CG Code (the requirements under which are applicable to the Reporting
Period), except for code provision A.5.1 of the Previous CG Code, from
which the Company has once variated but then has complied with during
Reporting Period. Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 75 to 98 of this annual report for further details.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been
made to all Directors, and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with all relevant requirements as set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Auditor

On 9 October 2020, BDO Limited (“BDQ”) resigned as the auditor of the
Company. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was then appointed as
the external auditor of the Company.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related notes thereto
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte, to the amounts set out in the Group’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte as our auditor will be submitted for

Shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of
independent auditor during the preceding three years.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
8 April 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Company’s corporate governance practices during the Reporting
Period are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Previous CG Code in force during the Reporting Period.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The requirements under the New CG Code which came into effect on 1
January 2022 shall apply to the Company’s corporate governance report
for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2022.

During the Reporting Period, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Company had complied with the principles and code provisions set out
in the Previous CG Code (the requirements under which are applicable to
the Reporting Period), except for the following code provision.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was upgraded to
Rule 3.27 of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2022) required
that, inter alia, nomination committee established by a listed issuer
should comprise a majority of independent non-executive directors. On
17 September 2021, Mr. JIA Hongbo resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director, he therefore ceased to act as, inter alia, a member of
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”).
Consequently, the number of members of the Nomination Committee
was reduced from three to two and thus failed to meet the composition
requirement of the nomination committee under Code Provision A.5.1 of
the Previous CG Code. Subsequently, Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and also appointed as, inter alia,
a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 December
2021. Since then, the Company has complied with the composition
requirement of the nomination committee under Code Provision A.5.1 of
the Previous CG Code.
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Model Code For Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”).

The Company is not aware of any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.

Board of Directors

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a

Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises the following Directors:

WANG Donglei (Chairman and chief
technology officer)

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

XIAO Yu

CAO Qin (appointed on 19 July 2021)

Executive Directors

WANG Dongming (retired at the
Company’s annual general
meeting on 11 June 20217)

Non-executive Directors WANG Keven Dun

YE Yong
Independent LEE Kong Wai, Conway
Non-executive WANG Xuexian
Directors CHEN Hong
(appointed on 1 December 2021)
JIA Hongbo

(resigned on 17 September 2021)

The biographical information of the existing Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 35 to 49 of
this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective
Director’s biography under the section “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 35 to 49 of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was rearranged to
Code Provision C.2.1 of the New CG Code) stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Donglei serves as the chairman
of the Company and Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva serves as the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Company had fully complied with
the principles and Code Provision A.2.1 as set out in the Previous CG
Code (which was rearranged to Code Provision C.2.1 of the New CG
Code).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of Listing Rules required every board of directors
of a listed issuer must including at least three independent non-executive
directors and an issuer must appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board. On 17 September
2021, Mr. JIA Hongbo resigned as independent non-executive Director.
Following his resignation, the Board comprised eight Directors, only
two of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The number of
independent non-executive Directors at that time fell below the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. On
1 December 2021, Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. With the appointment of Mr. CHEN Hong as
independent non-executive Director, the Company has fully complied with
the minimum number of independent non-executive directors requirement
under Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Since then, the Board
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-
third of the Board. One of them is possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway,
Mr. WANG Xuexian, Mr. CHEN Hong in respect of their independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors were independent from their respective date of appointment to
31 December 2021.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was deleted
under the New CG Code) stipulates that Non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, while Code Provision
A.4.2 of the Previous CG Code (which was rearranged to Code Provision
B.2.2 of the New CG Code) states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years with effect from their respective
date of appointment unless terminated by not less than three months’
written notice served by either the executive Directors or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years with effect from their respective date of appointment unless
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served by either
the non-executive Directors/independent non-executive Directors or the
Company.

The above appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next
following annual general meeting after appointment.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. CAO Qin, appointed on 19 July
2021, has been re-elected as an executive Director at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting held on 24 August 2021; and Mr. CHEN
Hong, appointed on 1 December 2021, has been re-elected as an
independent non-executive Director at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 December 2021.

EXERRS

BHATEFCREARTITURB AL IR
FZEHRTEFTHAARBUADR=EA
WEEBBNMRILEGX SRIZFGHNESR
BEEEMESAH=F"

BT EFTKRBUFATEFEREHA
FRBRUZEE BIFZFERITES
SEBIUFFRTESTHARBAUBEHA DR
—ERAzEEBANMARILEH  TRZE
BHNERERZEEMESAR=F-

LHRERRABTAABEBERETNES
BREKRBESRIEE

RIBEARBNEBEZMRIE83B)F - E
HEZEEMEREZRZNEEFTHARN
HEZFREXARRAG LERREE
EFEHEZEMMAEZESTEZEFTANES
FET—RRRAFAEGHRREE

REEFEER R2021F78 198 EZEN
EELTERARBE2021F8824H £
THREFIAT LESELANITES
MK iR2021FE1281 B E ZEBIBRA &
ERAAT E2021FE12828H£THIKRE
BAAE FESEEABIUIERITES

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH

79



80

Corporate Governance Report
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In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a director
throughout the meeting at which he retires. The directors to retire by
rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
directors to retire by rotation) any director who wishes to retire and not
to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further directors so to retire
shall be those of the directors subject to retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so
that as between persons who became or were last re-elected directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Accordingly, Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva,
Mr. YE Yong and Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. None of the Directors
who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting or any other Directors has a service contract with us that is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.
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The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the chief executive officer and the senior management.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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The records of continuous professional development relating to director’s
duties, regulatory requirements and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are

summarised as follows:

Name of Directors

EENEZE2021F12A318 EEERIIN
EHEERS EEEBERKEBRLEEMNT
BUHENREERDHBEANOT -

Type of Training "o’

EEHS $3 2 4 B oz
Executive Directors WMITES
WANG Donglei FLE AB
CHAN Kim Yung, Eva PR & 18 A°B
XIAO Yu HF A'B
CAO Qin &= A’ B
WANG Dongming (Note 2) F LB (fzt2) N/A 3E F
Non-executive Directors ERHITES
WANG Keven Dun Tig AB
YE Yong =) A°B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
LEE Kong Wai, Conway FEE A’B
WANG Xuexian FE2% AB
CHEN Hong [R5 AB
JIA Hongbo (Note 2) BALK (Hfat2) N/A % A
Notes: izt
1. Types of Training 1. 5285
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, A 2B IR2 > 8FEERRRNAE
briefings, seminars, conferences and workshops g g -gEMNEEN
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, B: BB AERE FT B IREN ~ SRAR S HR T~
magazines and relevant publications M SSAIAERE AR
2. Mr. WANG Dongming retired at the Company’s annual general 2. FRBELEER2021E6B11HMAAT IR

meeting on 11 June 2021 and Mr. JIA Hongbo resigned on 17
September 2021.

REFARE LRME MBALKLER2021
FIR1THEHE
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Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy and Planning Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the Previous CG Code and the New CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include maintaining
relationship with the auditor of the Group, reviewing financial information
of the Group, supervising the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control system of the Group, and the duties of corporate
governance delegated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to review the annual financial results for the year ended 31 December
2020, the interim results and reports for the period ended 30 June 2021
and to review significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, re-appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works connected transactions and arrangements for employees
to raise concerns about possible improprieties, as well as reviewing the
corporate governance compliance.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also met the external
auditor twice.
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Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to comprise
a minimum of three members with independent non-executive Directors
in majority and at least one member with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
On 17 September 2021, Mr. JIA Hongbo ceased to act as a member
of the Audit Committee. Following the cessation, the members of
the Audit Committee decreased from three to two, falling below the
minimum number of three required under the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee. The Company also failed to meet the composition
requirement of the audit committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
On 1 December 2021, Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee. With the appointment, the Company has complied
with the composition requirement of the Audit Committee under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

As of the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG Xuexian and
Mr. CHEN Hong, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
LEE Kong Wai, Conway, with appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting or related finance management expertise, is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the Previous CG Code and the
New CG Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item (i)
under the Code Provision B.1.2(c) of the Previous CG Code (which
was rearranged to code provision E.1.2 (c) of the New CG Code), i.e.,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met four
times to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the performance
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management, and review the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and other related matters, including recommending the
reduction of directors’ remunerations during the Reporting Period.
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As of the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, executive Director Ms. CHAN Kim
Yung, Eva, independent non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai,
Conway and independent non-executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian,
respectively. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in note
14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
269 to 273 of this annual report, the remuneration of the other senior
management of the Company falls in the following bands:
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SREEREAY
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7T 3
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Nomination Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the Previous CG Code and the
New CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Director Nomination Policy below that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee met four
times to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and to
consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election
at the annual general meeting and extraordinary general meetings, and
to consider the appointment of Director and chief technology officer. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was upgraded
to Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules) requires an issuer to establish
a Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the board or
an independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. On 17 September 2021, Mr. JIA
Hongbo ceased to act as a member of the Nomination Committee.
Following the cessation, the members of the Nomination Committee
decreased from three to two, falling below the minimum number of three
required under the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.
The Company also failed to meet the composition requirement of the
Nomination Committee under Code Provision A.5.1 of the Previous
CG Code (which was upgraded to Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules). On
1 December 2021, Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as a member of
the Nomination Committee. With the appointment, the Company has
complied with the composition requirement of the Nomination Committee
under Code Provision A.5.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was
upgraded to Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules).
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As of the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, executive Director and chairman of the
Company Mr. WANG Donglei, independent non-executive Director Mr.
LEE Kong Wai, Conway and independent non-executive Director Mr.
CHEN Hong, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional
and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all
levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a
diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is
sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable objectives.
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The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

. Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

o Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors

at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is to
propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the Company
for the Board’s consideration.

As of the date of this annual report, the Strategy and Planning Committee
consists of four members, namely, executive Director Mr. WANG Donglei,
executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu, executive Director Ms. CHAN Kim
Yung, Eva and independent non-executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian,
respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman of the Strategy and
Planning Committee. During the Reporting Period, one meeting was
convened by the Strategy and Planning Committee.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has delegated the responsibility for performing the functions
set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the Previous CG Code (which was
rearranged to Code Provision A.2.1 of the New CG Code) to the Audit
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
Previous CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Attendance Records of Directors

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic means
of communication, of a majority of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held nine Board meetings in
total. The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:

RBEFER XRABAHBOTARESRS
TR -BEFHRNREFERTHNES
BREZLZEGERURELRITREXRG
BYECERE TN T & ¢

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ ERBTRY
Strategy and
Planning
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee g Meeting
Name of Director EEiy Ex® ERZEY FHZeg 2 Re%ET  RIZEg BREAE
WANG Donglei I4E 9/9 44 17 3/3
CHAN Kim Yong, Eva BaIA 9/9 4/4 11 3/3
XIAO Yu HF 9/9 11 3/3
CAO Qin (Note 1) EZ (Hfzt1) 5/5 2/2
WANG Dongming (Note 2) TLH (HE2) 3/3 0/1
WANG Keven Dun T 9/9 3/3
YE Yong M 99 3/3
LEE Kong Wai, Conway THEE 9/9 2/2 4/4 4/4 3/3
WANG Xuexian I2% 9/9 2/2 4/4 11 2/3
JIA Hongbo (Note 3) ALK (1323) 4/4 212 303 202
CHEN Hong (Note 4) ok (Hrit4) 11 N/A 7B N/A 7B N/A R
Notes: Vioz2n
1. Ms. CAO Qin was appointed as an executive Director on 19 July 1. EELTR2021FE7B10BEEZ T AT
2021. =
2. Mr. WANG Dongming retired at the annual general meeting of the 2 FRBFHLER2021FE6H11HI AN F G

Company on 11 June 2021.
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3. Mr. JIA Hungbo resigned as independence non-executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 17 September 2021.

4. Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as independence non-executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 1 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, no Board or Committee meeting was
attended by a Director’s alternate.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Reporting Period.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board confirms its responsibilities for the risk management and
internal control of the Group and shall examine its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee to safeguard the assets and investment of the
Group as well as the interests of Shareholders. The risk management and
internal control system aims at the management but not the elimination of
risks of failure to attain the business target, and only provides reasonable
but not absolute guarantee for not having material misstatements or
losses.

Characteristics of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company, and the program for reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system:

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal
control system, continue to inspect its effectiveness and warrant that the
Group shall establish and maintain the effective risk management and
internal control system; inspect the risk management and internal control
system of the Group at least once a year; supervise the management
in respect of the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control system.
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The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the inspection of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company; the
assessment for the outcome of the evaluating and auditing the risk
management and internal control system; the supervision and promotion
of rectifying the defects of the risk management and internal control;
the discussion with the management over the risk management and
internal control system in order to ensure that the management has
performed its duties to set up the effective system; at the same time,
proactively or upon the appointment by the Board, the research in
respect of the material investigation outcome regarding the matters of
the risk management and internal control system and the response of the
management for the outcome of the investigation.

The management shall undertake the duties of risk management and
internal control; formulate the appropriate strategy in response to the
risk; conduct the risk alert in advance and promptly issue the risk
management report; at the same time, be responsible for evaluating the
internal control; identify the defects of the internal control and formulate
the rectification scheme; inform the Board and the Audit Committee of
the relevant information.

Programs for lIdentifying, Assessing and Managing the
Material Risk:

Risk identification: to determine the standards for measuring the risk;
identify the potential risk which may affect the Group.

Risk assessment: to assess the identified risk and classify the level of the
risk.

Risk response: to select the strategy in response to the level of the
risk for the risk control department to follow up whether the strategy in
response is effective; at the same time, formulate the relevant policy in
response to avoid the recurrence of the risk or minimise the relevant risk.

Risk supervision: to continue the regular inspection of the relevant risk;
promptly revise the risk management and internal control procedure;
ensure that the relevant controlling procedure is appropriate and effective;
provide the management and the Board with the regular report on the
outcome of risk supervision.

The Company has set up the internal audit and risk control department to
regularly monitor and assess the internal risk and control system of each
department in order to determine the risk which may affect the business
and other aspects of the Group (including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information safety).
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With the support from the Audit Committee, the Board, having examined
the risk management and internal control system for the year as of 31
December 2021 (including the financial, operational and compliance
control) by means of the risk assessment report and the internal audit
report, is of the opinion that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual examination has also covered the adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Company has set up the program for the purpose of issue-reporting,
so as to encourage the employees of the Company to express their
concerns on the premise of confidentiality in respect of the potential
misconduct concerning the financial report, the internal control or other
matters of the Company.

As for the surveillance and disclosure of the inside information, the
Company has adopted the policy for the disclosure of inside information,
with the aim to ensure that the internal personnel shall comply with
the requirements for confidentiality and perform the responsibility for
the disclosure of inside information. The policy has expressly set forth
the identification of inside information and the decision-making tree for
taking the required action. The employees and other relevant parties shall
maintain strict confidentiality in respect of the inside information. In the
event of disclosing the inside information, it shall be made on the fair, true
and effective basis.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 161 to 168 of this
annual report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit and non-audit
services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

% EM A =
AATRBEFENBRRIFBERRE X
IFARADIREBMEY « HEHRS
TR SR T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category R#EER gt ENER
RMB’000
FARY
Audit Services: BIZRT
— mainly related to annual audit —FESRFEE 4,270
Non-audit Services: EBEZIRT :
— mainly related to interim review —FE N R HIER 780
- mainly related to financial advisory and — BRI EER MR B R
tax consultancy services 1,185
6,235

Company Secretary

Ms. TEH Lai Ching has been appointed as the Company’s company
secretary. Ms. Teh is a director of KCAT Company Secretarial Limited,
a professional services provider specializing in company secretarial
services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.
Mr. NG Hon Lun, the chief financial officer of the Company has been
designated as the primary contact person at the Company which would
work and communicate with Ms. TEH Lai Ching on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. TEH Lai Ching has undertaken not less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
all resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands, and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened by the
Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition,
sign the requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company
secretary or the primary contact person of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies
Law (2020 Revision) or the Articles of Association of the Company.
However, Shareholders who wish to put forward proposal at general
meetings may convene an EGM following the procedures set out above.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send

written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions for the
general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned above to the
primary contact person of the Company as set out below:

Name:
Address:

The Chairman of NVC International Holdings Limited

Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2375 1385

Email: ir@nvc-international.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. The chairman of the Board as well as chairman of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees will
make themselves available at the annual general meetings to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the Reporting Period, there were no amendments made to the
constitutional documents to the Company. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.nvc-international.com, where information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.
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Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the Previous CG Code (which
was rearranged to Code Provision F.1.1 of the New CG Code) that has
become effective from 1 January 2019. In recommending or declaring
dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
Shareholder value. The Company intends to distribute no less than 30%
of its annual net profits as dividends to its Shareholders, subject to the
conditions and factors as set out below.

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders of the Company, subject to the Memorandum and Articles
of the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations
and the factors set out below. The Board shall also take into account
the following factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends, including financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders,
any restrictions on payment of dividends and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as interim
dividend, final dividend, special dividend and any distribution of net profits
that the Board may deem appropriate. Any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. The Company may declare
and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that

cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

EXERRS

BLIR R AR ER

FRABERERRBERER  UERZE
RERRNERKRBEFE - ZBHKRT U
TR LERAETZAM

ANBERBREPXEATINTAEX
FEASKE (EHAFCEE AT TEIE
NEF1.11E) (B2019F181BEER) » 7
REIRNRAREBEK REZRE KK
ER > ARG EHTEMIRSHE  LUEN
HEBESER RAFEREURERERS
B -EFETINEEREAENERT &R
AROERESRANIVDREFEERNEDN
30%  EARKRE

BEARDHEBESRERMRMR -FIEE
BZRZBERTIRR EFEINEE
ERDTKRETFTEATDRR - EFEEE
RERKRER BRNEETIARASE
ENEER BEMBEE - HeRARAR 2
BRI RS RIREERWRABEEZFE K
Fe sz 5t &~ RER AV o ~ A IR AR B AY
REIREFTEERSEFRNETAEMEA
?O

RIR A2 B K 2 & B B9 B BUK R MU £ 4t
HHEREAZR EFEARMEFEENHH
BEKR/AERFARE-FERE F5
RERERNEFTERREENFHEDIK
ERRE -ERNEERSHACKRAE-
FABHUURE - URAEXNESTEIR
BENEMAAERKRIKMRE - ERK
FERNREEREBEARDMERERE KE K
MBI 2 W EERA QT -

EFEREBRAIHREREER
REEEEN

BMEERMERNEHNERNEARTAMBRE
ROUHARTANFELERENERE KR
& o

BLERERARAE 202155

97



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R ERERHRS

About the Report

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance Report of NVC
International Holdings Limited (the “Group” or “we”). Based on the
principle of openness and transparency, we report to all stakeholders in
a comprehensive and objective manner the performance of the Group
on Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) topics in 2021. For
information on the corporate governance section, please see pages 75 to
97 of the Annual Report.

Reporting Guideline and Principle

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Core Option of the Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting
Standards, and the actual situation of the Group. The contents and data
disclosed in this Report are based on internal records and files of the
Group. This Report is based on the reporting principles of “materiality”,

n o«

“guantitative”, “balance” and “consistency” as follows:
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e |n order to maintain

engagement,

we identify ESG

issues that have
significant economic,
environmental and
social impacts due to
our operations and
have a significant
impact on stakeholder
assessments and
decisions, and respond
in this Report.
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the “Performance
Data Summary” in
this Report for the
calculation method of
the data contained in
this Report and the
reference standards.

o AIREPRE BRI
BH%E URBEHR
= FRRNEIREZ
THBEREBEHE -

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

positive and negative
impacts arising from the
Group’s operations for
review by stakeholders.
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the comparability of
information, unless
otherwise stated, the
statistical method of
disclosures in this Report
is consistent with the
past and presented in a
meaningful comparative
manner.
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Reporting Boundary and Reporting Period

During the year, the Group reviewed the process of defining the reporting
boundary. The threshold is set at companies which we have a stake
exceeding 50%. The social performance data in the Report cover the
Guangdong Zhuhai headquarter office and Greater China Business
Center of NVC International Holdings Limited, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base,
Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai Base and Vietnam NVC; the
environmental performance data cover Greater China Business Center,
Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai
Base and Vietnam factory. The Reporting Period is the financial year from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Feedback

We are committed to providing more comprehensive and accurate
ESG information to stakeholders and welcome your comments and
suggestions on this report. Contact information is as follows:

NVC International Holdings Limited

Address: Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science
Park, Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email address: ir@nvc-international.com

Tel: (852) 3970 2238/3970 2237

Fax: (852) 2865 1638

Website: www.nvc-international.com
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

In 2021, while the pandemic was still around, there were global
challenges and opportunities. We remained customer-oriented to focus
on the fields of environment, life, health, etc., and organically combined
the concept of sustainable development with brand upgrading. We
took natural elements as the starting point, and with the support of
technological innovation, we continued to explore new products and
services to improve the living environment of human beings, which is also
the key direction for product development. We strived to improve the
quality of life of consumers, in order to realize the vision of sustainable
development and continuous evolution and to build a smarter, more
environmentally friendly and more technological living space.

Corporate Vision Leading Sustainable Development

In the reporting year, NVC International formally aligned its corporate
vision and brand mission with the construction of human daily life and
business operations from a more humanistic perspective. Following the
purpose and direction of product research and development to improve
the living environment of human beings, NVC International adhered to
the corporate vision of “Empowering Your LifeScape ® 24 EUN{RFFEE".
In addition to continuing to provide pre-designed full lighting solutions
with high-quality lighting products according to the scene in overseas
markets around the world, we actively expanded our business to the field
of technology-driven health that is related to the national economy and
people’s livelihood, and practiced humanistic value propositions.

The corporate values and the inclination to take up its social
responsibility, we not only outlined a blueprint for future development and
prospects for all members of NVC, but also enabled NVC International
to continue to win in the brutally competitive global markets and win
respect both inside and outside the industry by fulfulling its corporate
responsibility and empathy for users in the post-epidemic period. This
model of binding social responsibility and brand growth will lead NVC
International to the path of sustainable development and create more
social value.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Technological Innovation Driving Sustainable Development

NVC International regards “user first” as the sole guiding principle for
enterprise development, takes improving human living environment as the
purpose and direction of product research and development, and adopts
a new structure of user demand-oriented research and development
and product design to help us enhance core competitiveness in science
and technology. The Group continues to build a matrix of scientific
research laboratories in the “Technology Iron Triangle” — the international
science and technology innovation center, the global industrial design
center and the AIOT research institute, to comprehensively improve its
technology research and development capabilities. At the same time,
we have established a customer-centric big data analysis library, from
data collection, data access and storage, visual query and analysis to
data-driven decision-making and product intelligence, so as to realize
the data-driven full link, gain a comprehensive insight into user needs
and provide recommendations for targeted products and solutions.
In line with the above-mentioned Technology Iron Triangle, we have
simultaneously established an information and intelligence center with
unique characteristics of NVC International and a customer-centric big
data analysis library, from data collection, data access and storage,
visual query and analysis to data-driven decision-making and product
intelligence, to achieve the data-driven full link and provide targeted
product development design and solutions from the three dimensions of
product, technology and online experience.

With the growth and upgrade of our brand in 2021, we began addressing
a more socially responsible topic — “What we can do for the world, how
we can improve consumers’ lives” — with our intelligent product research
development direction and strong core technical staff. While developing
the market and pursuing performance growth, we do not forget to
undertake social responsibilities, and follow the path of sustainable
development together with society and consumers. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all stakeholders
for their unswerving trust and support. We will continue to uphold the
corporate value of “social responsibility as our own responsibility”,
bind social responsibility with brand growth, and achieve sustainable
development.

WANG Donglei
Chairman
April 2022
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About NVC International

Adhering to the new corporate vision of “Empowering Your Lifescape —
Let’s live as you wish”, NVC International connects its corporate vision
with is brand mission and the construction of human life, and conducts
business operations from a more humanistic perspective. In addition to
continuing to provide pre-designed full lighting solutions with high-quality
lighting products in tune with the scene in overseas markets around the
world, in 2021, NVC International actively expanded its business and
practiced humanistic value propositions. In the post-pandemic period that
global challenges and opportunities coexist, we focused on customers
and customer environment as the basis for the changeable economic
forms such as “consumption structure upgrade and the rise of new
marketing formats”. We are deeply engaged in the fields of environment,
life, health, etc., with natural elements as the starting point, and with
the support of technological innovation, we continued to explore new
products and services to improve the living environment of human
beings. That was the key direction of product research and development,
striving to improve the quality of life of consumers, realize the vision of
sustainable development and continuous evolution and build a smarter,
more environmentally friendly and more technologically advanced living
space.

Our production bases in China are located in Zhejiang Jiangshan,
Shanghai Qingpu and Guangdong Zhuhai, and we also have one
production base in Vietnam. Our overseas product development centres
are in compliance with European standards, and our distributors are
spread over more than 40 countries and regions around the world. In
2021, by actively participating in the capture of business opportunities in
the post-epidemic era, we have achieved good results in the international
lighting business and the initial strategy of the global layout of top
brands, we continue to upgrade and evolve in the changing market.
We have set up our headquarter in Hong Kong to prepare for our entry
into overseas lighting markets and to expand our international business.
During the year, we set up the Greater China Business Center to focus on
business areas such as smart home, customized balconies and electrical
integration, carrying forward the extraordinary influence of NVC series
brands in China and vigorously expanding the brand boundaries.
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2021 Milestones 2021FE KE42

il

Brand upgrade Industry association Honorary awards
am hE H & TEHE BEARIR

Established a new D&H Lifelabs
brand product for the IAQ (Indoor
Air Quality) field

Preparing for the launch of a new
brand TamaQ in the Japanese
lighting market

The new plant growth brand
GrowElite has completed the initial
brand building of the global layout
HHIAQ (EANERES) EiF > B
D&H Lifelabs # & h% 2 &
HARRBERSEHER D2 @R
TamaQ
DAY E R R EGrowEliteTE R 2
KIEMBENI L mEEE

Officially joined the KNX China User
Organization Committee

Shenzhen Internet of Things
Industry Association

China Smart Home Industry Alliance
(CSHIA)

Shanghai Pudong Intelligent Lighting
Federation

Guangdong Custom Home
Association

China Wood Protection Industry
Association, Garden and Balcony
Custom Branch
ERXRBKNXFEAFABEES
AT BEEETGS

FHE 88 BE X U E S B BACSHIA

LR RREREEE
BREEFRETERE
FREAMIRE L EBEEREES
EflDE

The “Smart Security Suite” of its
brand NVC Digital won the German
Red Dot Design Award

Its brands NVC Digital and
“Intelligent AloT Control Panel”
won the German iF Product Design
Award

Won the “2021 China Brand Day-
China Famous Brand” award

CEO Ms. Eva Chan won the “2021
China Brand Day-100 Outstanding
Brand Entrepreneurs” award

Won the “2021 Industry Quality
Model” award
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Board Statement

NVC International adheres to its corporate vision of “Empowering Your
LifeScape ® Make life as you wish”, and has formulated the EICC Manual
and the Social Responsibility Procedures in accordance with national
laws and regulations and the actual situation of its own production and
operations to explicitly stipulate standards of conduct in the context of
social responsibility, labor, environment, safety and health, professional
ethics, etc. It also regularly arranges internal audits and management
reviews, and takes effective remedial and corrective measures in a
timely manner to ensure that social responsibilities are fulfiled and the
principles of sustainable development are practiced.

The Board is the highest governing body overseeing ESG risk. During
the year, the Board and the senior management assessed the degree of
impact and possibility of ESG risks, and evaluated and prioritized them
from the two dimensions, the degree of impact on the Group and the
possibility of occurrence of risks. Based on the assessment results, the
three risks that have the highest impact on the Group are product quality
and safety hazards, business violations and customer satisfaction, while
the three most likely risks are employees’ loyalty, employees training and
promotion and supply chain stability. The Board reviews and supervises
the potential risks of relevant issues, and continues to improve ESG risk
management and related measures.

Stakeholder Engagement

Good communication is a prerequisite for win-win cooperation. We
believe that stakeholder engagement is particularly important in the
pursuit of sustainable development. To better understand and respond
to expectations and demands of stakeholders, we have conducted
materiality assessment of ESG issues and have identified ESG issues that
have a significant impact on stakeholders. This assessment serves as an
important reference for the Group’s future action strategy and information
disclosure in this Report.

Materiality Assessment

In order to implement the “materiality” reporting principle, based on the
HKEX’s reporting guidelines and peer analysis and following the Global
Reporting Initiative’s (GRI) materiality assessment process including
four steps of identification, prioritisation, validation and review, we have
identified potential material topics that are of interest to stakeholders
and are closely related to the Group’s day-to-day operations. These
material topics are regularly reviewed and adjusted based on the
latest developments of the Group and industry trends. During the year,
according to the Group’s business strategy adjustment and AIOT industry
concerns, we added two new topics, opportunities in clean technology
and labor management in the supply chain, to NVC International’s list of
potential material topics.
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According to the guide of HKEX ESG

Review the material topics assessment guide and peer analysis, we identified 32
process and identify room for potential material topics with the help of
improvement the independent consultancy
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= fE

BEBERFTREIESIFEZED
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Identification W@ BEEE LSS
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Prioritisation

7352

Validation
B
The management of the Group reviewed
and confirmed the assessment results of
the material topics for the year

Stakeholders of the Group were invited to
participate in the survey
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As shown in the material topics matrix, we prioritised these potential
material topics into four levels, and six topics at Level | are determined
as the Group’s material topics. The management of the Group reviewed
the material topics identified in the previous materiality assessment and
determined that these issues were still material to the Report.
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Material Topics Matrix
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Environmental topics
IRIGEHA

Employee topics
BT&E

Operational topics
giEEE

Economic topics
RS

High
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Influence on Stakeholder Assessments and Decisions
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©
24
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(3]

0 0

Talent management

AAEE

Product quality
management
EmEEERE
Research and
development, and
intellectual property
rights

B 8% Ro H1 58 EE

Customer health and
safety
BERREREZS
Customer satisfaction
BRWMEE
Corporate economic
performance
NEEERIR

00B0NMNOCOHEOGOOOO

Raw material management
R E R
Energy-saving/green product
EBEER,BBER
Environmental compliance
RRER

Occupational safety and health
WL EEER

Training and development
BilEEE

Employee communication
ETES

Supplier management
AR B8

Green supply chain
HedtER

Product sales and labels
Emif & RIRH

Customer privacy and web security

ERREMRARSEZE
Anti-corruption
REBE
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Actions of the Group in 2021
REF2021 EMNITE

Section/Information

HEZH Bl

Talent Management

AT EBHE

Improving the employee management system
Protecting the legal rights of employees
Establishing a perfect communication platform
Offering competitive remuneration and benefits
Providing an equitable, diverse, and inclusive working
environment

TESTERGIE

RESINSEER

BIRENBRETS
REAFRFNHOFHMER
RERT ST AR IIERER

People-oriented

DUNGES

Product Quality Management

1SO9001:2015 quality management system certification

A number of national and international product certifications
Whole-process quality monitoring and inspection system
Recall mechanism for defective products
#EAIS09001:2015m B BB R VE

1S 2 TE B 5 A K B R 4R 7 sl 58
2RiREERARRER

A EEmE B

Quality Assurance

mERE

Research and Development,
and Intellectual Property Rights

B 8% Re M s EE 1

Developing green and innovative products

Establishing R&D centres at home and abroad

29 new licensed patents

Protecting intellectual property rights at three stages of a
project

BFRGBANER

RIBASMNRE D

B REEN 2978

RIEEFRREN =R (REN H AR

Product Innovation

Customer Health and Safety

Strict selection of raw materials to eliminate harmful
substances

Improvement of product labelling to ensure customers have
accurate information

BREERMNES HBEEME
TEERRE BREL THRERAL

Customer Responsibilities

BEREME

Conducting the customer satisfaction survey
Setting up after-sales claims process and policy
Improving customer complaint mechanism
ETEPREERD

R ERIBERERER

TE R PR

Customer Responsibilities

Corporate Economic
Performance
NEMEBRI

Revenue amounting to RMB2,374,947,000
Profits for the year amounting to RMB33,466,000
Net assets amounting to RMB3,284,502,000
WA B2,374,947F T AR
FEABA3Z466T TARE

B EFEE 43,284,502 F T AR

2021 Annual Report of NVC
International
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People-oriented

Employees are the most valuable capital and the backbone of sustainable
development of NVC International. We take “people-oriented” as the core
concept of the Group. We fully protect the legitimate rights and interests
of employees, pay attention to physical and mental growth of employees,
and create a diverse, inclusive and equal workplace for employees,
committed to building a career platform that can attract all kinds of
outstanding talents.

Staff Composition

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 2,627 employees
with a male-to-female ratio of 2:3, most of whom were aged between
30 and 50. Among them, front-line employees accounted for 79.52% of
the total number of employees while full-time employees were 99.96%.
During the year, the Group’s quarterly average employee turnover rate
was 15.19%, and the quarterly average new hire rate was 11.98%. For
detailed employee data, please refer to “ Performance Data Summary “.

Gender Distribution

el banii

Age Distribution
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70.04%
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Functional Distribution
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m Full-time
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B Part-time
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Employment Type Distribution

DYNF:

ETEELTHRRAEENELS  HER
PERAIFEZERTEIE - HAFIR T
ABREIERERNZLOES 2 NRES
I6%m BREIBOREK BETIH
EEZTHB THEEENIFEER BAORN
BRASBSISHEEFANTBHEMANSE
E¥ae

BT

HZE2021F12831H AEBEHEF2,6274
BI B4t HA2:3 FHETEEHN30
E50c HRAS B T1579.52% 28
T1599.96% - FER  AERMMETZTEF
HRERA1519%  ZEFTHHABE S
11.98% - ETHMAEFS R BIERER
F]o

Region Distribution

& 53

15.00%

0.38% — /A

84.62%

B Mainland China ® Hong Kong ® Overseas
Pyt BE Boh

Contract Type Distribution
AR S

77.66%

B Fixed-term contract
EEHER

B Long-term contracts

REGE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELSRS

Quarterly Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate by Gender
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Talent Management

The Group attaches great importance to talents and strictly abides by
relevant laws and regulations', and constantly improves the internal
employee management system to protect the legitimate rights and
interests of its employees. We have implemented a fair and equitable
recruitment system, which offers competitive remuneration and benefits,
and provides on-the-job training and various development opportunities
to effectively improve the employees’ happiness and promote the
common development and progress of the Group and its employees.

During the year, there were no instances of non-compliance of relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
treatment and benefits.

Talent Recruitment

Identifying and hiring talented personnel is the first step of being
people-oriented. The Group adheres to the talent introduction strategy
of “fairness, impartiality, openness and job matching”, provides equal
employment opportunities for all candidates through multi-channel talent
recruitment and has established a strict and targeted talent screening
system.

The Group has defined the responsibilities of recruitment and dismissal of
employees of the Human Resources Department, and comprehensively
considers the knowledge, skills, working competence, morality of the
candidates during the recruitment process. We introduce talents through
multiple channels such as internal selection, external employment,
employee referral and campus recruitment, to recruit diversified and
compound talents with more potential for sustainable development of the
Group.

Internal selection

M EBIER

External employment

SMERIREE

) For laws and regulations on employment practices, please see the
section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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Remuneration and Benefits

In order to enhance the happiness of employees and ensure a good
work-life balance for employees, we attach great importance to
remuneration and the welfare benefits. The Group incorporates multiple
factors such as market rates, employee performance and the Group’s
operating efficiency into its remuneration management indicators
to ensure fair and efficient distribution and provide employees with
competitive remuneration consisting of basic salaries, performance
bonuses and allowances.

The Group has established a welfare guarantee system with scientifically
formulated norms, reasonable standards and transparent management.
The diversified benefits enjoyed by employees include applying for
and paying five social insurances and one fund scheme (including
pension insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, work
injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing provident fund) for
employees in mainland China who have signed formal employment
contracts with the Group. The Group has formulated the Working Hours
and Attendance Management Standard to ensure that employees’
working hours and holiday benefits are in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the places where they operate. In addition to statutory
benefits, we also provide living allowances, holiday allowances, full-
attendance awards, quality improvement awards and other awards and
bonuses, and provide different types of accommodation and dining
arrangements according to employees’ needs to effectively improve
employee satisfaction and happiness.

Statutory benefits
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Care for Employees

The Group attaches great importance to listening to the voices
of employees and supports and cares for employees with a view
to enhancing their sense of belonging. We have established a
comprehensive appeal system, providing employees with channels
such as suggestion boxes and employee representatives to encourage
employees to express their opinions and suggestions. The Group’s
Shanghai Arcata Company has also implemented the “Open Door Policy”,
where employees can ask questions to supervisors and managers at
any time, promoting good two-way communications between employees
and management. In addition, the Company encourages employees to
participate in related matters such as wage negotiation through labor
unions to promote democratic management, decision-making and
supervision.

While communicating with employees, the Company actively promotes
a colorful life and culture for them. The Group regularly carries on
activities such as parent-child activities and team building activities within
departments to continuously improve employee satisfaction. During the
year, the Brand Marketing Center launched the Brand Believer Program
and the Beautiful Life Research Institute series activities within the Group,
aiming to convey the brand value and cultural mission and enhance the
team cohesion by organizing brand-related activities and training.
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Employee Rights and Diversity and Equality

The Group prohibits all forms of discrimination by formulating and
implementing relevant anti-discrimination internal policies under
the guidance of the principle of “fairness and justice” and avoiding
discriminating or interfering with rights on grounds of race, social class,
nationality, religion, disability, gender, gender orientation, age, place of
birth, political affiliation, etc.

In order to fully protect the rights and interests of female employees, the
Company has formulated management systems such as the Management
Rules on the Protection of Female Workers, providing additional benefits
such as maternity leave for pregnant female workers, and creating a
gender-friendly, inclusive and diverse working environment. In addition,
all employees can use the appeal and complaint mechanism. If
discriminatory behavior is found, they can directly complain to employee
representatives, higher-level managers or even the directors. The Group
arranges for non-interested personnel to check the facts and take
corrective actions in a timely manner.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group absolutely prohibits use of child labour and forced labour in
its operations, and clarifies that the personnel administration department
is responsible for formulating relevant procedures, conducting regular
investigations and evaluating the effects. It has set up internal policies
such as the Control Procedures for Prohibition of Forced Labour, the
Management Rules on Preventing the Employment of Child Labour, and
the Management Rules for Minors to ensure normalization of internal
activities.

The Group firmly opposes the use of child labour and does not cooperate
with any suppliers who intentionally use child labour. When recruiting,
the Group identifies the true age of employees by examining and
verifying applicants certificates to prevent recruitment of child labour.
When new employees join us, the human resources department and
the employing department carry out a double-check, and update the
employee personnel file to ensure that such new employees are at least
16 years old when they join us. For juvenile workers over 16 years of
age, according to the requirements of national laws and regulations, we
specially establish juvenile workers’ files, arrange pre-job and annual
regular physical examinations, and arrange their working hours in a
reasonable way to avoid their participation in work with health and safety
risks.
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RIE-HHERELSHRS

In addition, the Group has established procedures for the relief of child
labour. Once a child labourer is found, we immediately terminate his/her
work and arrange a free check-up. After ascertaining the reasons, we
notify the local labour bureau and deal with the situation according to the
physical condition of the child labourer.

Healthy

Immediately terminating
his/her work and arranging
a check-up required
I BMELET{E MR BE
ZH S BRE

Identifying child
labourer
FEHRBT

W B2

The Group prohibits any form of forced labour or restrictions on labour
freedom. The labour contracts and labour regulations formulated by the
Group must be negotiated and agreed with employees’ representatives,
and be reviewed and filed by the local labor bureau to ensure that
employees can truly enjoy the rights of freedom of employment, freedom
of resignation, freedom of overtime working and freedom of movement.

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to the
prevention of child and forced labour, and there was no reported case
regarding child or forced labour.

Training and Development
We firmly believe that the growth of the Group is inseparable from the
personal growth of employees, and strive to provide employees with a

variety of training courses and systematic promotion opportunities, and
constantly encourage employees to explore their maximum potential.
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Employee Training

The Group regards training management as a part of its daily operations,
and continuously improves its internal staff training system to better
help staff to improve their professional skills. According to the work
and training needs of each department, we formulate scientific and
reasonable employee training and development plans. In terms of training
forms, we combine classroom lectures with practical operations to
encourage employees to apply what they have learned. After the training,
the Group also conducts an effectiveness assessment to understand
the learning outcomes of employees. If the assessment result is not
satisfactory, we will improve the training method or reorganize the training
according to the situation.

Classroom
lectures/practical
operations
REER
RIEBE

Analyzing job Developing

requirements

DT TR K

training plan
i E e/l 5t 8

Internal training system

BB B #Y

In addition to ensuring the internal training system is scientifically
designed, we also continuously improve our training contents. For
personnel in positions where major accidents may occur, we arrange
special safety training. Special operators are required to receive statutory
training and obtain certificates. In addition to regular annual training, we
also arrange training when new employees (including temporary workers)
are hired or when the corporate policies and procedures change, to
ensure that all employees are clear about relevant work standards and
procedures.

During the year, a total of 2,279 employees of the Group received
training, accounting for 86.75% of the total, with the total training hours
of employees reaching 31,206.50 hours. For specific employee training
data, please see the “Performance Data Summary”.

Career Development

We regard the career development of employees as the engine of
progress for the enterprise. The Group has established and improved
internal promotion channels, and has formed a “dual-channel career
development” model based on ability, management and professionalism,
so as to provide a clear development direction for different types of
talents, continuously supplying talents for key positions of the Group, and
realize the sustainable development of employees and the Group.
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Occupational Safety and Health

The Group attaches great importance to the safety of its employees,
adheres to the work policy of “safety first, prevention first and mass
prevention and control”, and strictly abides by the laws related to
occupational safety and health?. During the year, Chongging Yixun Smart
Home Co., Ltd. obtained ISO45001-2018 certification.

Improving the Safety Management System

The Group has formulated internal systems and policies such as the
Environmental, Occupational Health Operation and Testing Control
Procedures, the Work Safety Management System and the Occupational
Health Management System to continuously improve the occupational
health and safety of employees, strictly implement safety production
management and improve management efficiency. During the year,
there was no case of non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations
which had a significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe workplace and protecting employees from occupational hazards,
and there was no reported case regarding work-related fatalities or
occupational diseases.

Providing a Healthy Workplace

In order to protect the health of our employees, we ensure safety of
the working environment of our employees in a variety of ways. Our
employees have the right to participate in formulation and implementation
of occupational health policies and procedures. The Group has been
improving the systematic configuration of health and safety plans in the
park in accordance with statutory requirements and in line with the actual
situation. We reasonably configure fire safety facilities and have special
personnel to manage them. Professional safety and health institutions are
hired to conduct regular inspections and evaluate the safety and health
conditions of the working environment to reduce potential risk factors.

The Group strictly follows the Regulations on the Scope of Taboo Work
for Female Employees, and earnestly protects the safety and health of
female employees. We strictly prohibit excessive storage of chemicals in
the factory, and all chemicals must be sealed and stored in corrosion-
resistant containers. In addition, we contact the local occupational
disease prevention and control center to conduct health check-ups
for workers exposed to harmful substances such as dust and organic
solvents during production to ensure compliance with national regulations
and protect the health of employees.

2 For laws and regulations on occupational safety and health, please
see the Laws and Regulations section in this Report
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Occupational Disease Prevention

We have formulated the Management Rules on Labour Protection
Equipment that instruct and urge relevant employees to properly wear
and use labour protection equipment to guard against occupational
hazards. At the same time, the Group has established an appropriate
accident reporting and investigation system to encourage employees to
proactively report accidents and unsafe factors. In addition, the Group
organizes employees to conduct physical examinations every year, and
builds and maintains employees’ health files in accordance with the
requirements of the Law on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and provides employees with protective equipment to further
enhance employees’ safety and health protection.

Hazard occurrence
frequency

el as £ RRE
BEERE

Possibility of an accident
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Injury severity
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Production Risk Identification and Assessment

In order to ensure safe production and compliance and prevent safety-
related risks, the Group earnestly identifies and assesses production
risks. When new equipment, new materials, new production processes,
etc. are put into use or before the operation, we conduct health and
safety risk analysis, identify and assess potential safety and health
risk factors, and take corresponding measures to keep the risks under
control. We require employees to comply with the safety management
system and report to their superiors immediately upon discovering any
dangerous situation in the workplace. We also conduct regular workplace
inspections and risk identification and assessment, immediately make
adjustments to address the safety hazards found, and supervise and
inspect their implementation and effects to ensure safe operations of
equipment and facilities in each plant area. The Group holds a health
and safety work meeting on a quarterly basis to analyze the safety work
situation, identify potential risks and analyze the reasons to ensure the
update of risk identification and assessment.

Assessment of risk grade
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Occupational Safety Training

In order to enhance employees’ safety awareness, avoid accidents
and create a strong safety atmosphere, the Group has established
standardized safety training procedures. All production-related employees
need to be trained in occupational health and safety related work
practices, so that they can safely perform their responsibilities and job
duties. Newly hired and transferred employees and employees working
at the accident site are required to receive health and safety training. For
special operation employees, we have formulated the Regulations on
the Safety Management of Special Operations Personnel, which strictly
stipulates that special operations personnel must receive safety technical
training and assessment in units designated by government departments
before they can operate independently and must receive regular safety
operation education.

The Group organizes a variety of safety training programs, including
classroom teaching, seminars, group meetings, bulletin boards, etc. In
addition, we regularly organize necessary safety and emergency drills,
including fire and safety drills at least once a year, so as to increase
employees’ familiarity with escape routes and the use of fire fighting
equipment, conclude deficiencies during the drill, improve employees’
safety awareness and continuously improve the level of emergency
response. During the year, the Group recorded a total of 7,689 trainees
participating in safety training, with 15,466° training hours in aggregate.

- '.

Safety and Fire Drill
ZREFEEE

& Occupational safety and health training data disclose data
covers Greater China Business Center, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base,
Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai Base and Vietnam
NVC
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Performance of Safety Management

During the year, NVC continued to improve the health and safety
management system, consolidate the foundation of safe production,
and enhance the awareness of safe production, so as to ensure the
implementation of safety management measures and the achievement of
safe production goals. The number and rate of work-related fatalities and
the number of working days lost due to work-related injuries in each of
the past three years:

RIB - ERERHRS
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2021 0 0.00% 484

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH

119



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R ERERHRS

Environmental Protection

As an advocate of green lighting, the Group provides users with high-
quality lighting solutions with intelligent, healthy and user-friendly lighting
technology to bring a better life to people. We advance the development
of environmental protection through practical actions, such as constantly
improving our environmental management system, and reducing the
impact of our operations on the environment.

Environmental Management

The Group complies with various environmental laws and regulations
relevant to international and local operating locations®. The Group
has formulated a series of internal management policies such as the
Procedures for Legal, Regulatory and Other Requirements, the Corrective
and Preventive Control Procedures and the Environmental Management,
and established an environmental management system led by the
operations management department and requiring responsibilities from
each department, so as to fully implement and be responsible for the
Group’s water and electricity management, comprehensive utilization and
disposal of waste and other environmental management work. During the
year, Chongging Yixun Smart Home Co., Ltd. obtained 1SO45001-2018
certification.

During 2021, there was no case of non-compliance of relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to exhaust
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous or non-hazardous waste.

Based on its own actual situation and the
ISO14001-2015 environmental management
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manual, which describes the environmental
policy, environmental goals and indicators, and
defines the management structure led by the
general manager and responsibilities of each
department to ensure that the environmental
management policy of “environmental protection,
pollution prevention, compliance with regulations,
continuous improvement, green protection
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and harmonious coexistence” is earnestly
implemented.

4 For laws and regulations in relation to the environment, please see
the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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Human Resources
Department

ANERE

Technology Development
Department

% 1l e 5% 5B

Management

representatives Quality Management
EEEARR Department

HEEEHER

General manager Sales Department

eSS e

Finance Department

FA ¥ 8B

Zhuhai Plant
BT

Supply Chain
Management

HAEEE R

Schematic diagram of environmental management system
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R ERERHRS

Tackling Climate Change

Climate change is a hot topic and a global concern today, and its
opportunities and risks are the focus of the Group’s environmental
strategy. The risks that climate change may bring to the Group include
physical risks such as extreme weather events and sea-level rise, as well
as transition risks such as policy risks, legal risks and technological risks.
As a leader in the lighting industry, the Group actively promotes green
development strategies. We are attentive to the design, development,
production, promotion and diversified sales of green lighting products
and smart lighting products. The Group is committed to improving
the living environment and quality of life for users and providing more
environmentally friendly products and solutions while promoting
sustainable development.

The management team is responsible for implementing, identifying
and managing climate change risks and opportunities, in tune with the
Group’s climate change policy, and actively promote various energy
conservation and emission reduction measures to gradually set up
strategies consistent with global best practices, thereby mitigating the
impact of climate change on its business and enhancing the development
of renewable energy.

In order to cope with climate change, the Group continues to improve its
own strategies and mechanisms related to climate change and enhance
its ability to adapt to climate change. The Group has comprehensively
improved energy efficiency, carbon reduction technologies and
management standards from the three aspects of “energy structure,
climate adaptation and policy review”, while actively understanding and
researching domestically and internationally leading carbon reduction
technologies.
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Energy structure
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Climate adaptation

R E

Policy review
HBEREE
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Countermeasures

Improve the production process, minimize the use of fossil energy in production
projects, and increase the use of renewable energy;

REEETE EARERVEETRZPECAERERE BN BEERNFA

Improve the level of industrial energy utilization efficiency and promote the application
of the Group’s energy-saving technologies;
RS TEEMFAKT  EEEBEGERMOER ;

Encourage the use of low— or zero-carbon and energy-efficient products and materials,
and incorporate climate change into procurement considerations;

SEERBRNBRKEEERNaNERMYE KRB CMARBNEBRE ;

Draw on the industry’s advanced practices to formulate voluntary carbon reduction

targets.
EETELEBRR FIETBEAME R

Improve organizational leadership on climate change to prevent or reduce the costs of
climate change;
TERHRESCNAEBES UEHHEERBEECERNIER;

Promote the popularization and publicity of scientific knowledge on addressing climate
change, and vigorously advocate low-carbon production methods;

HERHNREEEHEMNANERNER ANEBEBREESR

Upgrade enterprise risk management systems to incorporate climate change and
extreme weather events into management procedures;
AREXRBEERG SRESENBHERISEAAETERFA ;

Collaborate with various stakeholders, including employees, suppliers and customers,
to strengthen the resilience of all parties to climate change.
BREEST - HEARBEEESRHMNE  MASHHRBEECHNBERES -

Regularly monitor and review the impact of climate change on the Group’s employees
and business operations;

EHERTRS ARG CHERREENEREENTE

Regularly review and update the Group’s climate change policy and report to the Board
on a regular basis.

EHEENEMAEBRRRECER TERRAESFER-

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH
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Energy Consumption

Energy consumption of the Group’s daily operations includes petrol,
diesel, natural gas (direct energy) and purchased electricity (indirect
energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy consumption was
104,860 GJ, with a intensity of 0.0442 GJ/thousand RMB revenue.
Among them, direct energy consumption was 17,976 GJ and indirect
energy consumption was 86,884 GJ.

BETRFEH

AEBRHEEER ST RNERHEESRE
AHNEH KRR (BIEER) RINEE
71 (BIBER) - ER > AEEEREES
104,860 FKEEH » BEA0.0442F JKEE
ST ANREEEE Hh BEERERE
EA17,976FNHKEF BEEREEES
86,884 F JKEH ©

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)
REIRHFEAEE (TIREE)
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78,349

22,646

2020

[ Direct energy
BiEER

Greenhouse Gas

The Group generates GHG directly from the combustion of fuels such as
gas and petrol used in factory production and vehicle operations, and
indirectly from purchased electricity. During the year, the Group’s direct
GHG emissions were 1,057 tCOze, and indirect GHG emissions from
energy were 14,724 tCOze. Our total GHG emissions were 15,780 tCOze
with the emission intensity of 0.0066 tCOze/thousand RMB revenue. The
total amount of GHG emissions decreased by 15.8% compared with
the previous year, and the emission reduction work achieved remarkable
results.

2021

B Indirect energy

AR
i E e

AEBNRAERBREFTESTIREE
HWETHAERNME S BRI E
BRNEZRAERBHEBINABIIBENT
KNEEAERBHENR -FR > AEEEHE
BEREEREA1,057TH _atHRES
R R ERENEES14,724M
At E - RERBHNEEA15,780M
“HIEMHE  HEHEE A0.0066M — &
EREE, Tt ARBEXBE - AERE
BEMABRER E—F T/15.8% BB N E
%O

GHG Emissions (tCO,e)
BERBHKRE(M_StREE)
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Green Office

Adhering to the green concept of saving energy and reducing
consumption, the Group has taken active actions to advocate green
office in order to reduce energy consumption. In the production base, we
regularly overhaul the equipment to ensure efficient operations. In office
operations, we advocate employees to save electricity and communicate
electronically to reduce paper usage, promote resource conservation and
contribute to realization of the “double carbon” goal.

26C

Use both sides of
the paper, minimise
single sided use

CHERAR B8
B> BB T 5

The indoor temperature
is maintained at
26 degrees Celsius
ENREERTE
26K E

Resource Management
Management of Water Resources

Water is essential for manufacturing and processing, and its efficient
management is critical to our business. The Group is committed to
continuously improving water resources management, strengthening
the protection and conservation of water resources and deepening the
concept of recycling water among employees, so as to improve the
utilization rate of water resources. The Group uses tap water for its
operations. The total water consumption during the year was 133,467
tonnes, with the water consumption intensity of 0.0562 tonnes/thousand
RMB revenue. There were no issues in sourcing water that is fit for the
purpose during the year.

LED

-3

Traditional lights are
gradually replaced with
energy saving LED lamps
£ SEBILEDIE

B fZ 4t B3 BH

28 PPN

RIE-HERELSHRS

mema

FEAMERENGEES AEEBHK
WITHESERENWA LU EEREFEE -
REEEM RAEHHERREETR
EBURRHESHET - RNRQZEED > R
BEESTHNAE BITEFEMA LUR

DRRER REERHN > BER €K

5

BEREMNE-

Promote the conservation
of electricity and employees
to save electricity
REBILHSET
AV &

HERER
KEFREE

KERHEERSEMMINAT L HE
HENEERBRMNEREREE - £ &
B ORI EKREREE 1B EH K
ERWREMSHN  FEEITREBKN
EBS ReKkERNABXR AEEZEMFE
BEXRK 2E4EEKES133,4670H > B
KEREA0.0562M8/ FTo ANRIEE R
FR o AEEET A EERE R KRB

Ho

Water Consumption (Tonne)
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With the goal of “saving water and eliminating unnecessary water
wastage such as drips and leaks”, the Group actively responds to
the national call for water conservation and has installed water-saving
appliances in all production bases to save more water resources and
improve the utilization rate of water resources.

Domestic water
HSERK
* Use safe water-saving appliances
o AL EHIKIREA

Water use monitoring
FAKEE#E
* Random inspections for water leakage

are carried out weekly, and process timely
o 5B PE S B R KI5 o il K B BE 18

The Group’s wastewater mainly comes from production processes and
domestic wastewater is generated from the daily lives of our employees.
During the year, the Group discharged 0.52 tonnes of chemical
oxygen demand and 0.16 tonnes of ammonia-nitrogen pollutants from
wastewater. We strictly implement the national water pollution prevention
and control policy and discharge permit management system, and
formulate wastewater treatment operating procedures to ensure that
wastewater discharge meets the standards.

Report

R FEEBGERBERBKIESD > U
B RAK IR - RETLEREKN
R #ER SOKBEEREINZLEER
o BN EZKER RS KEROF A

> o

Production water

£ERK

e Use water-saving cooling towers
o FRARKE S ANE

Water saving education

Bk E

e Promote water saving and
educate employees to save water

o REBWHBETEAABK

FEENBEKIBRENEERKRETL
BELEFELENLEEEK - ER > REEHE
BMEEEKPERFEAEH NER0.52ME > &
KIS EMBEME0.16M - HFIBEE AITE
RAGSRBAB D HBRARGFHRFAIEE
B > B E BE K B2 IR (AR AE » M (R BE K BE
BMERER-

Wastewater Management Measures

[ 7K B I 5 B

v Develop operating procedures for wastewater treatment

v Standardize the management of sewage treatment equipment

v/ Conduct training on wastewater treatment

v/ Circulating water process is used in the production process

V' Install rainwater and sewage diversion devices

v/ Domestic sewage is filtered and discharged into the municipal
sewage pipe network

v Industrial sewage is collected by the qualified environmental
protection company for biochemical treatment

In the future, we will continue to work towards a 100%
wastewater compliance discharge rate.
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Packaging Materials

In line with the principle of sustainable development and for reducing
the impact of our operations on the environment, the Group minimizes
the use of unnecessary packaging materials and consciously selects
recyclable materials for use. The Group mainly uses plastic bags, colour
boxes, paper boxes, labels and other packaging materials in operations.
The total consumption was 10,588 tonnes in the reporting year and the
intensity was 0.0045 tonnes/thousand RMB revenue. The significant
increase in the consumption of packaging materials was mainly due
to the significant increase in orders and sales during the year, and the
consumption of packaging materials (especially paper boxes) required for
consumption increased accordingly.

Packaging material consumption (Tonne) BEMECEES (H)

RIB - ERERHRS

BEMH

ABTAFEZRRA HEEEHIRIE
Mg KERZSIERLERAFAKEDN
BEME  TEEEREGSHAITLWBEREY
BHleoAREREEEANOEMEETELL
BR - E BEREES FR BMAHE
$£10,588ME B EEM Kl » FEA B E 40.0045

A EAZTERNFERTENMHEKRE L

PR AN e EM K (CHZMAE) HE
BMhERIE M-

Plastic bags 22y SN
Colour boxes e
Paper boxes e
Labels 2%
Others Hih
Total s

83 85
3,313 4,124
6,014 6,287

13 19

183 73
9,606 10,588
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Emissions Management
Air Pollutants

Emissions of nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and particulate matters
during the Group’s operations are mainly from fuel combustion in
factories and vehicles. During the year, the Group’s operations generated
a total of 0.0663 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.0010 tonnes of sulphur
oxides and 0.4276 tonnes of smoke and dust.

B
ERR

AEEBEERESERIAEY  ZF|ERM
BRYHNHERETEREN TR A BEEHR
BEMENRE - ER - SEREBELESE
0.0663MEE & 1E# ~ 0.0010MEFT &1L ¥ K
0.4276MEE EE o

Air Pollutants Emissions (Tonne)

RSB E (M)
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00631 [

2020

[ Nitrogen oxide [ Sulfur dioxide
Eak=kine) —a bR

For disposal of waste gas from the Group’s operations, we strictly comply
with the relevant standard limitation requirements and take measures to
manage their emissions, so as to ensure compliance with the legal and
policy requirements of the locations where we operate.

X 0010

2021

Smoke and dust

JEEE

HEAEEEBEBREPELENER &M
BIERETHRAREREEZ R THRINZE
REEEBERI RN G EEMRTM
B ERMBRER

Online Monitoring Technical Processing Contingency Plans
TE4REEA B2 1l5 BE 12 i F=SEES

® An on-line monitoring system for e Activated carbon adsorption e Contingency plans for exhaust
pollution sources is established devices and other technologies gas leakage are developed to
to monitor industrial waste are used to reduce volatile deal with emergencies
emissions to ensure the organic compounds emissions in
emissions meet the standards factories

o RESRREGEANRS BE o FRARVE MR IR 25 B F AT 2 o fHITERERIR IR =TASE » UFEH
TEEEYER URRER DT RRIE M A YR R REIE
HE

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Waste Management

The Group has continued to regulate waste management and accelerate
corporate green development. We strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations® and have formulated our own Waste Management
Rules to improve waste management work through the establishment,
implementation, maintenance and continuous improvement of this
program.

Production of lighting products of the Group generates hazardous waste
including packaging for waste mineral oil, mercury-containing waste
lamp tubes and waste circuit boards. During the year, total of hazardous
waste generated was 9.58 tonnes, with a generation intensity of 0.0040
kg/thousand RMB revenue, a rise of 0.06 per tonne as compared with
2020. Non-hazardous waste from production and operations are mainly
construction waste and domestic waste. A total of 1,288 tonnes of non-
hazardous waste was generated during the year, a rise of 180 tonnes as
compared with 2020. The increase in waste production during the year
compared to the previous year was mainly due to the increase in orders
and production volume, which resulted in a corresponding increase in
waste generated during the production process.

RIB - ERERHRS

BEREYEE

FEBFERLERYEERE THHEED
EBBERNI U -HMABBRETHER
ERERSRARGERNB(ERYERER
E) BBZEFNEIL B -RmRENSE
BEUTEREBRERMEET(Fe

AEBERPEREERRERPEENEERE
EYTIBABERYHEE -SREEE
MEEERNE FRNEELILSMHEE
BEEY) HELEREA0.0040AF /T 7T
ARBEE L, 500204 /8 ELIE N0.06ME o
CEEEEEN—REEYTEASEEN
RAEENIRE > EARNHEESET,288M —f%
BEEY) > 52020F M L8 N180MF o & i B
EYLEEER LI FEANTERRES
EEITEEIN - SEER A EEBREPE
SR EEEY M AEEE M -

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (Tonne)

—RREERYIELE (M)
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[ Recycled waste
[SIEe

Following the principle of sustainability, the Group recycles, processes
and reduces waste in a harmless manner to achieve the goal of 100%
compliant disposal. The Group recycles as much as possible the
recyclable portion of non-hazardous waste, such as used paper, plastics
and metals, while non-hazardous waste is collected and disposed of by
the local municipal environmental sanitation authorities. Hazardous waste
is collected centrally and entrusted to qualified third party companies for
treatment.

& For laws and regulations in relation to the environment, please see
the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report

2021

[ Non-recyclable waste
RE

AR EBEIHERA BERYERE
FEL B EH100%AREENE
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Environmental Emergency Management

The Group has established procedures for handling environmental
emergencies, such as the Rules on Emergency Management of
Environmental Risk Accidents, the Rules on Emergency Management
of Chemical Spill and the Emergency Plans and Corresponding Control
Procedures. These rules help identify and assess the risks of emergencies
prepare for emergencies, and specify the corresponding handling
measures, so as to reduce the risk of such incidents and the associated
impacts.

The Group keeps improving the emergency response mechanism for
addressing environmental incidents, Emergency rescue command
teams led by the general manager have been set up at our production
bases. In case of chemical leakage, the command team proceeds to
the scene on receiving a report to determine the scope and severity of
the incident, and specifies handling measures such as evacuation of
personnel and provision of protective equipment as appropriate. During
or after implementation of the emergency plan at the production base,
the personnel administration department concludes and evaluates the
effectiveness of emergency measures. In addition, the Group regularly
inspects emergency procedures and measures, and also trains relevant
personnel with potentially significant environmental impacts to let them
understand their responsibilities and enhance emergency awareness.
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Quality Assurance

We firmly believe that the products are the foundation of the brand,
and only by taking the customers’ expectations as the guide and
continuously improving the product quality and performance can the
products be competitive. Taking “being a recommender and practitioner
of human green lighting” as the product development direction, we have
established a whole-process quality supervision system from product
R&D, design, production, to sales and after-sales, and are committed
to providing consumers with safer, healthier and more environmentally
friendly products and services and contributing to social development.

Product Quality Management

The Group has obtained 1SO9001:2015 quality management system
certification since 2010 and set up a comprehensive internal quality
management system in accordance with 1SO9001:2015 standard and
relevant laws and regulations®. In order to ensure the safety and high
quality of products, the Group monitors and controls key points in each
production process, and has formulated a series of operating procedures
such as the Procedure for Control of Defective Goods, the Corrective and
Preventive Control Procedures and the Data Analysis Control Program to
provide guidance for standardized production.

Raw Material
Procurement
Stage

R RS

Research,
Development
and Design

Product
Production

Stage
EREEREE

Stage
2% 5B A% PR EX P& E&

RIE-HERELSHRS

oo B fRE

BRARGE EmEmBENER REURR
EXRBER - FERERSELEE RSN
BB EmABBF N LM AEGEREA
WHEBENBERE I RERERTH M
NERMERF FERE IERNES
REB BUERENBEEERR B
RAHEBERHEZS2 BRE BRHFEN
EmRT AL R RMHER -

EmEEEE

AEBB2010FHEEFISO9001:201554
BEIERZAE  WAKIERISO9001:20154F
ERERAEIREEARBISENANNEEE
Bz AREEMNZE2NeRE K&
F & % 4 E KR A2 BY B 5 BLBE B BR R M 4
B TRE(FEERERER)(MIE-FE
HEZERER) (BEIMERER)E—F
FiIRERFARELLEERHIEE

Finished
Product Quality
Control Stage
N mEE

FE I P ES

Product
After-sales
Stage

EmEREER

Procedure
for Control of
Defective Goods

Management
System for Recall
of Defective

Non-conforming Consumer Goods

Corrective and Customer
Preventative Action Satisfaction
Control Procedure Average
(REHs 2 es| Measurement
2E) Process
(REBREE Data Analysis
4 TFEFER, v Control Program
EHEF) (ERMaHERBE
BIEHIE)
(BEEmREAE
FHRER)
(B AR EIR
=)

Design and Supplier Manufacturing
Development Management Quiality Control
Control Procedure Besie G @ Procedure
(Cal:E: Procurement Procedure for
ZEHEIRE) Management Control of Product
Procurement Audit MOnltorlng ar:d
and Assessment R
System Product Labelling
75451 and Traceability
<<T’7‘j_ BE) and the Protective
ﬁ%ﬁﬁzéf%l» Control Procedure
RE .
- (REmE TS
(REEREZEZ =2y
HIED .
(E MR B AR
AISERIRRED
(EE mEHAE
4 Fe BB 8 272
)
. For laws and regulations on quality management, please see the

section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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Product Quality Certification

The Group implements strict quality control systems by earnestly carrying
out product safety standardisation to ensure the quality and safety of
the products provided. A number of national and international product
certifications have been obtained.

Domestic certification

Bl ER T

China Compulsory Certification “CCC”
rh [ 5% 14 &= w858 T CCC

China Quality Certificate “CCC”
BREEERRECQC)

CQC Energy Conservation Certification
CQCHiifER

SRRC Radio Transmission Equipment
Certification
SRRCHEAR B 51 X B35

Product Quality Monitoring

In order to standardize the Company’s inspection procedures and
ensure that quality of products is effectively controlled before entering
the warehouse and shipping, the Group has formulated strict internal
management procedures for the monitoring and measurement of product
quality and supervises the implementation thereof. Four departments,
namely the Quality Control Department, Technology Department,
Planning Department and Production Department, are responsible for
leading the quality monitoring and measurement at each stage of the
product production process. The quality monitoring process covers
every step of the production, including incoming materials, production
process, finished products, results from statistical analysis and feedback.
All departments work together to make the whole-process of quality
inspection in the product realisation process, ensuring that products meet
customer requirements.
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International certification

B PR 5258

American UL certification

EEULRE

American DCL certification

EEDCL::E

European Norms Electrical
Certification “ENEC”

ERN iR E B RETETENEC
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Incoming materials monitoring 28 ¥} 5 i

The Quality Control Department and the Technology Department are responsible for the incoming materials monitoring.
Materials that pass the inspection are warehoused for later use, while the defective are handled in accordance with the
Procedure for Control of Defective Goods.

BEMEXMEBEERMEN T RRBRARNYEETAERTR  FEaRREHKE( TaRRERER ) EE -

For incoming materials that may probably be accepted but cannot be inspected due to urgent production needs, these
four departments shall work together to properly carry out review, identify and record, and separate semi-finished
products from finished products in movement, so as to recall and replace defective products in the future.
HRERBERAERZRLEEMAERBRAENRE > MELPIE S (EHIF B AR M08 & ol on K Al o bR B
#E LU EAREBE BT ERER-

Production process monitoring 4% EiB 12

Production process monitoring mainly includes four major parts, being first inspection, self-inspection, special inspection
and in process quality control of the products and the technology, in which different responsible persons carry out
inspections to identify potential problems before a product is finished, as far as possible.
TEBREAFTESRERNIENER B ER - KROUAE D AFREEABETEZ AR 2N R mE
B A BB R o

Finally, the Quality Control Department performs sampling inspection and makes a judgment on the packaged finished
products.

RRHEENHE SRR EMMRRERRHE -

Statistical analysis and feedback #t 5t %3 t7 #1 )< &8

The Quality Control Department is responsible for collecting all inspection data to conduct regular quality statistics
and analysis on incoming materials, process and finished products. If any problems identified, the department will
inform responsible departments in a timely manner, and follow up on improvement measures taken by the responsible
departments.
HEXaFWEMBRASE THABRKE - ERNEENEERAMNON B LEBER KRS EEEFT > LR
HEER 8 BRI PIN S a1 o
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Product Recall Procedure

The Group has established a complete control, review and disposal
system for non-conforming products, which is mainly under the charge of
the warehousing department and the quality department. During the year,
there was no case of non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations
which had a significant impact on the Group relating to the health and
safety of products. During the year, there was no recall of sold or shipped
products for safety and health reasons.

N & 1% 2 o B [E1 7

FEFCRURTEN AR RER FF
MEERE > TEME BN amEHmE
BRBE -FR AEEETAERBHIE
HERNREAZ2BHAEEEREKX
TENZREREE-FR RIEEENR
EEZXERMTEZE2RR@EERMERE UK
BB e

For the disposal of unqualified products returned by customers, the quality department organizes confirmation and

investigation of the reasons for the failure and the relevant responsible units
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Then the technical department proposes a disposal plan based on the poor condition of the returned products,
which is countersigned by the relevant departments and then handed over to the supply chain
management department for disposal
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The returned products due to customer’s reasons should be fed back to the marketing center,
and the marketing center will communicate with the customer for processing
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If the product is found defective after the product has been delivered to the customer
(including during transportation) or after the customer has put it into use, the customer shall be naotified of the
unqualified information in time and corresponding measures shall be taken
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Recall unqualified products when necessary, and the recall of unqualified products shall be carried out
with reference to the Product Recall Control Procedure

VEFRAGHRERAR TeRANER2R(ERGEERER )T

Product Marketing and Labelling

In order to improve efficiency and standardize the use of logos, the
quality department of the Group distributes the unified logo shape and
usage standards and specifications to all departments. According to the
energy efficiency label style uniformly stipulated by the state, various
environmental labels and safety instructions are set out in the product
instruction manual, which is convenient for customers to read and
understand product specifications, precautions for safety and use, so as
to help customers use our products more conveniently and effectively.
During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which had a significant impact on the Group relating to
product advertising and labelling.
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Product Innovation

Innovation is the unremitting driving force for sustainable development.
The Group adheres to the core strategy of “Technology-driven and
User First”, improves the R&D system through innovative smart lighting
solutions, and continues to explore new products and services, so as to
lead the concept of industry change and promote common sustainable
development.

Green and Innovative Products

The Group regards improving the living environment of human beings
as the key direction of product research and development. It strives to
improve the life quality of consumers, realize the vision of sustainable
development and continuous evolution, and build a more intelligent, more
environmentally friendly and more technologically advanced living space.
For ensuring that production and sales of lighting products meet national
and industry standards, we further consider environmental protection
factors in product design, raw material acquisition, etc., and continuously
improve the energy efficiency of our products and reduce the negative
impact on the environment.

Customer Needs
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Collect market information, investigate consumer demand for environmental and energy-
saving products, then put forward the product planning schemes
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Product Design/R&D
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Raw Material Assessment
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Production
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Product Sales
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Carry out overall conceptual design; carry on trial production of products to verify reliability
and manufacturability; prioritise environmentally friendly materials; improve products’ own
energy efficiency
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Conduct material assessments to ensure that raw materials comply with the requirement of
environmental protection regulations
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Establish stringent specifications on environmental production process to verify quality and
yield
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Reduce the use of packaging materials in operations, make promotion plan and monitor
product performance
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Life-cycle Management of New Products
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Product Research and Development

NVC International regards “user first” as the sole guiding principle for
enterprise development, takes improving human living environment as the
purpose and direction of product research and development, and adopts
a new structure of user demand-oriented research and development
and product design to help us enhance core competitiveness in science
and technology. The Group continues to build a matrix of scientific
research laboratories in the “Technology Iron Triangle” — the international
science and technology innovation center, the global industrial design
center and the AIOT research institute to comprehensively improve
technology research and development capabilities. At the same time, we
have established a customer-centric big data analysis library, from data
collection, data access and storage, visual query and analysis to data-
driven decision-making and product intelligence, so as to achieve a fully
data-driven linkage, gain a comprehensive insight into user needs and
provide recommendations for targeted products and solutions.

We have established a complete product development infrastructure with
four R&D centres in Shanghai, Zhejiang, Guangdong and Birmingham,
UK. During the year, the Group signed contracts with two qualified patent
agents, namely INNOPAT Intellectual Property Co., Ltd. and Kangxin
Partners P.C. We have submitted 20 CIS patent applications to the
official offices, including 6 PCT patent applications, 6 domestic invention
applications and 8 domestic utility models involving water purification, air
purification and general technology. In 2021, the Group had a total of 29
new licensed patents.
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Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to protection of intellectual
property rights, and has formulated a series of systems including the
Management Procedures for Protection of Intellectual Property Rights and
the Management Procedures for Confidentiality of Intellectual Property
Rights, to ensure orderly intellectual property protection. At the same
time, we actively monitor and analyze the intellectual property dynamics
in the industry to ensure that the Group’s product development and
brand building do not infringe upon intellectual property rights of others.
The Group was not involved in any litigation related to the infringement of
intellectual property rights during the year.

IPR Acquisition:
FEERFNHEE

IPR Risk Control:
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Avoid the possibility of infringement
before the commencement of a project
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Obtain the maximum scope of
protection when patent licensed
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Existing IPR Protection:
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Protect existing intellectual property
rights from infringement
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Three Stages for Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
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Customer Responsibility

The Group puts the health and safety of customers first, strictly controls
the quality of raw materials for products, and eliminates the possibility
of harmful substances adversely affecting customers’ health. With the
goal of improving customer satisfaction, we respect customer feedback
and respond to their needs in a timely manner, create maximum value
for customers with excellent products and services, and fully protect the
rights and interests of customers.

In order to understand customer satisfaction more clearly, we have
formulated quantitative evaluation indicators starting from four dimensions
of product quality, service, price, and delivery, a total of 11 evaluation
indicators. After the collected data is summarized and analyzed, a
comprehensive evaluation of customer satisfaction can be obtained.
Based on the results of the analysis, we identify improvement areas and
projects within a defined period to meet the needs and expectations of
the clients.
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group pays attention to opinions and feelings of customers and
actively communicates with customers. The Group has established the
Customer Satisfaction Measurement and Evaluation Procedures and
the Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey Control Procedures and set up a
customer complaint hotline and mailbox managed by special personnel to
collect customer opinions through various channels. At the same time, we
analyse and consolidate the information on new products and services
so that customers can download a leaflet with a list of new product data
directly from the Group’s official website at any time and from any place
to obtain accurate and sufficient product information in a timely manner.
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Assess the reliability of the survey according
to the response rate
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Understand customers with the highest and
lowest satisfaction according to the score
assigned by customers
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Learn specific projects with the highest and
lowest satisfaction according to the scores
assigned to projects
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Confirm key
targets and projects
for customer service

improvement
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Customer Satisfaction Survey Mechanism
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In order to further explore areas in which internal management of the
Group needs to be improved and to reflect the care for the distributors,
we conducted a satisfaction survey on the distributors through telephone
calls and questionnaires during the year to understand their evaluation
of our products and services from four dimensions: product planning,
product supply, market management, technical support and service,
with the satisfaction of above 95%. In response to the queries raised
by distributors, we will improve the efficiency of communication with
them, speed up product supply and strengthen the provision of technical
support and product training support, aiming to maintain a healthy and
stable cooperative relationship with distributors.
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Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to privacy and security of customer
information and continuously strengthens and regulates collection,
review, maintenance and management of customer-related information
and comprehensively safeguards the privacy rights and interests of
customers. The Group incorporates customer privacy protection into
the contract, and further clarifies the details of customer information
security and protection in the employment contract and the employee
handbook, making clear the related requirements to employees for
protecting customer privacy. No employee can disclose personal
information of customers to third parties without the consent of the
customers themselves; and employees should strictly comply with the
data privacy policy and are strictly prohibited from acting in breach of
data confidentiality.

Customer Complaint Mechanism

We deal with customer complaints about product quality in a timely
and effective manner, ensure that customer complaints are satisfactorily
resolved, improve the quality of our products and avoid the same quality
accidents from happening again, For this purpose, the Group has
established the After-sales Claims Settlement Process and Policy and
clarified the internal after-sales service management process to ensure
stable and effective after-sales services. We also record and make
statistics on defective products and analyze the reasons for continuous
improvement of products and services.

Complaint Handling
Department:
Receive complaints

Marketing/Quality
Management
Department:

information
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Analyse complaints
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Quality Management
Department:
Resolve complaints
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e |isten to
customer
complaints and
identify the type of
complaint
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e |dentify the responsible
department and
analyse the reasons,
and transfer it to the
responsible department
for processing after
confirmation by the
quality control director
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e Solve the problems
of the customer
according to the
solution provided
by the Customer
Complaint Handling
Department
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Customer Complaint Handling Process
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At the same time, the Group has set up the Customer Complaint
Handling Procedures, which specify the complaint mechanism, person
in charge and closing time. Customers can provide feedback and
suggestions on our products and services through telephone, internet,
and customer satisfaction surveys. Customer Service Department,
Quality Department, Technology Department, Supply Chain Management
Department and other related departments and suppliers perform their
respective duties and assist each other to jointly resolve customer
complaints. For major customer complaints, the Group responds to
customers within 4 hours, completes containment measures within 24
hours and completes 8D reports within 3 days’. During the year, the
Group received a total of 162 complaints, and resolved them based on
the procedures for 100% of the complaining customers.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are important partners of the Group in pursuing sustainable
development. The Group continuously improves its supplier management
system and integrates the key elements of sustainable development
into the whole process of supplier admission, certification, selection,
performance evaluation and management, providing an important
guarantee for the provision of safe, healthy and high-quality products.

Strict Procurement Standards

We recognize that suppliers are critical to product quality. We strictly
control the quality of products from the procurement process, and
continue to manage the quality of the high-quality supply chain, so as
to effectively avoid the risk of violations caused by unqualified supplies
and service quality of suppliers. The Group has formulated internal
systems such as the Control Procedures for Supplier Management, the
Supplier Management System and the Basic Regulations for Procurement
Management to standardize a series of operational processes such as
supplier development, review, admission, assessment and elimination.
During the year, the Group had 1,051 qualified suppliers, of which a
total of 998 were located in Mainland China, 14 in Hong Kong and 39
overseas, with an increase of 78 qualified suppliers as compared with
2020.

4 8D report, also known as 8D problem solving method, is a method
used by quality engineers or other professionals to deal with and
solve problems.
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fHFE R R &

Supplier
Review and
Admission
HEETE

BEEA

HEETE
BLEA
HEBSRE
FTRER

RIE-HERELSHRS

Core and
Strategic
Supplier
Management
A2 100 B B G 4
s E R

Compilation
and
Maintenance
of Supplier :

List Supplier
Performance
Appraisal and
Management

SRR
ERRER

g R R
1) £ e

Supplier Management Flowchart
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New supplier assessment is an important part of supplier management.
We classify suppliers according to the type of purchased items, and
then conduct on-site and data reviews. When a new supplier passes the
evaluation, it is considered qualified for trial, and the trial period is three
months. After the trial period, the Supplier Management Department
confirms whether relevant suppliers meet the management requirements
for qualified suppliers in the trial period. If yes, these suppliers are
included in the List of Qualified Suppliers which is updated quarterly by
the relevant departments. We hope to establish long-term and stable
cooperative relations with suppliers through this, while ensuring that their
production level and product quality meet the requirements of the Group.

When a supplier is rated as unqualified in the annual audit, the Group
suspends new project cooperation and gives it a 3-month rectification
period while preparing for any possible transfer-order plan. If the re-
examination remains unqualified, the BU Supplier Management
Department fills in the Supplier Elimination Application Form, which is
reviewed by the department head the Quality Management Department
and the Technology Development Department. After review, the Supplier
Management Department of the Group signs the form, and the supply
chain head of the Group cancels its qualification as a qualified supplier
upon approval.
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e Update of qualified supplier information
to the List of Qualified Suppliers
s FHAMHREEEE(ERERES
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HER
Assessment
e Assessment and rating of suppliers, E:HE

such as on-site QSA review, sample
evaluation, social responsibility survey
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e Assessment of suppliers in terms
of the yield of and timely delivery
rate for incoming materials, the
reasonableness of prices and degree
of support
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Selection
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e Supplier information review, such
as whether the supplier has RoHS,
REACH related certification and
supplier’s social responsibility
undertaking
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Process for Selecting Qualified Suppliers
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Promoting Responsible Procurement

In order to ensure that suppliers assume their own environmental,
employee and social responsibilities, all suppliers must pass the Group’s
social and environmental responsibility risk assessment, including filling
in the EICC Social Responsibility Survey Form and signing the Social
Responsibility Pledge, so as to urge suppliers to comply with various
regulations of supply chain management.
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Management Measures on Suppliers’ Social Responsibility

HEBHEEEEESE

e Establish a social responsibility performance file for suppliers, and maintain evidence and records of evaluation results

and improvement measures
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e Select suppliers based on their social responsibility performance, and give priority to suppliers who perform well and are

willing to improve
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e All suppliers should sign the Social Responsibility Pledge after receiving an order or contract, and promise to abide by

local labor regulations and industry standards
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e The production department arranges an on-site audit for suppliers at least once a year to evaluate the supplier’s social

responsibility performance and follow up on improvement measures
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e Existing suppliers who intentionally use child labor, forced labor or other violations of labor laws and regulations shall be

immediately terminated from the partnership

ZRAHEENEERAEL REBFHNAEMER I ERNTR > BIUAE LS FRE

Promoting Green Procurement

The Group actively promotes green purchasing. In purchasing activities,
we give priority to environmentally friendly products and services,
taking into account and with due consideration of social responsibility
and environmental performance of suppliers. We require suppliers of
extremely important production materials to have 1ISO9001, RoHS and
3C certificates etc. to help us understand their management level at the
environmental and social aspects. We require our suppliers to strictly
manage the chemicals in their products and also work with them in terms
of energy and water conservation to reduce the negative impact of their
operations on the environment. We consider cancelling of suppliers who
are punished by administrative organs of the government for violating
relevant social responsibilities.
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Clean and Honest Operation

The Group advocates a corporate culture of honesty and fairness and
has adopted a “Zero Tolerance” attitude towards any form of corruption
and bribery. For all global business activities, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations on anti-corruption® to prevent any acts of unfair
competition, thus creating an honest and efficient working environment.

Anti-corruption

The Group has formulated a series of anti-corruption management
systems such as the Anti-Fraud Management System and the
Regulations on Incorrupt Practices to prohibit bribery, embezzlement,
misappropriation of public funds, unfair competition and other violations
of professional ethics.

The Group adheres to a fair and impartial professional attitude to
ensure integrity in our business operations. We evaluate materiality and
possibility of fraud risk every year and implement the corresponding
risk control measures according to the evaluation results, including but
not limited to providing moral education and strengthening constraints
under documents and systems. We avoid any direct or indirect forms
of bribery and other commercially illegal acts, and strictly manage the
flow of funds of the Group to prevent money laundering. We also require
every employee to strictly abide by business ethics, follow the Group’s
management system of the Regulations on Incorrupt Practices and sign
the Integrity and Self-discipline Undertaking.

Whistle-blowing and Grievance Mechanism
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In order to smooth the whistle-blowing channels and use the Internet for addressing
anti-corruption, the Group’s WeChat public account “Integrity NVC International” serves
as the official window for NVC International to receive whistle-blowing and suggestions.
This started operations during the year. Employees can report potential corruption
incidents through the whistle-blowing mailbox or WeChat official account to maintain the

Group’s clean environment and prevent corruption.
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< For laws and regulations on anti-corruption, please see the section J
headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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The Group has established a whistle-blowing and grievance mechanism
consisting of four channels: letters, visits, calls and the Internet, and
is committed to encouraging employees and related parties with direct
or indirect business relationships with us to report corruption through
various channels we have set up to effectively play a supervisory role.
The Audit and Risk Control Department investigates possible violations
and reports the investigation results to the Board of Directors or the
chairman of the Board. If an employee is found to have violated relevant
regulations, he/she is subject to disciplinary actions, including dismissal,
demotion, and position transfer, based on relevant regulations. If an
employee is found to have violated the criminal law, such a case is
transferred to judicial authorities for handling. During the year, there was
no case of non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering, and the Group was not involved in any corruption
cases.

The whistleblower reports the corruption event
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REERIIERE K RE -~ @& AL
—BEHBRRRFES RNORSEBE T K
HERMEERNERETRENERS &
BEMARINZEREEBRERETR A
MEEEEFRA -BstRIEMHAETE
WEEBZTRETHELRSEHFERLE
BEEFETNEER-HERETEER
TR BREEEREGTLREED B2
W ERRABE BLNEERBES
ERBAEE -FR AEEKHEEEEEM
BRAMBEER PR WFERARBEHEL
EEAEARRENERERAERERE
TESREMEBEZRE-

The Audit and Risk Control Department
investigates the event and collects evidence

Bt AESETHAENE

When necessary, a special investigation team is established,
and external expert is invited to support the investigation

VERREIFHREENE  BFEIMNBERGHRE

Report Handling Process

BIEIETTIE

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH
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Anti-corruption Training

In order to deepen the Company’s core values of integrity and further
enhance the compliance management systems, the Group organizes
employees to receive professional ethics training from time to time.
During the year, we carried out integrity publicity and education for
all employees and the Board, and successively updated and released
institutional documents such as the Internal Audit Work Cooperation
Regulations, the Anti-Fraud Management System, the Regulations on
Incorrupt Practices and the Accountability Management Regulations on
the OA channel from January to March 2021 to educate employees to
improve their ideological moorings and strengthen their awareness of
business ethics.

Community Engagement

The growth of the Group is inseparable from the support of the local
community. The Group attaches great importance to creating a good
community atmosphere, actively informs the details of its business
performance to the society, promotes healthy development of the
community, and provides financial assistance and donations to
disadvantaged groups within its capacity. The Group mainly repays the
community’s support to the Group by means of donations. During the
year, the Group provided assistance in the fight against the epidemic in
Bac Ninh, Vietnam, and donated a total of RMB45,000 for the Covid-19
vaccines.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Performance Data Summary

Environmental Data

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - ERERHRS

HBERBRME
RIGBIE

indicator i o
Resources consumption BHIRHE
Electricity (kWh) BH(E/TRR 24,134,309 21,763,561
Petrol (Litre) OB (AT 57,639 44,860
Diesel (Litre) 55m (A F) 10,836 6,820
Natural gas (m?) AR ALFK) 404,585 538,694
Total energy consumption (GJ) BERHFEMEE (TIEER) 104,860 100,995
Total energy intensity WEEREE (FIKEE
(GJ/thousand RMB revenue) T ARBEE XL 0.0442 0.0080
Tap water (Tonne) B ZEK (M) 133,467 95,499
Water consumption intensity BKEE
(Tonne/thousand RMB revenue) M,/ T ARBEE 0.0562 0.0406
Greenhouse gas RERE
Total emissions (tCOze) “HkmE (M-_aikEg2) 15,780 18,739
Direct emission (scope 1) (tCOze) BHiZHEN (E—)

(H_|ERES) 1,057 1,303
Indirect emission (scope 2) (tCOze) BiEHER (BE D)

(MEZEhEE 14,724 17,436
Emission intensity HHEE (WM_athEE
(tCO2e/thousand RMB revenue) T ARBEE XL 0.0066 0.0333

Apart from intensity data, the environmental data for 2020 o

disclosed in this report only includes data for “Continuing

Operations” (the headquarter of NVC International Holdings

Limited, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base and

Guangdong Zhuhai Base)

PR BUR SN » AR & P B2 R2020F 1R
BHERGEFECEER (BLER
ZERARATEHB HDILEM BiE
BRE M ERIEEM) NEUE
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2020°

|

Indicator 1518
Exhaust gas pollutants EERISEY

Nitrogen oxides (Tonne)
Sulphur oxides (Tonne)
Smoke and dust (Tonne)

Wastewater pollutants
Chemical oxygen demand (Tonne)
Ammonia — Nitrogen (Tonne)

Hazardous waste

Total amount of hazardous waste generated
(Tonne)

Waste oil (Tonne)

Sludge residuals (Tonne)

Packages for waste mineral oil (Tonne)
Oily wastewater (Tonne)

Waste packaging drums (Tonne)
Waste lamp tubes (Tonne)

Activated carbon (Tonne)

Waste circuit boards (Tonne)

Others (Tonne)

Non-hazardous waste

Total amount of non-hazardous waste
generated (Tonne)

Recycled waste (Tonne)
Non-recyclable waste (Tonne)

Consumption of packaging materials
Total amount of packaging materials (Tonne)
Plastic bags (Tonne)

Colour boxes (Tonne)

Paper boxes (Tonne)

Labels (Tonne)

Others (Tonne)

a=1ty ()
Aty ()
1 28 (0)

BEKB 3
{tE2RaE ()
28 ()

EEBERY
BEEEEYEE (H)

Bz ()

FIERI5JE (MR)
BEEEY R (M)
EHEE K (ME)
REGLEEE (W)
BEIBE (M)

EMER (ME)

BEEE Bk (HR)

H A ()

—REEEY
—RERYEE (8)

G2 (ME)
TRk E (ME)

BEMEERE
BEMEHEE (M)
BRR (H)

¥z ()

#rre (W)

=% ()

A (0)

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

0.0663
0.0010
0.4276

0.52
0.16

9.58

0.10

0.12
2.84

6.50
0.02

1,288
875
413

10,588
85
4,124
6,287
19

73

0.0631
0.0008
0.3033

1.27
0.21

9.62

0.14

1.42

7.96

1.108
731
377

9,606
83
3,313
6,014
13
183



Employee Data
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ETHE

Total number of employees
Gender distribution
Male

Female

Functional distribution
Management

Front-line

Age distribution

<30

30-50

>50

Regional distribution
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Employment type distribution
Full-time

Part-time

Contract type distribution
Long-term contract
Fixed-term contract

HWAE
%553
B

ZM%

B& BE 93 5
=g

EIE

FR 2
<30

30-50

>50
& 9
R

58

pSDAN

B S
el

FI
SREE S
RHEE
BEEHER

2,627

1,068
1,559

538
2,089

532
1,840
255

2,223
10
394
2,626

587
2,040

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH

2020

|

2,800

1,101
1,699

237
2,563

643

1,917

240

2,363

432

2,800

613
2,187
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Educational distribution
Doctor’s degree

Master’s degree

Bachelor’s degree

College degree

Below college degree

Turnover - by age

Number of employees lost

<30

30-50

>50

Quarterly average turnover rate
<30

30-50

>50

Turnover - by region

Number of employees lost
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Quarterly average turnover rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Turnover - by gender
Number of employees lost
Male

Female

Quarterly average turnover rate
Male

Female

New hire - by age

Number of new employees

<30

30-50

>50

Quarterly average new hire rate
<30

30-50

>50

BEDMG

Et

L

wH

A&

RELF
KB REER
mMERANE

<30

30-50

>50
FEFEREE
<30

30-50

>50

MKRER BHE
mEANE

7 it

5%

&b
FEFHRKE
At

5%

B
TRIE - R
mERANE

B

g
FEFHREER
B

2z

MBBER-RER

DN PN
<30
30-50
>50

FETHMARE

<30
30-50
>50
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2020
1 0

28
349
384

1,865

594
876
126

27.91%
11.90%
12.35%

1,367
3
226

15.37%
7.50%
14.34%

801
795

18.75%
12.75%

538
677
44

25.28%
9.20%
4.31%

18
267
304

2,211

576
643
79

27.6%
8.8%
8.3%

1,101

193

11.8%
22.2%
20.3%

674
624

16.6%
10.0%

649
691
33

31.1%
9.5%
3.5%
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2020

10

New hire - by region

Number of new employees
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Quarterly average new hire rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

New hire - by gender

Number of new employees

Male

Female

Quarterly average new hire rate
Male

Female

Training performance - by gender
Total number of employees trained
Male

Female

Percentage of employees trained
Male

Female

Total training hours

Male

Female

Training performance - by function
Total number of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Percentage of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Total training hours

Management

Front-line

Occupational safety and health training'®
Total training person-time

Total training hours

The data of occupational safety and health training covers data
of Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong

Zhuhai Base and Vietnam NVC

HHEBER-tE
AR AZ

A

R

B4
FETHOMARE
k)

£

o
HBEER-RIER
MABAR

St

2k
EETIOMARE
St

g i
1N AE - B
RNBAZ

St

2k

ZiESL

Bk

2t

Z A48 I 88

St

2t

1A AR - TR B BE
RABAH

=]

A A%

RiBESLE

BIiE

IES

Z 48 &

BIiE

AR
WEZ 2 ARREEI
HINBAR
AR B &

10

1,169 998

3 1

87 374
13.15% 10.7%
7.50% 5.6%
5.52% 39.3%
651 671
608 702
15.24% 16.5%
9.75% 11.2%
873 902
1,406 1,431
81.74% 81.9%
90.19% 84.2%
11,479 2177
19,728 156
330 156
1,949 2,177
61.34% 65.8%
93.30% 84.9%
3,565 2,392
27,642 22,314
7,689 5,416
15,466 18,785

BEZERERBFIHEERENRTILE
e EEFHEEM ERFEEM AR
BTHEE

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH
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Operational Data EIE e
o #o R o

Total number of suppliers HREmE LR / ES 1,051 973
Regional distribution it & 73

Hong Kong EEME / EX 14 18
Mainland China alE N / ES 998 935
Other regions Hihh & / EX 39 20
Community engagement HE28

Public welfare investment UNCECIN RMB10,000 BT 4.5 25.0
Hours of voluntary work BB TIERE Hour INEF - -

152  NvC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HHERELGKRS

Content Index AAZES|

The content index of this Report includes the Global Reporting Initiative A RFERN B RSB S (2 RBSEZHET
Sustainability Reporting Standards, and the Environmental, Social, and I(F4ERRERMELREYRBFEBHM ST ZT TR
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board i iRAIf#E _+ - (B1E - HERE AR

Listing Rules of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. L1551 Yo

GRI

Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark

GRIEE  ESGEE3|  ## Bt /st

General Disclosure —BKE
Organisational Profile 48R 102-1 Name of the organisation e Cover the Annual Report FRHA

102-2 Activities, brands, products and ~ EE)» @2 EME  Annual Report - Management FR-EEEHRA
services % Discussion and Analysis vaii

102-3 Location of headquarter aRuE Hong Kong, China FEAE

102-4 Location of operations BEME Annual Report - Company Profle  £3#-AF N3

102-5 Ownership and legal form FrEREEET Y Annual Report - Company Profle  E£#H-AFN R

102-6 Markets served fRENHE Annual Report - Company Profle ~ £H-AFN R

102-7 Scale of the organisation BERE Annual Report - Financial ER-BBEHE

Highlights

102-8 B1.1 Information on employees and ~ BARETHEMTE Employee Composition ETHEM
other workers EEE

1029 B5 Supply chain s Supply Chain Management LEEEE

102-10 Significant changes to the AEREEEENE  No Significant Changes BEARE(
organisation and its supply chain ~ K&1E

102-11 Precautionary principle or BERAF A Environmental management BREER
approach

102-12 External initiatives SNEbER Code of Conduct - Responsible & EFHEHK BT

Business Alliance HER
102-13 Membership of associations P Sustainability Management ARESRER

ETERERERAT 2021F:% 153
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  ## Bt/
Strategy B 102-14 Statement from senior decision- ~ BAARENER  Chairman’s Statement FRHE
maker
Ethics and Integrity BEMEE 102-16 Values, principles, standards and B~ REI E£R  Sustainablity Management HERRER
norms of behaviour 1ARE
Governance Eh 102-18 Governance structure BRER Sustainability Management AREYRER
Stakeholder Engagement FIZIEEASE  102-41 Collective bargaining agreements £ /137 If they are not applicable in BEMENLE
locations of operation, relevant B> BEFHERAR
laws shall be complied with ER
102-42 Identifying and selecting Rz BRI A 9B Stakeholder Engagement gl
stakeholders B
102-43 Approach to stakeholder Rz A2 E A8 Stakeholder Engagement FaEknER
engagement
102-44 Key topics and concerns raised R HHIFZZEME  Stakeholder Engagement FaEmnER
Il
Reporting Practice HEER 102-45 Entities included in the AHEERERFE  Annual Report - Notes to FR-AHIERE
consolidated financial statements  ZME 5 the Consolidated Financial Lipz
Statements
102-46 Defining report content and topic  RERENALEEE  About the Report BRARE
boundaries ER
102-47 List of material topics BEHEENR Material Topic Assessment BENEENN
102-48 Restatements of information BRER No restatement BESER
102-49 Changes in reporting REEL No Significant Changes BEARE(
102-50 Reporting period REH About the Report BRARE
102-51 Date of the most recent report ~ RITREFHA About the Report BRARE
102-52 Reporting cycle REBEH About the Report BRARE
102-53 Contact point for questions AEAREMBENE  About the Report BRARE
regarding the report BAEHR
102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance  FFAGRIZEEITHR  About the Report BRARE
with the GRI Standards kL
102-55 GRI content index GRRAES| Content Index bS]
102-56 External assurance NP There is no external assurance for KREEES K}
the report temporarily i)

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  #i# Bt/
Material Topics BHEEE
Talent management ANTER 108 Bi Report how the organization SEHENAEEZ  Talent Management AT ERE
manages the material aspect or ~ BEMRHFEREFE
its impacts
405-1 B1.1 Total number of employees by~ #15]  BE&EE  Performance Data Summary UERERE
gender, employment type (such as (2B aEE) «
full-time or part-time), age group,  FEAEF RIMEE D
and region. HES @
4011 Bi1.2 New employee hires and HEEIMEIRE Performance Data Summary HERRRE
employee turnover x
4012 Bi Benefits provided to full-time RMHL2HET (R Talent Management ATER
employees that are not provided ~ BEEREAERE
to temporary or part-time T) H4ER
employees
Customer healthand ~ BRREEZZ 103 Report how the organization HEHENAEEZ  Quality Assurance nBERE
safety manages the material aspect or  BEMZERHTE
its impacts
416-2 B6.1 Violations involving health and AR ZERFRHELIE  Quality Assurance RERE
safety of products and services ~ BER2NERSEH
Customer satisfaction ~ BRWEE 103 B6 Report how the organization REBMETNEEEZ  Customer satisfaction ZEREE
manages the material aspector BEMFBEREFE
its impacts
418-1 B6.2 Number of products and service-  ZERMR EMMERHE  Customer satisfaction ERREE
related complaints received and IR R8I E LR fE %
how they are dealt with babi
Economic performance & ER R 108 Report how the organization SEEEENEEEZ  Annual Report - Management FR-EEEHRA
manages the material aspector ~ BEMZEREFZ  Discussion and Analysis paxiit
its impacts
201-1 Direct economic value generated  BIEE4EF AR Annual Report - Financial Review &3 -# #[0]§
and distributed EEE
Product quality EREEEE 103 B6 Information on: BEMRMEERMR  Quality Assurance mERE
management (a) the policies; and BEHRRAZE B
(b) compliance with relevant EBERIEET  Laws and Regulations ERRER
laws and regulations that havea  MURERAEN |
significant impact on the issuer (BB ; &
relating to health and safety, bEFHETABE
advertising, labelling and privacy ~ A% EREREER
matters relating to products and  $EHIAIEHR
services provided and methods of
redress
B6.4 Description of quality assurance  ##lBERTBER  Qualty Assurance nBERE

process and recall procedures

EnBfER

BLERERARAE 202155
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  ## Bt/
Other Topics HitE
Economic &
Anti-corruption RE® 103 B7 Report how the organization ABRENRERZ
manages the material aspect or ~ BEWHFEREFE
its impacts ) .,
103 B7.2 Report how the organization HEREINEER incomupt Praclie e
manages the material aspect or BEMBERHFE
its impacts
205-3 B7.1 Confirmed incidents of corruption EHZMNEEEH K
and actions taken FRH17E
205-2 B7.3 Describe anti-corruption training ~ MALEEERE TR  Incorrupt Practice [ERAES
provided to directors and EHRESE
employees
Environment o3
Environmental Protection 2R 438 103 Report how the organization AERENEEEZ
Compliance manages the material aspect or ~ BEWFEREFE
its impacts ) .
307-7 Non-compliance with ERBEEEAR Enironmental Managerent ki
environmental laws and
regulations
Energy R 103 A2 Policies on the efficient use of ~ BHEAER (B  Resource Management BRER
resources, including energy, water A58~ kR EL R
and other raw materials K BB
302-1 A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy RENUNNER
302-3 consumption by type (e.g. &/ SBEER (N
electricity, gas or oil in total KWh &R B2
in'000s) and intensity (e.g. per ~ (NFEFREE  Performance Data Summary HERRRE
unit of production volume, per &) RBE (ILEE
facility) S8 §ERM
g)
302-4 A2.3 Reduction of energy consumption  J8i/) & BB £ Resource Management BRER
Water Resources KER 108 A2 Policies on the efficient use of ~ BHEAER (B  Resource Management BRER
resources, including energy, water AER K REMEM
and other raw materials K BB
303-5 A22 Water withdrawal by source RIBBIDMEKE  Performance Data Summary YERRRBE
303-1 A2.4 Description of whether thereis LK EUERKRL  Resource Management BRER
any issue in sourcing water that ~ AIAEEEE Uk
is fit for purpose, water efficiency 327 Bk Mz st Bl K
initiatives and results achieved ~ FT8ME

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  #i# Bt/
Ermissions b2.3,/4 305 At Information on: BEEERRAERE Emissions Management HHER
(a) the policies; and R mk R
(b) compliance with relevant 5 BEREZE  Laws and Regulations ARRER
laws and regulations that havea ~ EYIMELEN
significant impact on the issuer (@B ; &
relating to air and greenhouse ~ (OfETHHITABE
gas emissions, discharges into FENRMARR
water and land, and generation  FIFE R
of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste
305-1 A12 Greenhouse gas emissions in REREAHNE
305-2 total (in tonnes) and, where (WIEZHE) R (1
305-4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit ) ZE (MMEE Performance Data Summary UERERE
of production volume, per facility) &+ SB K5t
g)
305-7 A1 The types of emissions and BRMEERAEE  Performance Data Summary UERERE
respective emissions data HEE
306-3 A15 Description of measures to EREHMERE  Emissions Management HHER
mitigate emissions and results  FERFIEME
achieved
Sewage and Waste BAHEEY  306-3 M3 Total hazardous waste FELAEEENE
produced (in tonnes) and, where & (WHEEHE) K (11
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit Bf) ZE (MUSE
of production volume, per faciity) ZE i SBR st
g)
306-3 A4 Total non-hazardous waste FELRERENA Perfomance Data Summery LEELLES
produced (in tonnes) and, where 2 (MUMEEHE) K& (0
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit ) BE (MMUEE
of production volume, per facilty)  EE i+ SBERHis
g)
306-4 A6 Description of how hazardous ~ HiilEEEERES  Emissions Management HHER
and non-hazardous wastes are  EEEWN AL A
handled, reduction initiatives and ~ E£ ERIEH R F1E
results achieved R
Packaging Material BEME 301-1 A25 Total packaging material used for ~ EPL@FTAE %MK Performance Data Summary HERERE
finished products (in tonnes) and, #1482 (UM E) Rk
if applicable, with reference to per  ((NEME) BLEE
unit produced fifhg

BLERERARAE 202155
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  ## Bt/
Environment and Natural BEREAZR 103 A3 Policies on minimising the AEETARRER
Resources issuer's significant impact on IREREREAE
the environment and natural 2MEE.
resources.
A3 Description of the significant EHEREHEIRE  Envionmental Management REEER
impacts of activities on the eV ENA
environment and natural LRERBEERH
resources and the actions taken ¥/ 2#1{78)
to manage them
Energy Saving/Green  EAEE®R/ 103 A3 Report how the organization SEBBNAEEZ  Green and Innovative Products  BEREIFER
Product SEER manages the material aspect or ~ BEWHEREFE
its impacts
Climate Change a2t 108 A Report how the organization HEHENAEEZ  Tackling Climate Change EHRBRE®
manages the material aspect or ~ BEWHFEREFE
its impacts
201-2 AdA Describe material climate-related  H#EBLRAEEH  Tackling Climate Change EHREE®
matters that have and may have ~ ZfTAEEFENE
an impact on the issuer, and AREREEE K
actions to address them. FEHTE-
Social itg
Health and Safety REERZ 103 B2 Information on: BERME2IMRE Occupational Safety and Health ~ BEZ2EEE
(a) the policies; and BRGEEEERE
(b) compliance with relevant ERBEN. Laws and Regulations ERRER
laws and regulations that have  (@)BI% ; &
a significant impact on the bBTHETAEE
issuer relating to providing a FENEMERR
safe working environment and B HIRER
protecting employees from
occupational hazards
403-9 B2.1 Number and rate of work-related ~ FTER&MSETH  Performance Data Summary HERRRE
403-10 fatalities N 9di
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury RIER%IERY  Performance Data Summary YERRRZ
403 B2.3 Description of occupational health  fEILFTFMAIEEE  Occupational Safety and Health ~ BXZ2EEE
and safety measures adopted, ~ BEZ 2 MUK
how they are implemented and ~ HEIRTNER A%

monitored

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HHERELGKRS

GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  #i# Bt/
Development and BERSE 404-2 B3 Policies on improving employees’  BEEFHEEETT  Training and Development BisER
Training knowledge and skils for ERENRE R
discharging duties at work. MBI
Description of training activities &)
B3.1 The percentage of employees R REEERE
trained by gender and employee  HHIRIIEEBAL
category
4041 B3.2 The average training hours R R ESERE Perfomance Data Summary £
completed per employee by 2 BLEERRT
gender and employee category I FEEH
Labour Standards £l 419 B4 Information on: BREBLETHRT
) the po‘hmes; arwd %Ié? Prevention of Child and Forced ~ FFIEE T RiH%
(b) compliance with relevant (B ; & Labour T
laws and regulations that have a ~ (D)ETHEFTAEE
signi.ficant impact ?n thel issuer ?3%?9\@%55%1?& Laws and Regulations FRREE
relating to preventing chidand ~ FREIBIER
forced labour
408-1 B4.1 Description of measures to review  ##t i& 1A EEEfIf
409-1 employment practices to avoid EEMERETRE
child and forced labour HIBT Prevention of Child and Forced ~ FiLEET R&1BE
408-1 B4.2 Description of steps teken to WREERERER Labour I
409-1 eliminate such practices when FERERBERAMER
discovered b
Supply Chain HREEERE 414 B5 Policies on managing BTEMHEENERER  Supply Chain Management REREE
Management environmental and socil risks of 1t & BRER
the supply chain
102-9 B5.1 Number of suppliers by BB B DMMIES  Performance Data Summary UERERE
geographical region %5
103 B5.2 Description of practices relating 1t/ BRI AIER
to engaging suppliers. Number of  BYIEH - IEHITE
suppliers where the practices are  FARYBHINLIER &
being implemented, how they are B> LUR B BB AR
implemented and monitored IREERE
308-1 B5.3 Describe the practices for WA AR HEsE
4141 identifying environmental and SRERENRER
social risks at each stage of the ~ GABRRIER: MUK ‘
supply chain, and how they will be BERTRERS Supply Ghal aragemen AREREE
implemented and monitored. o
308-2 B5.4 Describe the practices FEREHERR
that promote the use of RESARRERR
environmentally friendly products ~ BR¥EIER LUK AE
and services when selecting BRIREZRR %o

suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BTEFZERERAT 2021FH
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GRI
Indicator ~ ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
GRIEE  ESGHES|  ## Bt/
Product Liability EmET 108 B6 Information on: BRRREERMR Laws and Regulations mBRHE
(a) the policies; and ENRRAZE R
(b) compliance with relevant T EERFEZE  Quality Assurance ARRAR
laws and regulations that have a MR BB AA
significant impact on the issuer ~ (@)EI% ; &
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 169 to 352,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Standards”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
FAREtHIE

e g

HBRBSHEZESRBRFMOEEHE R
MR EMHBRRNBARSEEZN
FR-EEFHEEAERMBARERSY
BREAKHARRKHETREN - HMAL
EHELESREHEBIER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RMNEA MR EIEAREETFE

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate, Brilliant
Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd. (“BLIHP”)

FE—Z B & 2\ EBrilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.
(I'BLIHP ) B9# 2 8 & 57 1

We identified the impairment assessment of interest
in an associate, BLIHP, as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the total
assets of the consolidated financial statements, and
significant judgment and estimates are involved in
determining the recoverable amount of interest in
BLIHP.

A I E A B BLIHPEY R &5 8 (B 5T (4 FE IE 4 R 38
B ER EHRGRENGOUBERRBEENEE
Mo BREBERBLIHPH# & 2 7] W B & 28 B &k 8
R H B R 5t o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
interest in BLIHP included:

HMBEBRBLHPH & B T E MR F 81
o Understanding and evaluating the key control over the

management’s impairment assessment process of its
interest in BLIHP;

J TERTHE BEEEEEEMENBLHPHE R E
ST BIRFRPT TR 24 ;

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuer and obtaining an understanding of its scope of
work and terms of engagement;

. MBI A EREELEMNBER N FXEENRK
BEME 0T RETFEERERRR



Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

B EE

Independent Auditor’s Report
EARVR 2 GIES

MEEFFE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB M ARERRBEEA SR

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest
in BLIHP with carrying amount of approximately
RMB583,239,000 which represented 18% of the
net assets of the Group. As disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements, BLIHP
is engaged in investment holding, manufacture
and sales of lamps, luminaries, lamp transformers,
lighting electronic products and other appliances.
Due to the deteriorated financial performance of
BLIHP, the Group’s management conducted an
impairment assessment of the interest in BLIHP by
comparing the recoverable amount of the interest in
BLIHP which were estimated based on value in use
calculation with the carrying amount.
R2021F12H31H B&EEMNBLIHPE S #m REMBEY
A AREL83,230F 00 1 BEEBEFEEMN18% - MULE
IR 24P B > BLIHPUH SR EZER U R WIS R4
EXFEBEEHERS BAEEFERMKEMER AN
BLIHPH M BB BSEEEEEBEBLEERNBLIHP
RN E e (REEREBESEGS) BREEHR
BLIHPHY 4 & #E 17 B (B 57k ©

o Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs, namely sales growth rates,
gross margin and perpetual growth rates, based on
the historical financial performance of BLIHP and the
industry trend; and

. RIBEBLIHPE S B RIBRITEBS > BHMERR
KA (BIEHEEER s EFEXRKAEER) NG
B &

o Engaging our internal valuation expert to evaluate
the appropriateness of the valuation technique, i.e.
discounted cash flows method, and the reasonability
of discount rate used in the value in use calculation.

o ZEBRMOABLEERT Lt E LR EER SRR
EERZE BMTRBEEREE) RITRENES M -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

RREEE

MEEFFE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB WA REERRBEA SR

The Group’s management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to assist them to determine the
recoverable amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past
performance of BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s
management for the market development estimate. The value
in use calculation is based on the investor’s share of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by BLIHP, based on certain key assumptions
and inputs, namely sales growth rates, gross margin,
perpetual growth rates and discount rate, used to estimate
future cash flows.
EEENEEEZRBEUSEREELEMBE K ERE
BLIHPRBEXRIFEN R EE£EEEEHTHERMGLAE
HAE EXBLIHPZ R AT Bl £ - st E R EBEENKE
ER(GTRHABLIHPR E £ MR RIS RENRE > MED
SIMERETRBRRZREA > BMESRERREREMAN
HEE R EMNT KA RERITREK

Based on the value in use of the interest in BLIHP, no
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

ERBLIHPH #m N R EE > 8IE2021F12831HIEFE
RIEDE DR ERE

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Standards and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka |.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
8 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

:-\7r | j:ﬁ 15—%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLZE20214F 12531 HIFF Z

Revenue
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss in respect of
goodwill

Impairment losses under
expected credit loss
model, net of reversal

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Profit for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic (RMB cents)

2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
ol=3 FARM FARE
WA 5 2,374,947 2,349,573
#HE A (1,712,515) (1,677,055)
E7 662,432 672,518
Haug A 7 46,524 206,614
HMigm 8 986 (57,856)
HERDHER (272,684) (223,661)
BIEEA (256,222) (273,985)
BRIEENREEL 45
(24,309) (2,582)
FEHAE BB ER T
B R BB 5 > $0 BRI 8
9 4) 4,579
HMh&E s 10 (69,811) (76,018)
M%ER 11 (7,528) (8,010)
PEL B A B & (16,394) (254,054)
METFIE (F518) 62,990 (12,455)
FriS & A 12 (29,524) (7,547)
TEFE (F518) 13 33,466 (20,002)
NNBHEE ANEEREFE (58)
5,814 (51,748)
JF 2 1) 14 A 5 PR (S AS S 7
27,652 31,746
33,466 (20,002)
2021 2020
20214 20204
SRE (F5i8)
BEX (ANR¥ESD) 17 0.14 (1.22)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

mrEEmRHEMEEIAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

PROFIT (LOSS) PROFIT FOR AEFE (5518)
THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htma2mEmER
EXPENSE

Items that will not be reclassified — H#& T 1FEM D IEEIBm<HIEE
to profit or loss:

- Exchange differences arising —RINBEERES
on translation from functional EHEMELNEREZE
currency to presentation
currency
— Fair value loss on investments —EARBESA
in equity instruments at Hi2mEmB AN
fair value through other EBmTAERERNEEREE

comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified BEEEWM T HEEEm&HER .
subsequently to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences arising on  — B BN EFEERN

translation of foreign operations PE 2 A= %8
— Share of other comprehensive —EhBEAREMERE R
income of associates, net of B ABRAFT S

related income tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEHMPEE R
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEE2EMERAAEE
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive (expense) MUFE A EGER

income attributable to: 2HF (BR) WAEE:
— Owners of the Company e VNCIEZT=DN
— Non-controlling interests — FEFEI M M A

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TFARYE TARK
33,466 (20,002)
(17,710) (48,690)
- (14,000)
(17,710) (62,690)
(35,657) (31,590)
18,898 53,450
(16,759) 21,860
(34,469) (40,830)
(1,003) (60,832)
(29,443) (95,102)
28,440 34,270
(1,003) (60,832)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBEIKRR
At 31 December 2021
FR20214F 12531 H

2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
izt FARYE TFAR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBERZE 18 345,591 320,735
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 194,908 211,762
Investment properties KEME 20 7,785 5,807
Goodwill GRS 21 211,386 211,386
Other intangible assets Hthmp & E 22 342,886 366,800
Interests in associates REE AT 2 Em 24 597,470 588,470
Equity instruments at fair value BARBESAEMEZEBAN
through other comprehensive R TA
income 25 14,788 14,000
Financial assets at fair value BAABESTABRNEHMEE
through profit or loss 29 527 =
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 34 10,043 11,069
Deposits fREEE 27 296,987 298,247
2,022,371 2,028,276
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 7E8 28 624,038 421,673
Trade and bills receivables B REHEEWEER 26 500,403 498,777
Other receivables, deposits HEUWIR  REB S RFEN R
and prepayments 27 113,581 95,957
Tax recoverable SN 13,879 1,658
Financial assets at fair value BARBESTABRNEMEE
through profit or loss 29 40,600 25,251
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITER 30 83,272 75,671
Bank balances and cash BITHEGRARIRE 30 948,268 1,226,773
2,324,041 2,345,760
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENa R
Trade payables B SRR 31 609,820 561,320
Other payables and accruals HE IR R Est &R 32 254,301 252,551
Contract liabilities aRAE 33 34,205 47,028
Borrowings R 35 40,035 30,043
Deferred income IR FE UL 2= 36 1,009 1,009
Lease liabilities HEas 37 14,890 17,628
Tax liabilities mEas 15,937 45,519
970,197 955,098
NET CURRENT ASSETS BEREEE 1,353,844 1,390,662
TOTAL ASSETS LESS MEERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,376,215 3,418,938

BTEFZERARAT 2021FH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AFEBBINRR
At 31 December 2021
JR2021E12H531H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Deferred income

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

EREERE

2
=N

I SIE Uy 2
HE&R
EIERIBEE &

BAMFEFES

(&S

(G
KTABEAANEGES
FEEEI Mt

Mg

The consolidated financial statements on pages 169 to 352 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 April

2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

WANG DONGLEI

ILE

DIRECTOR

EF
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2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt FARK FARHK
35 = 3,616
36 1,658 1,747
37 30,352 40,471
34 59,703 58,199
91,713 104,033
3,284,502 3,314,905
38 3 3
3,195,181 3,224,624
3,195,184 3,224,627
89,318 90,278
3,284,502 3,314,905
FHNEI169EIEZ A MBEREER

2022F4FHKEEFTTH ERKETE

WHFNEEARE

CHAN KIM YUNG, EVA
R &1 24
DIRECTOR
EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ZeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TFAR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Profit (loss) before income tax Fr8MaiFE, (Bi8) 62,990 (12,455)
Adjustments for: BYUTHIERE .
Interest income FE A (9,587) (7,549)
Finance costs M &R 7,528 8,010
Share of results of associates iR =N 16,394 254,054
Rental concession HEER = (1,077)
Gain on disposal of property, BREY* BMEKMREEEN
plant and equipment I & (1,292) (1,491)
Loss on disposal of other EEHMERLEENEIE
intangible assets 163 -
Depreciation of property, ME - -BERZERTE
plant and equipment 42,767 29,374
Depreciation of investment KEMENE
properties 240 2,185
Depreciation of right-of-use FHRESEINE
assets 23,944 17,007
Amortisation of other intangible Hithmp & EiEgH
assets 48,656 46,383
Impairment of property, ME-BEKRKRERE
plant and equipment 6,209 -
Impairment loss recognised in A BRI EEK
respect of goodwill 24,309 2,682
Impairment losses under expected FEHAE EHEAL TERBE S
credit loss in respect of trade FEUS BR XAV R (B 18 25 > $0 BRI K
receivables, net of reversal 8,204 (9,630)
Impairment losses under FERREEEBATAREM
expected credit loss in FEWER BRI BB K
respect of other receivables, 0 B R 8
net of reversal (8,200) 5,051
Write-down of inventories WRES 8,477 12,025
Government grants released to BEREeBEmRNBUSTEE
consolidated statement
of profit or loss (89) (90)
Unrealised exchange difference RERERELR - (645)
Fair value change of RIEEBEXREN R A EBEES
held-for-trading investments (16,213) 14,255
Fair value change of contingent RERBRKEN R A EEEE
consideration receivables - 46,066
Waiver of special dividend from —REE QT RREFRKE
an associate - (118,355)
Loss on modification of lease term {E5] 1A & 1§ k518 - 691
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV'F EEEIJILE‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

2021 2020
20214 2020F
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt FTARKE FARYE
Operating cash flows before EEESEFAIKERERE
movements in working capital 214,500 286,391
Decrease in held for trading FrEEBESREERD
financial assets 337 -
Increase in inventories FEEm (225,239) (50,628)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 K R R WBR R (38 00) R
bills receivables (14,126) 117,087
Increase in other receivables, H i FE YRR ~ RE8 & R T RIE M
deposits and prepayments (11,552) (43,795)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 R =ik AT RN CRiL) 32
bills payables (16,531) 7,676
Increase in other payables HME RN Bt & BIEM
and accruals 3,630 26,589
(Decrease) increase in contract aRa’E O&l) Zm
liabilities (11,971) 15,021
Cash (used in) generated from K& (FA) M8R%E
operations (60,952) 358,341
Income tax paid E#FFER (61,705) (546,340)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEEFTAREFEE

ACTIVITIES (122,657) (187,999)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 & 1 #9 $R 17 17 =% (83,272) (19,371)
Withdrawal of pledged bank RN IRITER

deposits 75,671 -
Interest received B WF 8 9,587 7,549
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEEY X WE KX FEEE

property, plant and equipment M FTiSRIE 8,764 5,217
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U BB Y 8 A A 45 8 1,670
Additions to other intangible assets 7~ & HthEH & E (24,012) (18,281)
Purchases of items of property, BEVE BMEMRKXEBER

plant and equipment (49,844) (43,946)
Payment for consideration of TANBE—RBEQARANRKE

acquisition of an associate (7,284) (120,730)
Waiver of special dividend received — S B & A 5] 24 45 5l i 2

from an associate - 107,100
Dividend received from an associate WEY— R & A B IR B - 45,900
NET CASH USED IN KREZEHFAREFEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES (70,382) (34,892)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

uv\ iﬁ,ﬁ/ﬂliﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds of bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

Lease payments

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF YEAR,
represented by bank balances
and cash

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARYE TFARH
Eﬂﬁ%@h
IRITERMTEMIE 11,274 26,944
{afzfﬁhiéfﬂ (3,573) (15,837)
BEIRKRE - (16,908)
BIEEHIMERERIRCIRE
(29,400) (14,700)
BAFE (7,528) (7,375)
HEMR (19,896) (1,626)
MEEHMAREFEE
(49,123) (29,502)
HERAEEEWMRLVBZE
(242,162) (252,393)
FENRERFEEEY
1,226,773 1,551,520
EXEE TR
(36,343) (72,354)
FERRERFEEEEY
IERITERAIRE
948,268 1,226,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

7177 N |
For the

year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

NVC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in the territory of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”") as a limited liability company on 2 March 2006
and was redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and
sale of lamps, luminaries, lighting electronic products and related
products. Information on the Group’s subsidiaries is set out in
Note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of United States dollars (“US$”). The directors of
the Company adopted RMB as presentation currency for the
convenience of the financial statements users.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Standards for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39, IFRS 7
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to IFRS Standards in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

#r o AT ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions and early
application of Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has applied the Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions for the first time and early
applied the Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the current
year retrospectively. The amendments introduce a new
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 pandemic that meets all of the following
conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

. there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendment to IFRS

16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions and early
application of Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
(continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”) if the
changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as
variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of these amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance in the current and prior years as the Group
opted not to apply the practical expedient, but applied
the applicable requirements of IFRS 16 to account for rent
concessions provided by certain lessors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.2

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the
Committee - Cost necessary to sell inventories (IAS 2
Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories. In
particular, whether such costs should be limited to
those that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale should not be limited to those that are
incremental but should also include costs that an entity
must incur to sell its inventories including those that are
not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s
agenda decision was to determine the net realisable
value of inventories taking into consideration incremental
costs only. Upon application of the Committee’s agenda
decision, the Group changed its accounting policy to
determine the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration both incremental costs and other cost
necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'’
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract'

Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards Standards 2018 — 2020

112 8

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2028.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRS Standards
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to IFRS
Standards will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued by International Accounting Standards
Board in March 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
instead of the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
September 2010);

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework (continueq)

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, an
acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but

not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as

current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,

the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(if) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;

and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying |IAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2021, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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RE M HRRMEE

7177 N |
For the

year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such
items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a
case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
IAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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RE M HRRMEE

7177 N |
For the

year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses whether
a contract is onerous in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the unavoidable
costs under the contract should reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling
it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil
it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental costs and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(for example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the Group
has not yet fulfiled all its obligations as at the date of initial
application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IFRS Standards Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE20214E12531 HIFEEZE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LBEMBRRNGEREER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAEHEE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.1  Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3.1 ZEMBRRNEREE
statements (continued) (#&)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an NABEIRIETHEREAE -
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction BESTEHETHNERR Z
between market participants at the measurement date, e — I8 & & P U B of &
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or B—IEaEM (TN ER &
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating MZEREEEEERI A
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes REERRBAEMMGEERME
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability HR Gt T HEEREEN
if market participants would take those characteristics AR BEEHGR  ~&EH
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the ZETHHEZ2EEZERTSER
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ A EENEBBEETEERE
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial BeZENiEg rthhERgs
statements is determined on such a basis, except MHERERPIHERHNIKE
for share-based payment transactions that are within MARBEHLHEIILER EF
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing UEBE  EERFERS ZEL
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an interest in an associate or
a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the International
Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in September 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 /ncome Taxes and IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an interest in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net interest in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the interest in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

204

B F2021F 12531 HIFFEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEUBHRRNGEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEASHHE ()
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Interests in associates (continueq)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the

associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the

same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one

of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group’s intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

o the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities
that significantly affect the intellectual property to
which the customer has rights;

o the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects of
the Group’s activities; and

° those activities do not result in the transfer of
a good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers the
grant of licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time at which the
licence is granted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
volume rebates to major customers for early repayment,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using the expected value method, which
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities
The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group

expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEOMBRERMERERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAEHEE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq) 3.2 HKAKEHHEEK &

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) I 5 5/5 =} ,..72 l/f A Cf%”)

Sale with a right of return/exchange ﬁigﬁﬁ/ HME#EZHE

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange HREFRRE MW AEE

for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the mZ N EREE KEH

following: WRUTPEER :

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the amount (a) HAEETEHEREWEL
of consideration to which the Group expects ZREEICERES
to be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be ZWA (At &5t
recognised for the products expected to be JEHRBRE HmEZE
returned/exchanged); R A) ;

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and (b) BRas/ crRaE;

P4

() an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost (c) MEBFERWEERZ
of sales) for its right to recover products from HAEIEE (RAR
customers and are presented as right to returned HEZHERZA) 12
goods asset. JmBEREEMEEZ

HEF o

Leases /f E

Definition of a lease HEZ T

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys WEHN AP EBMmMLE TIE

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a —ERBRNES e HREE

period of time in exchange for consideration. ERMEF  IZaN BRI
BEHE-
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RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
Definition of a lease (continued)

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied
the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:
o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor

All leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in USD or other currencies to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not capitalised to qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as “deferred income”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS standards require or permit the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E 2021412531 HIFEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GEMBRRINGHREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXEHKE &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EFEAIGHHEK #E)
Taxation ﬁ‘lﬁ
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax FriEME X IEREEEENNRIE
currently payable and deferred tax. B2 3R E R TE BY 48 A0 o
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for BPEEMNKRIEBEYUERXRERDE
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before MAEARE ERRF A
tax because of income or expense that are taxable SR ATRIE (BB18) ~E > BB
or deductible in other years and items that are never ERAOETEMEERERR
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax oMY KARBELIER
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or EBAZRKRI AR INIE
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. HoAEEFEWEEHRIBEBEEK
BRBRESHERAEBHRIE
HEmIREGTH
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences BEIEMRMBL e M BHRE
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities TEENKEBENEREEEB
in the consolidated financial statements and the st EEERAEHERE
corresponding tax bases used in the computation B Er B = ZE R0 o IR IEFR 18
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally BEETECEMFABEESRRE
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred B ERERE cIRIERIEE ElE
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible EEEERIBEIERN
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable K I PR T BF = 58 R L PRy
that taxable profits will be available against which those Aol =5 EmEl o Yy
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such HEEEREHESRRINEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if @M EEELENTZH
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition BEREBGBZVBESD (7S
(other than in a business combination) of assets and EHBIN)  EZEIRERIEE
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable ERBEEFTHES b
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax MEREEEERE 215
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference B A ERRIRERIBES
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continueq)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continueq)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ey

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

a‘i‘%%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂg@ﬁ%gﬁﬁ

g5tHR (&)

ERGHBE (&
HE (&

SHEEEAABREENT
BEMER  AEEEZEER
MERBAESTAERERZE
MEBERTEHEMSR AR
FR {85 R BN BE 55 AR BY SRR E R
BRI o fid AT 5E > RN R R IR AE
MBRBEFSRPRTRF
RE—BNSAEE - HAE R
MBEEA RN REIRERZ TR
EMBRE AEARAIES
BENTEMEERREIENE
EMRFEE-

HE- -BERRE

ME-BERREERNEE
YREEmAARTS > HH T
BENMBAENABRLEE (T
PR TE R ZEFRID) 42~
BB R 3% 18 Th 4% Al A R H &
R TERHABRRFIAERIE
(A REEHMBRRIEA
N

BFEE - HERTHAZEN
£ R8T LUK 2R 1 7 B R
RBREREY R A BE
REEBRERMUEER
RSN EEN LBt E
R EEEENERMAZE
ERMEGEREEMS  SFER
BAEENSTSHRRERT
WERAE ZEEENITE
BELHMYEEENER T
REERHBRBERGER
FIIA5TIE °

BTEFZERARAT 2021FH

223



224

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with definite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with definite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continued)

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with definite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with definite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(if) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) which are subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

For
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(if) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over 1 year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BZEUBHRRNGREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAETHE (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq) 3.2 HKAKEHHEEK &
Financial instruments (continueq) ﬁ" HEIE ( 5)
Financial assets (continued) THEE #B)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEERE )
v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued) (v) FEHEEEEZER
2 (&)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross FEWARESREE
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the HEREABET B EE
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case MEEAEEERENIE
interest income is calculated based on amortised BRI RZIBRT »
cost of the financial asset. MEWARBEMEE
BB AT E o
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss AREEFAFAESR T
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by EZEEEE RIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

For
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7
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the year ended 31 December 2021
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4 A

ITv7 N e
For the

A F5 ER R 5t

year ended 31 December 2021

Bl F20214F 12831 HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had goodwill of
approximately RMB211,386,000 which was arise from
acquisitions of businesses. The Group’s management conducted
impairment assessments of the goodwill by comparing the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with respective carrying
amounts and engaged an independent qualified professional
valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs based on the respective CGUs’ past performance and
the expectations from the Group’s management for the market
development estimate. The value in use calculations utilised cash
flow projections based on financial budgets and an appropriate
discount rate, and involve significant judgement and estimates
on certain key inputs, namely sales growth rate, gross margin,
perpetual growth rates and discount rate. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU is lower than respective carrying amount,
impairment loss would be recognised. Furthermore, the estimated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher degree of
estimation uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, and
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions of the
Group’s wholesale operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of goodwill are
RMB211,386,000 (2020: RMB211,386,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of RMB410,233,000 (2020: RMB385,924,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 23.

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest in BLIHP with
carrying amount of approximately RMB583,239,000 (2020:
RMB580,251,000) which represented 17.8% (2020: 17.5%)
of the net assets of the Group. As disclosed in Note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements, BLIHP is engaged in
investment holding, manufacture and sales of lamps, luminaries,
lamp transformers, lighting electronic products and other
appliances. Due to the deteriorated financial performance of
BLIHP, the Group’s management conducted an impairment
assessment of the interest in BLIHP by comparing the recoverable
amount of the interest in BLIHP, which were estimated based on
value in use calculation, with the carrying amount.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past performance of
BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s management for
the market development estimate. The value in use calculation
is based on the investor's share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by BLIHP,
based on certain key assumptions and inputs, namely sales
growth rates, gross margin, perpetual growth rates and discount
rate, used to estimate future cash flows. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, a material reversal or further
recognition of impairment may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

#r o AT ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of interest in an associate (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the associate
amounted to RMB583,239,000 (2020: RMB580,251,000). No
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss during both
years.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
based on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to
greater financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led
to increased credit default rates. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 44(b)
and 26 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAT5 R R MY X

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

fi= A
i 3

REVENUE 5. WA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) SHERERUWA
customers
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021512831HILEEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments aE brand brand brand Total
4 B i3
BELmhE FELTRE FEELRE =8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR® TAR® FAR®
Sales to external HEIBER
customers 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
Geographical markets ~ #EZk
United States ES 996 - 1,272,895 1,273,891
Japan =F:S - = 303,643 303,643
The PRC =) - 251,503 - 251,503
Netherland Gl - - 169,706 169,706
United Kingdom R 165,169 - 1,778 166,947
Other countries HtmER 146,563 - 62,694 209,257
Total &t 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
Timing of revenue W A TSR B RS
recognition
A point in time EBFRE A 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

5.

REVENUE (continued)

(i)

5.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

WA &)

i) BUEREEWA GE)

B F2020F12831HILEFE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments ban=s brand brand brand Total
] A 7]
BELmhE FELRE FELmME e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE FAR FAR
Sales to external HAESNBER
customers 258,702 238,784 1,852,087 2,349,573
Geographical markets & & &
United States ESE| 2,837 - 1,265,593 1,268,430
Japan S - - 267,511 267,511
The PRC s - 238,784 - 238,784
Netherland farE - - 147,032 147,032
United Kingdom [ 145,211 - 47,568 192,779
Other countries HAE xR 110,654 - 124,383 235,037
Total &t 258,702 238,784 1,852,087 2,349,573
Timing of revenue LN LS
recognition
A point in time HRFRE R 258,702 238,784 1,852,087 2,349,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group sells lighting products to the retailers over the
world.

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the specific location (delivery). Following the delivery,
the customers have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers
have a right to exchange for defective products within
30 days. The Group uses its accumulated historical
experience to estimate the number of exchange on a
portfolio level using the expected value method. Revenue
is recognised for sales which are considered highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. A contract liability
is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The Group’s right to recover the product
when customers exercise their right is recognised as a
right to returned goods and a corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales.

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE
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e MR RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(iii)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All goods provided by the Group are for contracts
with original expected duration of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

o International NVC brand — sales of NVC branded lighting
products outside the PRC

o Domestic non-NVC brand — domestic sales of non-NVC
branded lighting products in the PRC

o International non-NVC brand - sales of non-NVC branded
lighting products outside the PRC

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segments:

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation

Other income

Other gains and losses

Unallocated expenses

Impairment loss in respect of
goodwill

Impairment losses under
expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax

DEHA
HETIHBER

DEEE

HEEH

Hithl

Hfttiam
AOEER
BEREENAERLX

BHEERARETH
BEBK R

MEER
BAEHE AR REA

R AR

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

REDER (&

UTRBREDBEINHNAER W
AREEDHT

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HLEEE

International
NVC

brand

il S

ELmhg
RMB’000
FARY

312,728

Domestic
non-NVC
brand

B
FELMmE
RMB’000
TARE

251,503

International

non-NVC
brand

i3
FEL M o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE

Consolidated

1,810,716 2,374,947

105,804

42,710

513,918 662,432

46,524
986
(598,717)
(24,309)
(4)

(7,528)
(16,394)

62,990
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

6.

REDER (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B ZE2020F12831HILEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
brand brand brand  Consolidated
S A S
BELmkE FEL R FEL R ma
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARK FTARK FARK
Segment revenue: DEBA :
Sales to external customers ~ HHEFIHBERS 258,702 238,784 1,852,087 2,349,573
Segment results DEEE 73,271 53,398 545,849 672,518
Reconciliation HETEH
Other income H At i@ 206,614
Other gains and losses Htigm (57,856)
Unallocated expenses KAERER (573,664)
Impairment loss in respect of B RIEEKHERK
goodwill (2,582)
Impairment losses under BHEEIERELTH
expected credit loss model, AR K MR
net of reversal 4,579
Finance costs MHEH (8,010)
Share of results of associates  FE{GHE & /A 5] E4& (254,054)
Loss before tax A 548 (12,455)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of other income, other gains and losses, impairment
under expected credit loss model, net of reversal, impairment loss
in respect of goodwill, unallocated expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and

segment results are presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021512A31 AL ERE

SANBRERNHEE B

Amounts included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or i
segment assets:
Capital expenditure* BRZH

ERRAIREEARARME
AAADBREADBEE

Amounts regularly provided to the
chief operating decision marker

but not included in the measure ST EMEHE
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Impairment of trade receivables & 7 EUER T K
and other receivables, net HtEWERT R EE 3B
Impairment loss in respect of BHEENHERL
goodwill
Write-down of inventories WHES
Depreciation and amortisation 75 R84

International

NVC
brand
"

Etmi
RMB'000
TARK

5,060

3,482
24,309
943

7,030

Domestic
non-NVC
brand

el
FELRIE
RMB’000
TARE

9,321

230

1,793

17,590

Ar e B ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

REDER (&

TEEBRRARESDMBOLEE
REFHRR - AREEEBERRA
TEHRERSEARTRFMGZE
BmERERILEER  FIEARZ7
DEEERDBEBE D FHIL - E
25 DB A R 3 BR 3 4E o

International Total
non-NVC reportable
brand segments

R BE
FELmME AEAE Hitr &a
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAREE TARE FARE FARH

Others Consolidated

94,261 108,642 5,129 113,771
4,492 8,204 (8,200) 4
- 24,309 - 24,309
5,141 8,417 - 8,417
88,437 113,057 2,550 115,607
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt ZE20214 12531 HIFFZ
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬂ (,,g,ég
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31 AL ERE
International Domestic  International Total
NVC non-NVC non-NVC reportable
brand brand brand segments Others  Consolidated
EiliS Eil] EilS RE
EthlE FErRE FELAE PHEE Hfth &8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE
Amounts included in the measure of st AN ERA AN BEE 2
segment profit or loss or segment  BI& % :
assets:
Capital expendture® ERGH 7420 2,560 55,448 65,430 2330 67,760
Amounts regularly provided to the i T BEE AR ARIEE
chief operating decision marker RSt AR BEEAPDEE
but not included in the measure ~ stEMNEE :
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Impairment of trade receivables & B EUTERF R
and other receivables, net AW R (E B E 359 (1,978) 231 (1,388) (3,191) (4,579)
Impairment loss in respect of EHEENHERL
goodwill 2,582 - - 2,582 - 2,582
Write-down of inventories WHEE 1,668 3,031 7,326 12,025 - 12,025
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 1,633 18,684 72,756 93,073 1,876 94,949

and equipment and other intangible assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE
OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. RKEJE #E)
Geographical information & &k
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and other REENEFMUNR TR EEMESE -
countries.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers EREAAEBRRBINTIEZLHNKAE
is presented based on the location of the customers’ operations. R RIER R &EH EL 2 5] o B ff 24~
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented EBERHEENERNLEEEE
based on the geographical location of the assets. HHIEBAEZT) -
Revenue from
external customers
Year ended Non-current assets
SEBEEBBA
BEUTHHLEEE EREBEE

<SVAPTPIPAN  31/12/2020 WERVAPTPIPAN  31/12/2020
20214 20204 20214 20205
12H31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TARE TARE TAR® TARE

United States ESE 1,273,891 1,268,430 9,791 12,674
Japan Bz 303,643 267,511 17,853 1,366
The PRC M 251,503 238,784 1,834,538 1,785,217
Netherland 1o 169,706 147,032 - =
United Kingdom HE 166,947 192,779 46,700 44,187
Other countries HMER 209,257 235,037 88,658 159,763

2,374,947 2,349,573 1,997,540 2,003,207

Note: Non-current assets excluded equity instruments and et . IERFEEINDIEED THEKIRIE
deferred tax assets. MIBEE-
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6.
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

REDE (&)

Customer A' HAA
Customer B! = AB!
Customer C! =HAC

U Revenue from International Non-NVC brand segment.

ERETEERMNEN
HEFEEMAEEBHEEZEI10%

UENEBRWAWNT :

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARKE FARH

700,713 619,865

440,770 491,196

303,626 288,977

! REBIRIEE L amiE 0 BMEIUA -

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HthlkA

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TARK

Waiver of special dividend from —REE QT RRERRE
an associate - 118,355

Government grants and I FF 478 Bh e ELAth 48 B (B 2%)
other subsidies (Note) 15,697 56,763
Bank interest income IRITF B WA 8,505 6,000
Other interest income HAF 2 WA 1,082 1,549
Surcharges from suppliers IR B 1 7 7 RY B 00 & 59 3,258

Rental income - lease payments HEWA—TCERE N

that are fixed 1,630 550
Consultancy service income 558 AR WA 6,447 7,188
Trademark licensing fee EmZ e & 11,389 4,834
Samples recharged to customers REFLPHKRBERA 394 5,694
Others Hih 1,321 2,423
46,524 206,614
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE20214F 12531 HIEFEZE
7. OTHER INCOME (continued) 7. HMKA #&

Note: Government grants of RMB15,608,000 (2020: Kt . AREEWEIH /A RK15,608
RMB56,673,000) have been received in the current year. Tt (20204 : AR ¥56,673F
During the year ended 31 December 2021, government IT) o B E2021F12H31H LEF
grants in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies and other B2 xEEBZIXRHEEAQD WS A
subsidies were received by various subsidiaries of the Covid-1978 Bf B9 U 8 RS A0 E th 45
Group. The government grants were unconditional and Bl o 48 B8 BT AT f B 2 AR AT 0
therefore recognised in the consolidated statement of EAFENIGEEIEmERDE
profit or loss in the current year. Other government grants REENTEHRB AT S ESIE
have been received by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as HiBFme  (EAZEMEEE
tax subsidies and incentives for research and development U RETAE B A ERE SRR
activities and the expansion of production capacity of I AR BE A BN HE e o BA S EEAERA AN
energy-saving lamps. Government grants associated HNEBERGESMBERITIERD
with assets are recognised as deferred income in the T 50 75 3R FE W &5 (R S0 B 52 36 T 17
consolidated statement of financial position as disclosed in 7)o
Note 36.

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hfithigxm
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR®E TARK
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains SNEESE (BR) W (9,065) 1,121
Gain (loss) from fair value changes of ROMEFEREN
held-for-trading investments NABEEEE WG (BK) 16,213 (14,255)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FE¥I 2 - BB K 5% FE SR AY
property, plant and equipment REEL (6,209) -
Fair value change of contingent RURFZEREBHNAABEED
consideration receivables = (46,066)
Gain on disposal of property, BEEME BEMKEBEZWE
plant and equipment 1,292 1,491
Loss on disposal of other EEHMEFEEZIBK
intangible assets (163) -
Others Hith (1,082) (147)
986 (57,856)
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9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9.
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

RS EIRAER TRREE
R > BRI

2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR%E TARK

Impairment losses (reversed) MU TIEEERHN
recognised on: EERE (P -
— trade receivables — B RINER
— other receivables —HMEUWEER

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 44(b).

8,204 (9,630)
(8,200) 5,051
4 (4,579)

BT (5 B &I MY 5E44(0)

10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Hth&H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
Research and development costs M kBEEER 69,811 76,018
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. MBEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TAR®
Interest on vendor financing HERREFE 3,090 4,598
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEMNE 3,533 2777
Interest on borrowings EIS) 905 635
7,528 8,010

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE20214F 12831 HIEF/E
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRiSIREMR
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARK FARYE
Current tax: BNHERFR IS :
Hong Kong 58 17,265 14,355
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE (R 2E PR 1SR 8,742 51,615
Other countries Hh B = 1,439 800
27,446 66,770
Under(over)provision in prior years: MetEE DR (BiR) :
Hong Kong 55 773 (793)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (Note) FRE 1 2 FR1ER (BY5E) (2,013) (59,866)
Other countries H B 788 493
(452) (60,166)
Deferred tax (Note 34) IRIETRIE (B 5#34) 2,530 943
Total =X 29,524 7,547
Note: In light of the disposal of a group of subsidiaries (the Kzt #ER2019FEHE T —HWE A S

“Disposed Subsidiaries”) in year 2019, the Company
derived a gain of RMB3,988,697,000, being the fair
value of the consideration received less the carrying
amount of the Disposed Subsidiaries’ net assets and
attributable goodwill, during the year ended 31 December
2019. A PRC income tax provision has been accrued
in the Company’s accounts as at 31 December 2019.
The Company reported the tax filing of the Disposed
Subsidiaries to the PRC tax authorities, and discharged the
relevant PRC taxes during the year ended 31 December
2020. The over provision of PRC income tax, being the
difference of tax provision and actual tax paid in the PRC,
is reflected in the year ended 31 December 2020.

(TBEHENBASL > ARFR
HE2019FE12831HIEEEESE
I 5 A R 13,988,697 F 75 BNE WX
RENAAEEREE HENKB
NEFEEMEGEENREE -
HZE2019F12831H » A AT MR
FHEstRAEMESREE #E
2020512831HIEFEE > ARF B
BHEREEEARSEHEREA
B 0 R bR A8 BE R R 1E o B AR 1
EI RS BRI E BT
FEEBRAMNERNERE BRE
E2020F 12831 HILEE M-
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7177 N |
For the

year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 2,000,000 of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ETi Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) Limited (“Zhuhai SSL”), Zhejiang
Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd. (“Sunny”), Zhejiang NVC
Lamps Co., Ltd., and Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd. were
recognised as high-tech enterprise by the PRC tax authority and
entitled a preferential tax rate of 15% during both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

12.

FRGIRER (&

EEBIEEN2018FE3H21HE B
C2017FEM%E (1B:]) (B73R) &5
B (MRFAIEZ]) > 5| A MR HF
BRESE - Z L N2018F3H28
HEZERALZE INXAETEERL
FIZ-REBEMBANERNBEFNE &
EREEBTEMNE2,000T BT HE
1 #28.25% IR X » ™2,000F
B EMFBEREI%16.5%0 =
B - AR E MBI FEREGEH
EEEEMNABREEER16.5%M
T — IR o

AABEFZDR BIEMARFNFRR
KREEY RNEEE LTV BR
RMEFERN - MEFENETENE
MR ERNFEH16.5%51H

RIFPEEEMERE (THEMSI
A REEMBRIEAEREN 1R
A E B M B A B A R E A B R AR =
#5259 o

WEFER 8 (BB XBRKRA
Rag (MHEnd) D IL=K
BEFARRAA (I=k)) ~HIELIE
BEERRAAKRLBEHARFSEFAIR
REWAERBHBEER DS
MEE B MmEEFERZEE15%8

BERE-

HMB ZEERELENRNELIERE
EEEREENRITRESGE -



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as

follows:

12.

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLZE20214F 12531 HIFF Z

FRSIRER (&

FRRMEMZ ARG RTRES
ZFHE (BB HIRWT :

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax at the average income tax rate (Note)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose
Overprovision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised
Withholding tax on dividends received
from the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
Income tax at concessionary rate

Income tax expense

Note:

MAETFHE (B58)

RIS RESAENRE (#fa2)

FEHMASINRE &
BRARMBANRE &

BEFEBRER
REDBRBABENRBEZE
AR RS IAREER

RER IR TR IEEEM
MBRE

W B s & [ R B /S A )
iR BB B TR0 AR

REBREAEHMER

PRIS MBS

The average income tax rates for the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 represent the average tax rate

of the operations in different jurisdictions on the basis

of the relative amounts of profit (loss) before tax and the

relevant statutory rates.

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE FARH
62,990 (12,455)
12,533 (2,488)
36,154 90,574
(32,092) (38,177)
(452) (60,166)
9,437 4,416
778 =
20,736 14,767
735 23,029
(18,305) (24,408)
29,524 7,647

Bzt . B E20214F %2020F128318 1k
FENFHRERNMNEISRIERA
A (58) WERMSEREREATE
MEEHNARBZEEREKH
M=o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214F 12531 HIEF/ZE
13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. ZFFH (E‘E‘]:E)
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging: REFE (B5) Jh &MU TR IA
BER
2021 2020
20214 2020F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARKE TARK
Auditor’s remuneration 12 24 B 57 B 5,050 6,293
Cost of inventories recognised as expense Fes8 24 & F M2 S B 4 1,704,038 1,665,030
Amortisation of other intangible assets HthmA & E#H
(included in cost of sales) (5t A& A A) 48,656 46,383
Depreciation e
- Property, plant and equipment —ERE K& E 42,767 29,374
- Investment properties —REYE 240 2,185
- Right-of-use-assets —FAEEE 23,944 17,007
Total amortisation and depreciation HIE T EARRE 115,607 94,949
Employee benefit expenses EERIMEE BEEER
(including directors’ and chief EaTHABFHM (Hat14))
executive’s remuneration (Note 14)):
Wages and salaries TERFE 338,353 230,404
Pension scheme contributions RN EHEIHR 26,500 15,265
Other welfare expenses HihEH & B 8,036 6,916
Total staff costs BT A4E%R 372,889 252,585

Impairment loss recognised in respect of LY 3 « B E K 38 1 FE SR AR E

property, plant and equipment 518 6,209 =
Research and development costs MERMAZEER

(included in “other expenses”) GtATEMERL) 69,811 76,018
Write-down of inventories WoRES 8,477 12,025
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-1918EAFE & & &2

(Note 19) (Hta£19) - 1,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

14.

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2021

Chief
Executive
Ms. CHAN

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

EEREETERASFHMN

Rz LR KRERRBFGKE
WEFEEk&THRABHBN
i

20214

Mr. WANG Ms. CAO

Mr. WANG  Kim Yung, Mr. XIAO  Dongming Qin Total
Donglei Eva Yu (note 1) (note 2) 2021
RETHBAS TLBELE g2yt
FLERE BREB%t HFRE (1) (Wit2) 201%F85
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE  FARE  TAEE  TARE  FARE  FARE
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) H7&Z
Fees ik 249 249 249 11 112 970
Other emoluments: Hitis
Salaries and allowance FeREE 5,000 7,054 1,346 838 - 14,238
Performance related 2ERS
bonuses 4,000 3,000 596 - 50 7,646
Pension scheme RIS EIET
contributions 16 28 - 19 - 63
Sub-total et 9,265 10,331 2,191 968 162 22,917

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

LRATESOME N ARENFIADREEBNEREHRERB AT o

Mr. YE Mr. WANG Total
Yong Keven Dun 2021
WERE  FERE 2021583

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TAE® TAE® TARE

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B) JE#{TEZ

Fees ik

Other emoluments: At
Salaries and allowance He R
Pension scheme contributions RGBT

Sub-total INE

249 249 498
696 - 696

17 - 17
962 249 1,211

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

LRIFRTESNMENFAREEADRANBEAT NBER) HEFM AT

BLERERARAE 202155
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20215E 12531 HIF FEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUFHAES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ik

14.

Mr. WANG
Xuexian

IBfRE
RMB'000
TARH

249

EERESTHRASFHHN

/=

(&)

Mr.LEE  Mr. CHEN Mr. JIA
Kong Wai, Hong Hongbo Total
Conway (note 4) (note 3) 2021

RoA%E BARREE

FRERE (Hit4) (H23) 201%E83
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TAR®E TAREE TARE FARE

415 21 177 862

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

IRBI R TESNNE DA RS RERRAESMRA

Total At

Note 1: Ms. WANG Dongming was re-designated from Non-
Executive Director to Executive Director with effect from 1
May 2021 and retired on 11 June 2021.

Note 2: Ms. CAO Qin was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 19 July 2021.

Note 3: Mr. JIA Hongbo resigned as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 17 September
2021.

Note 4: Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as an Independent Non-

executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
December 2021.
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Hia£3 :

Wizt :

24,990

FLRBELEENR2021FE581BRIE
HITEERERNTES L2021
F6H11HRE

BEL 2021 E7TH190 EEFE
BHMITESE
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

EEMEETHRASFHHN

(&)

2020 20205
Chief
Executive
Mr. WANG Ms. CHAN Mr. XIAQ Total
Donglei  Kim Yung, Eva Yu 2020
RBIHAR
TLERE  ReBgL HFEE 202045
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
TARE  TARE  TARE  TARK
A) EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS A) H#H{7EZE
Fees ik 256 256 256 768
Other emoluments: Hitfs
Salaries and allowance HekEg 2,083 6,969 1,346 10,398
Performance related 2ERS
bonuses 10,500 4,479 521 15,500
Pension scheme RS EIHT
contributions - 29 - 29
Sub-total NGt 12,839 11,733 2,123 26,695

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

LRATEZNMENAREAF AR RAEANER S BRI o

Mr. WANG Mr. WANG Total
Dongming ~ Mr. YE Yong Keven Dun 2020
FLBEE HEEE TEEE  2020EA5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARHE TARE TARE TARE
B) NON-EXECUTIVE B) FHTES
DIRECTORS
Fees s 700 256 256 1,212
Other emoluments: Hitf <
Salaries and allowance HerER 1,075 311 450 1,836
Performance related 2ERE
bonuses - 106 - 106
Pension scheme BRAEFEIMT
contributions 20 15 9 44
Sub-total NG 1,795 688 715 3,198

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

LRFRTESNMENFHAREAADRANBAE NBR) HNEFMA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20214512831 A1 EE
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EERESITHAESEHM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#)
Mr. WEI Mr. LEE Mr. SU Mr. JIA
Hongxiong Mr. WANG Kong Wai, Ling Hongbo Total
(hote 1) Xuexian Conway (note 1) (note 2) 2020
BEREE Bakt  BOREE

Wz1) TBEEE  FTHEERE Wist) W2)  2020E &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FARK TARE TARK TARK TFARE FARE

C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUfHfES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ik 108 256 389 108 122 983

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

TRBIFR RSN E A RS EARARESMA

Total a5t 30,876
Note 1: Mr. WEI Hongxiong and Mr. SU Ling retired as Independent Biat1 BRI bl A 4 R BR S8 S AR 20204
Non-executive Directors of the Company with effect from 6E12HBERATIBILIEHNITE
12 June 2020. =o
Note 2: Mr. JIA Hongbo was appointed as an Independent Non- Mzt BALREER2021E7R17THES
executive Director of the Company with effect from 17 July EARANTBIUIEHTES-
2020.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief PREEE EERNERaTHRAET
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during TN EDE B W ETE A FHEN
both years. ZHEo
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled * AT EFHTE =S REWEIRE
to bonus payments which are based on the profit for the AEEAEREREESEASES
== Ed <

year of the Group and their individual performance.

TBITEAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three directors (2020: four directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2020:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

15. Afliz=irtNIES

rE - AEBALURSHMNESEE
=(IEE (20205 : MU ESR) » H#H
BisE S8 LA 14 - AR ES

TARERBARBITHRABNGET
WAL (2020%F : —fi) &S M IES

BURRENEF B0 E ¢

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  ¥r& 2R EYF =

Performance related bonuses HEERE
Pension scheme contribution BRE S EHRR

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARHK
2,004 675
1,019 822

48 15

3,071 1,512

H#FM AR U THEANIEERT
EFENREHFMESNAZAT

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,280,000 to
RMB1,700,000)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and
five highest paid employees as incentive on joining or as
compensation for the loss of office during both years.

1,500,001 75 £2,000,0005% 75
(FEE i AR 11,280,000
= AR %1,700,0007%)

2021 2020
20215 20204
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH BEAH
2 1

RMEFE EFNRBITHRABL
5] 1R R BOE A # BN Y
2o

KRMEFE BEDEERAIURS

%ﬁﬁiﬂ@éi‘iﬁ&ﬂﬁﬂﬁf’ﬁ%m)\El%
BYEE R SRR R 1E o
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt ZE20214 12531 HIFFZ
16. DIVIDENDS 16. RS
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of HE2021F12831H K20204F128
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 B1HIEEE » A AT EKTHEZS
December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the IKEAZEEKRRE > BRSH RN E
end of the reporting period. BEREIRETAKRE -
17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 17. SREF (G518
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable NANTEEANELELASREF (&
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: 1B WstEEE N U TEE .
Earnings (loss) figures are calculated as follows: B (B8 gUsEmstEU T
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARHE TFAR®
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic ARt BEARSRER]
earnings (loss) per share (B548) A HE (&518) 5,814 (61,748)
2020
2020F
000
T
Weighted average number of BRstBEXESREF]
ordinary shares for the purpose of (B518) N E BRI &
basic earnings (loss) per share 4,227,281 4,227,281
No diluted earnings (loss) per share for both 2021 and 2020 were 2021FEH2020FE KR E2EF| B EST IR
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for R (B518) » A A20214F K20204F
both 2021 and 2020. TREETETZBER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B FE20214F 12531 HIFFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BERRE
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
#F KEE  BERER  REREE L] HEIR ait

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
TARH TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE

CosT B
A1 January 2020 R2020E181A 227,589 23,222 311,644 20203 11,948 1,284 595,890
Additons HE = 9417 24847 2,736 1614 5,332 13946
Transfers ag (7,992 = 20 = = (260) (7,992
Disposals EE = (488) (4318 (2,082 (567) = (7.455)
Exchange adjustments EfEE (1,563) (020) (138) (1,038) (23 (463) (4,360)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12831R 218034 31,281 332,295 19819 12757 5,803 620,029
Addions HE 14,031 11,109 34,561 3,462 2,679 2421 86,263
Transfers a (3,058) 346 418 = = (194) (3,058)
Disposals BE = (7,980) (68,190) (3,886) (964) = (61,020)
Exchange adjustments E4 g (2,053) (666 (1,016) (1) (022 (1,868) 6272
At 31 December 2021 Ro021£12831R 226,954 34,020 298,098 18968 14250 25,652 617,942

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Bt ERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020 #202051581H (46,368) (16,718) (190,049) (14,369) (8,153) - (275,657)
Provided for th year EnEE (3,859) 2,449 20,097) .021) (954) - 29:374)
Eliminated on disposal HERES - 488 1,083 1,038 525 - 3,729
Exchange adjustments EREE 159 730 62 1017 40 - 2,008
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 (50,068) (17,949 (208,401) (14,340 8542) - (299,204)
Provided for the year FRkt 6,778) (7,697) (23,122) (2,327) (2,843 - (42,767)
Transfers a5 840 - - - - - 840
Impairment loss recognised in REERINHABER

profit or loss (347) - (5,581) (184) (97) - 6,209)
Eliminated on disposal HERIEH - 7,980 62,248 3,099 21 - 73548
Exchange adjustments EQEE 572 175 232 304 248 - 1,531
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 (65,781) (17,485) (174,624) (13,448) (11,013) - (272,351)

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2021 1*2021E12A31H 171,173 16,535 123,474 5520 3,237 25,652 345,591
At 31 December 2020 1#2020&12A31H 167,966 13,288 123,894 5479 4215 5,893 320,735
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RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 22021412531 HIFFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease,
or 18 to 40 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of lease,
or 2 to 5 years

Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 1 to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 8 years

None of the property, plant and equipment were pledged for the
Group’s bank loan facilities as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, certain buildings included in property,
plant and equipment with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB41,840,000 were pledged for the Group’s bank loan facilities

ME- -BERSE (&

L E BB RxRE (FRIER
S EE RFGEERRERESE
BUUFLERIFE

L RS RIEEH18E
405 AV BRI AR

KEH RIS N2ESF
B9 B A8 HA

R REE  3FE104F
RAREE 1E7F
14 B 5 &l AE Q4

R2021FE12831H > B E(EAIY) £~
BEREZBRIEFEBANRAERMIR

TEMME -

2020 12831H » BT st A E
MERKRENEEEAGS ARE
41,840 T THEFEM A ER IR

(Note 42). TERRE T LI (fsF42) o
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FHEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEME &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FARME TARK
As at 31 December 2021 2021%F12831H
Carrying amount EREE 31,458 163,450 194,908
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%F12H31H
Carrying amount BRE(E 32,246 179,516 211,762
For the year ended HE2021F12831HILEEE
31 December 2021
Depreciation charge TERS 788 23,156 23,944
For the year ended HZE2020F12B31HILELFEE
31 December 2020
Depreciation charge TEMRX 788 16,219 17,007
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

#r o AT ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

19. EREEE (&

Expense relating to short-leases HIOEEBRNER
Total cash outflow for leases R mHEELREE
Addition to right-of-use assets RETRAEEE

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
equipment and vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 3 months to 47 years for both years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices. As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed above.

None of the right-of-use assets were pledged for an associate’s
bank loan facilities as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land with aggregate carrying amounts of RMB17,408,000 were
pledged for an associate’s bank loan facilities (Note 42).

2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR%E TARK
858 955
24,287 5,358
8,946 11,302

KmEFE  AEEHEESERA
E RE - REREWMHAEE
BermBEFE HEGR®IER
EA7TEREE RS - HEFRRTD
RIBEEREERHE > LEITEREF
TR B A5 1 o £ 1 RE TH B HA PR Ko 5 4 A~
ORI ARNEREN AEERAS
B B9 € & 3 8 & & [B) AT 58 Bl 31T B9
HAIR -

AREBHEASMWMAETILGHME
EoR2021F12HA31H ' f2HHFE &4
SH YR ERAEERZ R E
R HAFA B4 S AR ML o

R2021E12831H MMEFERHESE
EREFRAR—REEATNIET

BERME -

R2020FE12831H  BEEEA A
E17,408F oA E L #MABREH
FTREEEEN —HBELTANIR
TERRE T UL (izE42) o
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RE M HRRMEE

7177 N |
For the

year ended 31 December 2021

B F20214F 12531 HIEFE

19.

20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB45,242,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of RMB56,503,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB58,099,000 and related right-
of-use assets of RMB64,111,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Rent concessions

No rent concessions have been received by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of various
offices provided rent concessions to the Group. These rent
concessions occurred as a direct consequence of Covid-19
pandemic and met of all of the conditions in IFRS 16.46B, and
the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess whether
the changes constitute lease modifications. The effects on
changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the
lessors for the relevant leases of RMB1,077,000 were recognised
as negative variable lease payments.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years (2020: 1 to 5 years), with unilateral rights
to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in
the event the lessee exercises the option to extend.
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HEAEARKS8,099F Tt & 1HEE
FRHEEE ARK64,111F 7T) &
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F16.46BRP I B K H > A EE
KB TEELEFTIEEERDS
BREEESR BN EAAKNAREAE
ENESdRnEMEEECTHEE
M2 AR 07T7TF THERAE
PR E TR o

REWE

AEERBELEHEHBEETHA
E-SESALN -HEEEVNS
AHA1E34F (20204 : 1E54F) » H18
ARANERESFEFHEELEREY
YRHEALLSN o E TR AT AE HR SR 42 1
HBERT AZHEESRBHEE™
BEEER



20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20.
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result

of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in

the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

#r o AT ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFZ

REWMZE (B

A E R8RS 2D
Al RAmAREUERERE
ANEESHE-BESARES
HREERER RABAEAE
S FUET S SR

RMB’000
FTARE

R 7
12020 181H

COST

At 1 January 2020

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
At 31 December 2020 12202051283 1H
Transfer from property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H

BME -BERRBEEHH

B % WMERKRFHEED

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2020
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2020
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2021

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

hee
2020 181H
RERE

11202012831H
BERE

2021FE12831H

EREE
R2021F12H31H

12020128318

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 was RMB14,815,000 (2020: RMB9,100,000).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out
by an independent valuer not connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost approach, where the key inputs are unit
replacement cost, based on current cost of replacement of the
property, and adopted depreciation rate, based on professional
judgment.

7,992

7,992
2,218

10,210

(2,185)

(2,185)
(240)

(2,425)

7,785

5,807

R2021F12831H KEEKEY
xR BEAAR®KE14,815F 7T
(20204 : AR#¥9,100F7T) e A%
BEDNEEARERTERBENS
U EMETHNEEMmS -

ARBEDRBFIEEENLSEE
B HTRABRAASEREEYERN
ERRANBUEENAUKRRE
HERFERARTER
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RE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B 22021412531 HIFFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20. KEYE &
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best RESTEN AL BER MENS
use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of the SEERERARAEERA®R - RNRE
investment properties is at level 3 fair value hierarchy at the end HERk KEYVMEN LA LBEAEIR
of the reporting period. NABEEEBLR-
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight- M B ENRIOFERUBLE E I
line basis over 30 years. Eo
21. GOODWILL 21. EHE
Elec-Tech Shanghai
Solid State Arcata
Lighting Electronics
(HK) Limited Co., Ltd. NVC DK
(“HKSSL”) (“Arcata”) A/S Others Total
18 (578)
RERE LEREE
BRAT  EFARAA NVC DK
(T&#&GE) (T +%81) NS Hth @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE TARE FTAEE TARK FTARE
(Note 45)
(B zE45)
COST A
At 1 January 2020 and R2020F1 818 &
31 December 2020 2020F12831H 377,233 7,369 - 212,708 597,310
Arising on acquisition of WERBARESE
a subsidiary - - 24,309 - 24,309
At 31 December 2021 12021128314 377,233 7,369 24,309 212,708 621,619
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 January 2020 12020515818 173,216 - - 210,126 383,342
Impairment loss recognised ERDRESE - - - 2,582 2,682
At 31 December 2020 12020F12831H 173,216 - - 212,708 385,924
Impairment loss recognised BHRDAERE - - 24,309 - 24,309
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 173,216 - 24,309 212,708 410,233
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 12021128314 204,017 7,369 - - 211,386
At 31 December 2020 12020F12831H 204,017 7,369 = = 211,386

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed

in Note 23.
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

wr e MR R MEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE

22, HithWEREE

Trademarks ~ Trademarks Deferred
(indefinite (definite Computer Customer  development
useful lives)  useful lives) software relationships costs Patents Total
BE(ER  HE(ER EEHE
AERES) FEAEH BE#RHA ERM% & L E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARK FARE FARK TARE FARK FARK TARH
COST A&
At 1 January 2020 20201818 17,600 80,159 3,317 324,695 5,525 174,569 605,865
Additions hE = = 2,198 = 1,787 14,346 18,281
Acquired on acquisition of LGN
subsidiaries - - - 5,633 - - 5,633
Disposals EE - - - - - (1,083) (1,083)
Exchange adjustment ERAEE - - (165) - - - (165)
At 31 December 2020 #2020F12B831H 17,600 80,159 5,350 330,228 7,262 187,832 628,431
Additions RE - - 1,165 - 3,203 19,644 24,012
Acquired on acquisition of e UNSIETVE
a subsidiary - - - 1,496 - - 1,496
Disposals RE - - (172) - - - (172)
Exchange adjustment ERAE - - - (656) - (246) (902)
At 31 December 2021 #2021E12B831H 17,600 80,159 6,343 331,068 10,465 207,230 652,865
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION % 5t #84
At 1 January 2020 20201818 - (18,704) (2,455) (51,829) - (143,452) (216,440)
Charge for the year KERY = (16,032) (288) (14,488) = (15,575) (46,383)
Eliminated on disposals HERIRH - - - - - 1,083 1,083
Exchange adjustment ERBE - - 109 - - - 109
M 31 December 2020 72020128318 = (34,736) 2,634) (66,317) - (157.944)  (261,631)
Charge for the year KERY - (16,032) (410) (15,365) - (16,849) (48,656)
Eliminated on disposals HERIEH - - 9 - - - 9
Exchange adjustment ERBE - - - 53 - 246 299
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 - (50,768) (3,085) (81,629) - (174,547) (309,979)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 ?2021F128318 17,600 29,391 3,308 249,439 10,465 32,683 342,886
At 31 December 2020 #2020F128318 17,600 45,423 2,716 263,911 7,262 29,888 366,800
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22.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Deferred development costs are internally generated. The Group’s
computer software, customer relationships and patents were
acquired from third parties. Trademarks were purchased as part
of a business combination in prior years.

The above intangible assets other than trademarks with indefinite
useful lives have definite useful lives. Such intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following period:

Trademarks with definite

useful lives
Computer software
Customer relationships
Patents

5 years

51to 10 years
5 to 20 years
5 to 10 years

The trademarks with indefinite useful lives are renewable at
minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has
the ability to do so. Various studies including market, competitive
and environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities
have been performed by management of the Group, which
supports that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be definite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the
impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND  23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives set out in Notes 21 and 22 have been
allocated to three individual CGUs. The carrying amounts of
goodwill and trademarks (net of accumulated impairment losses)
allocated to these units are as follows:

iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLZE20214F 12531 HIFF Z

8 B LR IR BT R R
W E R AR

TR ER S 0 521 K229 PR
FEERAERNERAFHNER
ENkRE-ZEERHFEcELEMU-D
EFZSEUNBERBRENEEE
(RERRREBERR WT :

Goodwill Trademarks
[k [}

2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 2021 20205
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE FTARE FARK
HKSSL ERRE 204,017 204,017 17,600 17,600
Arcata 18 7,369 7,369 - =
NVC DK A/S NVC DK A/S - - - -
211,386 211,386 17,600 17,600

In addition to goodwill and trademarks above, property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(including allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill and trademarks are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment
assessment.

SREAEERERIN EERTRE
X -BEARRFE HUETLEE
RERREE (BEIRARNEE)
BEEEFBERBER THAZEN
REEEEM DETRES G

BLERERARAE 202155

283



284

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 A

7177 N |

MR R i EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

HKSSL

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 15.60% (2020:
15.39%). HKSSL’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2020: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the historical consumer price index
growth rate and does not exceed the average consumer price
index growth rate in the United States. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have
been reassessed as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group’s wholesales operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
on HKSSL. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of HKSSL to exceed the recoverable amount of HKSSL.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

Arcata

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 14.0% (2020:
14.70%). Arcata’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2020: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average consumer price index growth
rate in the PRC for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have
been reassessed as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group’s wholesales operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment on Arcata. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of Arcata to exceed the recoverable amount of
Arcata.

23.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BLFE20214F 12831 HIFFZE

23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

NVC DK A/S

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 15.5%. NVC DK
A/S’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 1% growth rate. This growth rate is based
on the inflation rate of Denmark in 2026 as projected by the
International Monetary Fund. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include sales growth rates and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’'s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management of the
Group determines that impairment loss of RMB24,309,000 in
respect of the goodwill has been recognised as the recoverable
amount of this unit is less than its carrying amount.
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iR e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE20214F 12531 HIFEE
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. REERTIZED
2021 2020
2021% 20205
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAER® FARE
Cost of interests in associates A= NETR R Sl i 819,217 812,721
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEGWERAIEREMEEBA
other comprehensive income, MNEFB WS
net of dividends received (221,747) (224,251)
597,470 588,470
Details of each of the Group’s principal associates at the end of REBRTEHRS AT NREEER
the reporting period are as follows: BT -
Country of Principal Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ place of  ownership interest  voting rights held
Name of entities registration business  held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
AR/ FEEEFERE FEEMERER
BiaaiE ARMER  FEEEME ] ] TEES

2021 2020 2021 2020
PPkl 20204 [PIPAE:SM 20204

Brilliant Lights International Singapore Singapore 30% 30% 30% 30%  Investment holding and
Holding Pte. Ltd. (Note) (Note) manufacture and sales of
(“BLIHP”) lamps, luminaries, lamp

transformers, lighting
electronic products and
other appliances

Brilliant Lights International I N 30% 30% 30% 30% KREERUKRMERHEENL
Holding Pte. Ltd. (W) () R BEERERSR
(TBLIHP ) HEFERREMESR

BLERERARAE 202155
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Country of Principal
incorporation/ place of
Name of entities registration business
MR/
ERwE AMER FEEEME
NVC&OLLE Lighting (Wuhu) The PRC The PRC
Company Limited*®
(OLLE")
RNBELBLREES g HiE
BRAF
(M%)
Zhuhai Zhengtong Electrical The PRC The PRC
Industrial Co., Ltd.*
(ZZEr)
KETEREIEX alEi HE
BRAT (FREER)
Elekzon PTY Limited Australia Australia
(“Elekzon”)*
Elekzon PTY Limited B B
(TElekzon J) *
Beijing Marriott Runde Energy The PRC The PRC
Saving Technology
Co., Ltd.* (‘BJWH")
TRERBEHERK alEi HE

BRAR (EREBR)

NVC International Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

24. RERBZ D (&

Proportion of

ownership interest

held by the Group
FEEMEHRAR SEEMEREE

LAl

2021
20215

10%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

20%

20%

2020

20205

10%

10%

10%

10%

N/A

TER

20%

20%

Proportion of

voting rights held

Principal activities

TEEY

by the Group
]
2021 2020
20214 |EPlpE
N/A 10%
(Note)
TER 10%
(M)
10% 10%
(Note) (Note)
10% 10%
() ()
20% N/A
(Note)
20% AEH
(Hz)
20% 20%
(Note) (Note)
20% 20%
() ()

Trading of lamps, luminaries,
other lighting products, low
voltage electrical appliances
and fire equipment products
and accessories as well as
research and development
of LED lighting products

BENR BE -HMRHAE
m EEERREHBETE
mREf URRRREE
LEDHRFAE &

Sales of lamps, luminaries,
lighting electronic products
and other appliances

HELR BR -RASTE
mREMESR

Sales of lamps, luminaries,
lighting electronic products
and other appliances

HENR BE - RAETE
mREMES

Research and development of
LED lighting products and
other appliances

LEDER PR K EL At X B AV B
%
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

W These companies are limited liability company in the PRC.

The Group acquired 20% equity interest in Elekzon on
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

© OLLE has been reclassified to equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income due to the
change of the article of association under which the Group
cannot exercise its significant influence over OLLE.

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the share of results
of associates for the year or constitute a substantial portion of the
Group’s interests in associates. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Note: In the opinion of the directors, BLIHP, ZZEl, Elekzon
and BJWH (2020: BLIHP, OLLE, ZZEIl, and BJWH) are
regarded as associates of the Group because the Group
appoints director in the board of directors of the respective
comp